FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC.

a Nevada Corporation 851 South Rampart Blvd., Suite 200 Las Vegas, Nevada 89145 Phone: (702) 368-2500

www.fcbbi.com



You will operate a First Choice Business Brokers business that earns commissions as you list and sell businesses for sale. You will earn commissions for the sales of existing businesses.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a FIRST CHOICE franchise is between \$70,400 to \$98,350. This includes \$50,000 that must be paid to the franchisor or affiliate.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully. You must receive this disclosure at least 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. **Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the information contained in this document.**

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact our corporate office at 851 South Rampart Blvd., Suite 200, Las Vegas, Nevada 89145 or via telephone at (702) 368-2500.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don't rely on the disclosure document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contracts and this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as "A Consumer's Guide to Buying a Franchise," which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC's home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit you public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance date: March 17, 2023

How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find more information:

QUESTION	WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION	
How much can I earn?	Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also try to obtain this information from others, like current and former franchisees. You can find their names and contact information in Item 20 or Exhibits G-1 and G-2.	
How much will I need to invest?	Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the franchisor or at the franchisor's direction. Item 7 lists the initial investment to open. Item 8 describes the suppliers you must use.	
Does the franchisor have the financial ability to provide support to my business?	Item 21 or Exhibit E includes financial statements. Review these statements carefully.	
Is the franchise system stable, growing, or shrinking?	Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number of company-owned and franchised outlets	
Will my business be the only First Choice Business Brokers business in the area?	Item 12 and the "territory" provisions in the franchise agreement describe whether the franchisor and other franchisees can compete with you.	
Does the franchisor have a troubled legal history?	Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its management have been involved in material litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.	
What's it like to be a First Choice Business Brokers franchisee?	Item 20 or Exhibits G-1 and G-2 list current and former franchisees. You can contact them to ask about their experiences.	
What else should I know?	These questions are only a few things you should look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this disclosure document to better understand this franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.	

What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

<u>Continuing responsibility to pay fees</u>. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise business.

<u>Supplier restrictions</u>. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar items you could buy on your own.

<u>Operating restrictions</u>. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell, how you market, and your hours of operation.

<u>Competition from franchisor</u>. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

<u>Renewal</u>. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency information in Exhibit C.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.

Special Risks to Consider About *This* Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

- 1. <u>Out-of-State Dispute Resolution</u>. The franchise agreement requires you to resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation or litigation only in Nevada. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to mediate or litigate with the franchisor in Nevada than in your own state.
- 2. <u>Mandatory Minimum Payments</u>. You must make minimum royalty or advertising fund payments, regardless of your sales levels. Your inability to make the payments may result in termination of your franchise and loss of your investment.
- 3. <u>Sales Performance Required</u>. You must maintain minimum sales performance levels. Your inability to maintain these levels may result in loss of any territorial rights you are granted, termination of your franchise, and loss of your investment.
- 4. <u>Financial Condition</u>. The franchisor's financial condition, as reflected in its financial statements (see Item 21), calls into question the franchisor's ability to provide services and support to you.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the "State Specific Addenda" (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.

MICHIGAN ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU:

- (a) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.
- (b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.
- (c) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.
- (d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of the franchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i) The term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade name, logo type, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of franchisor's intent not to renew the franchise.
- (e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not require a renewal provision.
- (f) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration at a location outside this state.
- (g) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to: (i) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor's then current reasonable qualifications or standards; (ii) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or sub franchisor; (iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing

to comply with all lawful obligations; (iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer.

- (h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).
- (i) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise transfer its obligation to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made for providing the required contractual services.
- (j) If the franchisor's most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less than \$100,000, the franchisee may request the franchisor to arrange for the escrow of initial investment and other funds paid by the franchisee until the obligations, if any, of the franchisor to provide real estate, improvements, equipment, inventory, training or other items included in the franchise offering are fulfilled. At the option of the franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to Department of the Attorney General's Office, Consumer Protection Division, Franchise Section, G. Mennen Williams Building, 525 W. Ottawa Street, Lansing, Michigan 48913; telephone number (517) 373-7117.

THIS MICHIGAN NOTICE APPLIES ONLY TO FRANCHISEES WHO ARE RESIDENTS OF MICHIGAN OR LOCATE THEIR FRANCHISES IN MICHIGAN.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Item</u>	Page No.
ITEM 1 THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS, AND AFFILIATES.	
ITEM 2 BUSINESS EXPERIENCE	5
ITEM 3 LITIGATION	
ITEM 4 BANKRUPTCY	6
ITEM 5 INITIAL FEES	6
ITEM 6 OTHER FEES	
ITEM 7 ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT	
ITEM 8 RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES	
ITEM 9 FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS	14
ITEM 10 FINANCING	16
ITEM 11 FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND	
TRAINING	16
ITEM 12 TERRITORY	24
ITEM 13 TRADEMARKS	
ITEM 14 PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION	
ITEM 15 OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRAN	
BUSINESS	
ITEM 16 RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL	-
ITEM 17 RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION	
ITEM 18 PUBLIC FIGURES	
ITEM 19 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS	
ITEM 20 OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION	
ITEM 21 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
ITEM 22 CONTRACTS	
ITEM 23 RECEIPT	39
Exhibit A Franchica Agraement	
Exhibit A. Franchise Agreement Schedule 1 –Area of Operations and Approved Location	
Schedule 2 – Guaranty, Indemnification, and Acknowledgement	
Schedule 3 – Computer System User License Agreement	
Schedule 4 – Assignment of Telephone Numbers, Internet Addresses, and Social	
Media Identities	
Schedule 5 – Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement	
Schedule 6 – Statement of Ownership	
Schedule 7 - ACH Authorization	
Schedule 8 - Franchisee Compliance Certification	
Schedule 9 - State Addenda to the Franchise Agreement	
Exhibit B. Non-Disclosure Agreement	
Exhibit C. State Administrators/Agents for Service of Process	
Exhibit D. General Release	
Exhibit E. Financial Statements	
Exhibit F. State Addenda to The Disclosure Document	
Exhibit G-1. List of Current Franchisees	
Exhibit G-2. Former Franchisees	
Exhibit H. Tables of Contents of Manuals	
Exhibit I. Area Representative Disclosures	
Exhibit J. State Effective Dates	
Exhibit K. Receipts	

ITEM 1 THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS, AND AFFILIATES

The franchisor is First Choice Business Brokers, Inc. ("we," "us," or "our"). "You" or "your" means the person to whom we grant a franchise. The terms "you" and "your" refer to the person or entity that buys this franchise, including any guarantors.

The Franchisor

We are a Nevada corporation, and we were incorporated on August 19, 2005. We maintain our principal place of business at 851 South Rampart Blvd., Suite 200, Las Vegas, Nevada 89145.

We operate under the name, "FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS," and the trademarks described in Item 13 (the "Marks"). We do not do business or intend to do business under any other names.

Exhibit C contains a list of our agents for service of process.

The Franchise We Offer

You will operate a business brokerage by assisting business owners who wish to sell their business with buyers who wish to buy an existing business. You will assist with the negotiations between the buyer and seller to seek a smooth transition of the purchase. In exchange for serving as a broker you will receive a commission to be paid from the seller's proceeds. Our typical clients are small to medium businesses and their potential buyers. The business brokerage industry is small, however, the need for its services has grown considerably due to the increase in the number of entrepreneurs purchasing franchises and starting new business ventures.

Parents

We are owned by JLN Enterprises, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company formed on April 4, 2017, with a principal place of business at 851 South Rampart Blvd., Suite 200, Las Vegas, Nevada 89145. JLN does not offer products or services to our franchisees or offer franchises in any line of business.

Predecessors

We do not have a predecessor.

Affiliates

We have an affiliate, Pro Business Sales, LLC ("Pro"), which has its principal place of business at 851 South Rampart Blvd., Suite 200, Las Vegas, Nevada 89145. Pro operates one First Choice Business Brokers® business and has done so since February 2019, and Pro's offices may be used for training our franchisees.

Prior Business Experience

We have offered franchises since September 2005 and began offering area representative franchises in June 2021. Our former affiliate and Pro's predecessor, Las Vegas 101 Inc. (previously known as Nevada First Business Brokers), conducted a business brokerage under the name "Nevada First Business Brokers" from 1996 until 2005. Our principals, as sole proprietors, conducted a business brokerage under the name "Nevada Business Brokers" from 1994 until the inception of our affiliate in 2005. We do not operate an area representative business.

Other than as described above, we have not previously and do not presently offer franchises in any other line of business or conduct any business activities other than the franchising described in this disclosure document.

The Market and Competition

The market for business brokerage services is well-developed, and the market for the services you will provide through your Franchised Business includes the owners of virtually any type of operating business. Business brokerage services are year-round. You will compete with other businesses that offer business brokerage services.

Applicable Laws

You must obtain such operational licenses as may be required under state and local law. The regulations specific to the operation of a business brokerage may vary from area to area, for example, many states may require you to obtain a real estate agent license and, if you sell franchises, some states may require you to register as a franchise broker. Also, city or county business licensing divisions may regulate the conduct of your business. You should investigate application of these laws further.

<u>ITEM 2</u> BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Chief Executive Officer: Jeffrey D. Nyman

Jeffrey D. Nyman has served as our Chief Executive Officer and co-founder Since August 2005. From August 2005 until January 2020, Mr. Nyman also served as our Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Nyman also served from 1996 to 2019 as President and Secretary of our prior affiliate, Las Vegas 101. Mr. Nyman is also the co-Founder and President of the Nevada Business Brokers Association and is a Board Member of the Las Vegas Commercial Alliance. Mr. Nyman is a member of the State of Nevada Real Estate Commission Advisory Council and co-author of the State of Nevada Business Brokers Permit License test.

President and Chief Operations Officer: Linda Hentges-Nyman

Linda Hentges-Nyman has served as our President since June 2012. Ms. Hentges-Nyman has also served as our Chief Operations Officer ("COO") and co-founder since our inception in August

2005. Ms. Hentges-Nyman also served from 1996 to 2019 as the Treasurer of our prior affiliate, Las Vegas 101. Linda was a co-author of the State of Nevada Business Brokers Permit License test.

Melissa Salyer: Executive Vice President of Franchise Development

Melissa Salyer has served as our Executive Vice President of Franchise Development for Loyalty, LLC in Virginia Beach, Virginia since December 2019. From August 2019 to the present, Ms. Salyer has also served as the Owner of FranDiscovery in Virginia Beach, Virginia. From July 2015 to September 2019, Ms. Salyer served as Executive Vice President of Franchise Opportunities for Happy Tax Franchising, LLC in Virginia Beach, Virginia.

Area Representatives

Our area representatives assist us in selling and supporting franchise locations. If you buy a franchise located in the territory of an area representative, the area representative may provide you with initial and ongoing support and guidance. A list of our current area representatives, including their litigation and bankruptcy history for Items 3 and 4, is included as Exhibit I.

ITEM 3 LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 4 BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 5 INITIAL FEES

You must pay us an Initial Franchise Fee of \$40,000 and an Initial Training/Marketing Fee of \$12,500 when you sign the Franchise Agreement.

We participate in the (VetFran) Veterans Transition Franchise Initiative which seeks provides an opportunity for veterans who want to be in business. If you are a veteran of the U.S. Armed Forces that has been honorably discharged, you may be eligible to receive a discount of \$5,000 from the Initial Franchise Fee for a First Choice Business. You must advise us of your service to the United States prior to execution of the Franchise Agreement in order to receive the discount

The Initial Franchise and Training Fees are fully earned by us and nonrefundable when you sign the Franchise Agreement for the franchise being purchased. These initial fees are uniform for all franchisees. We do not finance any portion of the Initial Fees.

ITEM 6 OTHER FEES

Type of Fee	Amount	Due Date	Remarks
Royalty Fee (Notes 1, 2, and 3)	The greater of: \$300 per month or 10% of Gross Sales up to \$850,000 during the term of the Franchise Agreement, and 8% of Gross Sales thereafter	The 5 th calendar day of every month	We begin collecting Royalty Fees during your first month of operations. Royalty is subject to a \$300/month minimum beginning in the 13th month of operations.
Marketing Contribution	\$250 per month	The 5 th calendar day of every month	This fee is payable if we institute a Marketing Contribution. We reserve the right to increase this fee by 10% per year.
Technology Fee	\$350/ per month, plus \$145 per month per Agent	Monthly	The Technology Fee begins 60 days after you complete your initial training. The Agent pays the Agent Fee beginning 30 days after the Agent completes our training. We have the right to increase this fee annually, provided that such increase will not exceed 20% per year.
Administrative Support Fee	0 - 15 - Active Listings: \$250 per month 16 - 30 - Active Listings: \$500 31 - 60 - Active Listings: \$750 61 - 100 - Active Listings: \$1,200 101 - 150 - Active Listings: \$1,500 151 - 200 - Active Listings: \$1,800	Monthly	We provide administrative support to you in the form of inputting listings and changes to listings into websites and databases at no cost to you for 180 days after you complete your initial training. The Administrative Support Fee is payable monthly if you choose to continue to use our administrative support services after this initial period.
Credit card processing fee	3% of the amount charged	At time of charge	If you pay any sums by us by credit card, you agree to pay a credit card processing fee on that charge.
Late Payment Fee	9% of the overdue payment plus interest at 1.5% per month.	The day you are late on any payment that you owe to us	If any payment(s) are overdue, you must pay us a late fee in addition to the overdue amount. Interest amount charged may be changed to the maximum rate permitted by law.

Type of Fee	Amount	Due Date	Remarks
Associate Training Fee	\$500 per agent that you employ or contract.	Upon scheduling training	Each Associate you employ or contract must attend training our On Line Training (First Choice University), within 30 days of the date that you hire them.
Attendance at annual training, seminar, conference, or event	As set at the time of the event	60 days prior to event	You will pay us a conference fee in an amount that we determine in our reasonable discretion. You and any Key Personnel will be required to attend. We will not require you or your Key Person to attend more than two (2) conferences per year.
Alternative Supplier Evaluation Fee	Our actual costs	At the time of the evaluation	You must pay us our actual costs to review and evaluate an alternative supplier.
Late Fees to Third Parties	1.5% interest	With next payment to First Choice	If we advance a payment on your behalf due to late payment to a third party, you are responsible to pay us the amount paid with 1.5% interest.
Audit	Our costs of audit, plus 18% interest (or the highest rate allowed by law) on underpayment.	30 days after billing	If we conduct an audit that shows that you have underpaid us in an amount more than 2%.
Transfer fee	\$5,000	Due when you transfer ownership of the Franchise Agreement	
Costs of Default	Will vary	Upon settlement or conclusion of a claim	In the event of termination for any default by you, such sums shall include all damages, costs, and expenses, including attorney's fees and disbursements we incur as a result of the default, including Royalty Fees.
Costs of Enforcement and Attorney Fees	Will vary	Upon settlement or conclusion of a claim	You agree to pay all costs and expenses we incur, including attorney fees, us in connection with enforcement of the Franchise Agreement.
Indemnification	Will vary under the circumstances	Upon request or demand	You must reimburse us for the cost we incur if we are sued or held liable for claims that arise in your operation of the Franchised Business.

Notes:

1. All fees are imposed by, collected, and are payable to us. Unless otherwise noted, all fees are not refundable.

- 2. "Gross Sales" includes all consideration, whether by cash, credit, barter, or otherwise, derived directly or indirectly from your operation of the Franchised Business (from all sources, including but not limited to consulting revenues). "Gross Sales" does not include:
 - (a) the amount of any tax imposed by any federal, state, municipal or other governmental authority directly on sales and collected from customers, provided that the amount of any such tax is shown separately and, in fact, paid by Franchisee to the appropriate governmental authority; or
 - (b) all customer refunds, valid discounts and coupons, and credits made by the Franchise (exclusions will not include any reductions for credit card user fees, returned checks or reserves for bad credit or doubtful accounts).

Gross Sales consisting of property, products or services shall be valued at the retail prices applicable and in effect at the time that they are received.

3. You must pay all amounts due to us by automated clearinghouse ("ACH"). See Schedule 7 to the Franchise Agreement. We or our designee will debit your bank account for the Royalty Fees and any other amounts you owe us. You are required to make funds available for withdrawal from your account before each due date. If you pay any amount to us by credit card, we will charge a fee equal to a percentage of the total amount charged for card processing, currently 3%.

ITEM 7 ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT¹

Type of Expenditure (Note 1)		imated mount	Method of Payment	When Due	To Whom Payment is to be Made
	Low	High			
Initial Franchise Fee	\$40,000	\$40,000	Check, money order, EFT	Upon signing Franchise Agreement	Us
Initial Training/Marketing Fee (Note 2)	\$12,500	\$12,500	Check, money order, EFT	Upon signing Franchise Agreement	Us
Travel and Living Expenses to attend Training (Note 3)	\$100	\$2,500	Credit card	As Incurred	Outside Suppliers
Real Estate / Rent (Note 4)	\$0	\$2,500	Check	As Incurred	Landlord or other vendors
Real Estate Deposit and Improvements (Note 5)	\$0	\$1,500	Check	As Agreed	Outside Suppliers
Signs	\$1,250	\$2,250	Check or credit card	As Incurred	Outside Suppliers

Type of Expenditure (Note 1)		imated nount	Method of Payment	When Due	To Whom Payment is to be Made
Office Furniture, Equipment and Computers (Note 6)	\$3,000	\$5,000	Credit card	As Incurred	Outside Suppliers
Pre-Opening and Initial Advertising (Note 7)	\$1,550	\$3,100	Credit card	As Incurred	Vendors
Insurance (Note 8)	\$1,500	\$2,500	Check or credit card	As Incurred	Outside Suppliers
Vehicle Cost (Note 9)	\$500	\$1,500	Check or credit card	As Incurred	Vendors, Insurance Suppliers
Additional funds-3 Months (Note 10)	\$10,000	\$25,000	Check or credit card	As Incurred	Third party vendors
Estimated Initial Investment	\$70,400	\$98,350			

- 1. <u>Refundability; Financing</u>. Except where otherwise noted, all fees that you pay to us are non-refundable. Third-party lessors and suppliers will decide if payments to them are refundable. We do not finance any portion of the initial investment.
- 2. <u>Initial Training/Marketing Fee</u>. The Initial Training/Marketing Fee is \$12,500.
- 3. <u>Travel and Living Expenses to Attend Training</u>. Our initial training program is conducted through webinars and may also be held at our headquarters in Las Vegas, Nevada. You must pay the cost of any travel and living expenses to attend any onsite initial training programs. Your costs will vary depending on whether any travel or lodging is involved or not.
- Real Estate/Rent. You are not required to purchase real estate for the operation of your Franchised Business, and, if you have no agents (Associates), you may operate a home office as long as you have a professional meeting place to meet clients. We must approve your location. Because your costs may be higher, we recommend you consult with both a licensed real estate professional in your area and a local contractor to determine a more accurate cost for leased premises and improvements before signing a lease and/or the Franchise Agreement.
- 5. <u>Real Estate Deposit and Improvements</u>. Please note that there are substantial variations in the cost of leased premises and necessary improvements. You should look for space that does not require your making any leasehold improvements, but it may not always be possible to find office space which does not require any improvements to the space at all. Your costs for improving your space will vary, depending on the location and condition of the premises.

You may be required to make a security deposit as a condition of leasing the location for your Franchised Business. Typically, a landlord will require a security deposit equal to one month's rent and payment of one month's rent before giving you possession of the leased premises.

- 6. <u>Office Furniture, Equipment, and Computers</u>. You will need basic office furniture, equipment, and computers. Your costs will vary depending on the size of your office and how many of these items you may already have.
- 7. <u>Pre-Opening and Initial Advertising</u>. The pre-opening initial advertising in this item consists mainly of marketing materials, ad placements, regular consumer advertising, and listings on websites like bizbuysell.com. You may spend more if you wish to grow your Franchised Business faster.
- 8. <u>Insurance</u>. We describe our requirement that you purchase insurance in Item 8, which includes the types of insurance policies and minimum coverages you must obtain. Your insurance costs may vary.
- 9. <u>Vehicle Cost</u>. We do not require you to purchase or lease a vehicle for your Franchised Business. However, you will at times make site visits to your clients, so you must either have a vehicle or acquire one. Your vehicle costs may vary, depending on whether you need to purchase or lease a car or not and the age and type of car you have or acquire and fuel and insurance costs in your area.
- 10. Additional Funds-3 months. This line item estimates the funds (working capital) you will need to cover your pre- and post-opening expenses, which can include initial employee wages, utility deposits, accounting fees, legal fees, licenses, permit costs, sales taxes, and dues (including dues for belonging to such entities as Better Business Bureau, and Chamber of Commerce; you may choose to affiliate with other trade associations as you desire), as well as additional operating capital for other variable costs (e.g., electricity, telephone, heat, Internet service, Internet setup, etc.), paper, cleaning, and other supplies. It also includes the minimum initial inventory of the brochures, business cards, software, and other items that we require you to purchase prior to opening.

The amounts listed in this item are only an estimate, however, and there is no assurance that additional working capital will not be necessary during this start-up phase or after. The above figures do not include any provision for managerial salaries or draws by you based upon the assumption that you will be the full-time manager of the business. Your costs will depend on factors such as: how well you follow our methods and procedures, your management skill, experience, dedication, and business acumen, local economic conditions, the local market for your goods and services, the prevailing wage rate, competition, and the sales level reached during the initial period.

You should conduct your own independent investigation of the costs of opening a business sales / brokerage business in the geographic area in which you intend to open the Franchised Business. You should also review the figures stated this Estimated Initial Investment Item 7 carefully with a business advisor before making any decision to purchase a First Choice franchise.

In compiling this chart, we relied on the experience of our prior affiliate, Las Vegas 101, in running a similar concept to the franchise being offered to you, as well as the experience of our management team in franchising this concept.

ITEM 8 RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Goods or Services Required to be Purchased or Leased

Advertising Materials and Website

All advertising and promotion by you, in any manner or medium, must be conducted in a dignified manner and must conform to our standards and specifications. You will need to display the Marks in the manner required by us on all promotional materials used in the Business.

You must submit to us, for our prior written approval, samples of all advertising and promotional plans and materials that you desire to use that have not been prepared or previously approved by us. We have 15 days from the date that we receive your proposed advertising materials to approve or disapprove them. If we do not respond to you within 15 days of our receipt of your advertising materials, those materials are deemed approved. We are an approved supplier of advertising materials, but we are not the only approved supplier of advertising materials.

You are required to use our website services for your Franchised Business' website. We are the only approved supplier of website services. You are required to use certain third-party websites to advertise listings. We are not an approved supplier of the third-party websites.

Computer Hardware and Software

You must use the computer hardware and software that is compliant with our software system and programs. We are the only approved supplier of our online software system. We are not an approved supplier of the computer hardware.

Equipment, Furniture, Fixtures, and Signs

You are required to purchase equipment, furniture, fixtures, and signs pursuant to our specifications. We may designate suppliers for these items. We are not an approved supplier or the only approved supplier of the equipment, furniture, fixtures and signs.

Insurance

Insurance coverage must meet our minimum requirements, which we reserve the right to change from time to time.

You are required to have errors and omissions insurance in reference to the professional services provided by you and your agents with a minimum limit of liability of \$1,000,000 per occurrence. You must carry general liability insurance with a minimum limit of liability in respect to bodily injury or property damage of \$1,000,000 per occurrence, vehicle insurance with bodily injury / property damage limits of \$250,000 per person and \$500,000 per occurrence, and any insurance required by state law, such as worker's compensation.

All insurance policies, including the errors and omissions insurance, must name us as an additional insured party. We are not an approved supplier or the only approved supplier of the required insurance policies.

Site

You are not required to purchase real estate for the operation of your Franchised Business, and, if you have no agents (Associates), you may operate a home office as long as you have a professional meeting place to meet clients. We must approve your location. We have the right to approve your Franchised Business lease or sublease and to require that it include certain provisions including our right to the premises of your Franchised Business if the franchise is terminated or not renewed or if you lose possession because of your default under the lease. We are not an approved supplier or the only approved supplier of a location for your Franchised Business.

Training

You and any Key Personnel must attend our training before you open your Franchised Business. If you hire any Associates, they must also attend Initial Training within 30 days of hiring. We are the only approved supplier of the required training.

Officer Interests in Suppliers

Our officers, Jeff Nyman and Linda Nyman-Hentges, own an interest in us. Neither of our officers owns an interest in any of our other approved suppliers.

Alternative Suppliers

We do not generally make available to you criteria for supplier approval. If you wish to purchase or offer any product(s) that has not previously been approved by us, you may ask for us to approve such products(s). If you want to purchase the items from an unapproved supplier, you must submit to us a written request for such approval. You or your proposed supplier will be required to pay our any reasonable and actual costs that we incur for inspection and testing. If the supplier proposed by you meets our criteria, we will permit you to contract with that approved supplier.

Other than our costs of inspection or testing, we do not charge a fee for approval. We will respond to any request for approval and inspection by issuing an approval or disapproval within a reasonable time, but no more than thirty (30) days after we receive from you a request for inspection. We revoke supplier approvals in our Operations Manual or through another informational bulletin.

<u>Issuance and Modification of Specifications</u>

We issue and modify specifications to franchisees and approved suppliers in our Operations Manual or other informational bulletins.

Revenue from Required Purchases

In the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021, we earned \$207,249 from required purchases representing 19.7% of our total Revenue of \$1,052,951.

Our affiliates did not derive any revenue from required purchases or leases by our franchisees.

Required Purchases and Leases as a Proportion of Costs

We estimate that your required purchases and leases comprise between 42% and 59% of your initial cost of establishing your Franchised Business, and between 15% and 25% of your ongoing costs of operating the Franchised Business.

Supplier Payments to Us

At present, suppliers do not make payments to us from franchisee purchases. However, we reserve the right to receive supplier payments for franchisee purchases.

Purchasing or Distribution Cooperatives

There are currently no purchasing or distribution cooperatives within the System.

Purchase Arrangements

We do not currently negotiate purchase arrangements with suppliers, including price terms, for the benefit of franchisees, but reserve the right to do so.

Material Benefits

We do not provide material benefits to you based on your use of a particular supplier. However, in order to renew your franchise agreement, you must be in compliance with it, including supplier standards, and we can terminate your franchise agreement if you breach it.

ITEM 9 FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other items of this disclosure document.

	Section in	Disclosure
Obligation	Agreement	Document item
(a) Site selection and acquisition/lease	Sections 1.2 and 3.4	Items 7, 8, 11, and 12
(b) Pre-opening purchases/leases	Sections 5.1 and 7.9	Items 6, 7, 8, and 11

Obligation	Section in Agreement	Disclosure Document item
(c) Site development and other preopening requirements	Section 5, 7.2	Items 7, 8, and 11
(d) Initial and ongoing training	Section 6	Items 5, 6, 7, 8 and 11
(e) Opening	Sections 5 and 7	Item 11
(f) Fees	Sections 2.2, 4, 6.1, 6.2, 6.3, 7.7, 7.14, 11.4, 12.1, 14.3.4, 16.5, 16.6, 17.6, 25.12; Schedule 3	Items 5, 6, 7, 8, 11
(g) Compliance with standards and policies/Operating Manual	Sections 7 and 9	Items 8 and 11
(h) Trademarks and proprietary information	Sections 8, and 10	Items 11, 13, 14, and 16
(i) Restrictions on products/services offered	Sections 7.5-7.9	Items 8, 11, 12, and 16
(j) Warranty and customer service requirements	Section 7.11	Item 11
(k) Territorial development and sales quotas	None	Not applicable
(l) Ongoing product/service purchases	Section 7.5-7.9	Items 6 and 8
(m) Maintenance, appearance and space requirements	Section 7.3, 7.4	Items 8, 11, 16, and 17
(n) Insurance	Section 13	Items 7 and 8
(o) Advertising	Sections 4.3, 5.1, and 12	Items 6, 7, 8, and 11
(p) Indemnification	Section 20	Item 6
(q) Owner's participation/management/staffing	Sections 6, 7 and 17	Items 11 and 15
(r) Records and reports	Sections 7.10.6 and 11	Item 11
(s) Inspections and audits	Sections 7.13 and 11	Items 6 and 11
(t) Transfer	Section 14	Item 6 and 17
(u) Renewal	Section 2.2	Item 17
(v) Post-termination obligations	Section 16	Item 17
(w) Non-competition covenants	Sections 10,17.2, 17.3 and 17.7	Items 15 and 17
(x) Dispute resolution	Section 25	Item 6 and 17

ITEM 10 FINANCING

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your note, lease or other obligation.

ITEM 11 FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

Before you open the Business, we will:

- 1. Conduct a minimum of five (5) days of initial training. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.1.2);
- 2. Assist you in determining a location to be the Approved Location of the Franchise. We may delegate this responsibility to an area representative, if we have one responsible for the area that includes your Franchise. Our current area representatives, and the areas they are responsible for, are identified in Exhibit I. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.1.3);
- 3. Assist you in the layout of the Franchise and equipment selection process (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.1.4);
- 4. Supply you with our First Choice Opening Guide, Plan of Action for Franchise Success, and Complete Operations Manual (together, the "Manual"). (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.1.5);
- 5. Provide you with your list of approved and/or designated suppliers. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.1.6);
- 6. Supply you with the First Choice proprietary systems and Proprietary Marks. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.1.7);
- 7. Supply you with the recommended sales tracking system and the weekly/monthly reporting system (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.1.8); and
- 8. If you will have agents / brokers ("Associates") working at your Franchised Business other than yourself and any Key Personnel, we will train those Associates either online or at a designated training facility. (Franchise Agreement, Section 6.1.2).

Site Selection

You are responsible for selecting a location for the operation of your franchise. Your location must be approved by us. (Franchise Agreement, Sections 1.3 and 3.1.3).

We will not unreasonably withhold our acceptance of a site for your Franchised Business that meets our requirements. Any location which is not home-based will require you to select a location within the Area of Operations from which to operate the Franchised Business; the location of the office needs to be approved to ensure it is not in conflict with another First Choice location. We will note any Approved Location on Schedule 1 of the Franchise Agreement. Acceptance by us of a location is conditioned upon our determination, in our judgment, that:

- (i) the site which you have submitted for the Franchised Business is within your Area of Operations and is a suitable site based upon criteria we establish from time to time; and
- (ii) you and your owners are in compliance with the Franchise Agreement.

The factors that we consider in acceptance of the site include population demographics, neighborhood, and physical characteristics of the premises, such as size and layout. We evaluate each proposed site and accept or do not accept each one on a case-by-case basis.

We will approve or disapprove of your proposed location for the Franchised Business within 15 business days of our receiving from you the proposed location. If we do not approve the location that you select, we will give you 30 days from the date we disapprove your location to select and propose to us an alternate location within your Area of Operations. If you and we cannot agree on a location for your Franchised Business, we will terminate your Franchise Agreement and retain your full initial franchise fee payment, which we deem to be fully earned. (Franchise Agreement, Sections 1.3, 1.4).

Time Before Opening

We estimate that there will be an interval of time of 30 to 90 days between the execution of the Franchise Agreement and the opening of your Franchised Business. You are required to open the business within 120 days of signing the Agreement, unless we agree otherwise in writing. The factors that may affect this length of time include obtaining a satisfactory site and a lease, obtaining permits and licenses, your compliance with zoning and local ordinances, remodeling and decorating, installation of software and computer systems, training, weather conditions, obtaining marketing materials, hiring as needed and obtaining financing arrangements.

During the operation of your business, we will:

- 1. Provide telephone support and training at or about the time of the opening of the Franchise. If you have an area representative, your area representative may provide these services to you. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.2.1);
- 2. Provide marketing assistance during the opening period and provide continued support. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.2.2);
- 3. Provide updates, as necessary, modifications and/or changes to the Manual. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.2.3);

- 4. Provide you, at our option, with location visits and corresponding franchise visitation reports. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.2.4);
- 5. At our sole discretion, conduct a mystery business for sale program to ensure product service quality. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.2.5);
- 6. Provide support for your questions related to the operation of the Franchise. We may delegate this responsibility to an area representative, if we have one responsible for the area that includes your Franchise. Our current area representatives, and the areas they are responsible for, are identified in Exhibit I. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.2.6);
- 7. Develop new products and/or methods, and provide you with information about any such developments (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.2.7);
- 8. We may hold conferences, additional training courses, or seminars to discuss and instruct you in techniques, performance standards, personnel training, bookkeeping, accounting, marketing programs, new products, marketing and general operating procedures. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.2.8);
- 9. Provide on-going training and support services. If you have an area representative, your area representative may provide these services to you. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.2.9);
- 10. We may administer, or appoint a third party to administer, a marketing fund. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.2.10);
- 11. Approve or disapprove samples of all local advertising and promotional materials not prepared or previously approved by us which are submitted by you. (Franchise Agreement, Sections 12.4 and 12.6);
- 12. Let you use our Marks and confidential information. (Franchise Agreement, Section 8);
- 13. We may suggest prices to you for the sale of products and services, but you will not be required at any time to sell at or above such suggested prices. You may determine the prices at which you sell the products and services of the Franchise, as well as the terms and conditions of sale for such products and services. (Franchise Agreement, Section 7.8).

Marketing Fund

We may in the future establish a marketing fund in the future for system-wide marketing and promotion of the System (the "Fund"). If we establish such fund, you must contribute \$250 per month ("Marketing Contribution"). We reserve the right to increase this fee by 10% per year. (Franchise Agreement, Section 12.1).

The Fund will be maintained and administered by us or our designee, as follows:

- 1. We will direct all marketing programs, with sole discretion over the concepts, materials, and media used in the programs, along with their placement and allocation. The Fund is intended to maximize general public recognition, acceptance, and use of the System; and we are not obligated, in administering the Fund, to make expenditures for you that are equivalent or proportionate to your contribution. Any FIRST CHOICE Office operated by us or our affiliate(s) will contribute to the Fund in the same percentage, and at the same times, as our franchisees.
- 2. The Fund, all contributions, and any of its earnings will be used exclusively to meet any and all costs of maintaining, administering, directing, conducting, and preparing advertising, marketing, public relations and/or promotional programs and materials, Websites (as defined below), and any other local, regional or national activities which we believe will increase brand awareness or enhance the image of the System. The Fund may disseminate advertising by radio, television, print, the Internet, or otherwise. The Fund may also be used to provide rebates or reimbursements to our franchisees for expenditures on products, services, or improvements we approve in advance, which products, services, or improvements we deem, in our sole discretion, will promote general public awareness and favorable support for the System.
- 3. You may be required to contribute to the Fund by electronic funds transfer as we may specify. All sums paid to the Fund will be maintained in an account separate from our other monies and will not be used to defray any of our expenses, except for the reasonable costs and overhead, if any, as we may incur in activities reasonably related to the administration, direction, and implementation of the Fund. The Fund and its earnings will not otherwise inure to our benefit, and the marketing contributions to and earnings of the Fund are not and will not be our asset. The Fund may lend money and incur debt in the furtherance of its general purposes.
- 4. It is anticipated that all contributions to and earnings of the Fund will be expended for marketing and/or promotional purposes during the taxable year within which the contributions and earnings are received. If, however, excess amounts remain in the Fund at the end of a taxable year, all expenditures in the following taxable year(s) will be made first out of accumulated earnings from previous years, next out of earnings in the current year, and finally from contributions.
- 5. We will maintain separate bookkeeping accounts for the Fund. An unaudited statement of the operations of the Fund will be prepared annually and you may obtain a copy by written request to us.
- 6. Although the Fund is intended to be of perpetual duration, we maintain the right to terminate the Fund; provided that we will use any unexpended monies in the Fund for marketing and/or promotional purposes for the System.
- 7. The Fund will not be used for advertising or promotion whose sole purpose is to solicit the sale of franchises. However, we reserve the right to include a notation in any advertisement indicating "Franchises Available." Other advertising and promotional material may also

reflect the availability of franchises.

The advertising requirements are uniform to all franchisees that have signed a Franchise Agreement with us, and are not refundable.

The advertising fees collected by us are not collected on behalf of any third parties, except to the extent such fees are imposed on behalf of third-party advertising agencies, media sources and other sources of advertising selected in accordance with the Franchise Agreement.

Other than the Fund, we are not required to have any advertising program for the franchise system. We are not obligated to conduct advertising of any type for the System or for your Franchised Business.

In our last fiscal year ending December 31, 2022, we did not raise or spend any Marketing Contributions.

Local Advertising

You may develop advertising materials for your own use, at your own costs. All advertising, promotion, and marketing must be completely clear, factual, and not misleading, and must conform to both the highest standards of ethical advertising and marketing and the advertising and marketing policies that we periodically require (Franchise Agreement, Section 12.4).

We must approve all advertising materials (including collateral materials and campaigns, broadcast, print or other media) in advance of using the materials. For all proposed advertising, marketing, and promotional materials that we have not supplied to you or previously approved, you must submit samples of these plans and materials to us, for our review and prior approval. If you do not receive written approval from us within 15 days of the date of our receipt of the samples or materials, we will be deemed to have approved them. You may not use any advertising, promotional, or marketing materials that we have not approved or have disapproved

We do not have local or regional advertising cooperatives, nor do we require you to participate in such a cooperative. We do not have an advertising council composed of franchisees.

We<u>bsites</u>

Websites (as defined below) are considered as "advertising" under the Franchise Agreement and are subject (among other things) to our review and prior written approval before they may be used (as described above). The term "Website" means an interactive electronic document contained in a network of computers linked by communications software that you operate or authorize others to operate and that refers to the FIRST CHOICE Business, Marks, us, or the System. The term Website includes Internet and World Wide Web home pages, as well as any identity on a social networking site like Facebook, LinkedIn, Instagram, or Twitter.

In connection with any Website, the Franchise Agreement provides that you cannot establish a Website related to the Marks or the System, nor may you offer, promote, or sell any products or

services, or make any use of the Marks, through the Internet without our prior written approval. A Website will be created and maintained for you by our outside supplier, which will be paid for by you through the monthly software fee that we charge you.

Because we expect that each FIRST CHOICE Business Brokerage will have a strong presence in its community, you must establish an account with each of Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter and any other social or networking Websites we specify, and these accounts must comply with our guidelines including posting of content and representation of the Marks. If any objectionable content is posted to one of these accounts, you will have 12 hours after notice from us to remove it. If the objectionable content is not removed within this 12-hour period, we have the right to terminate your Franchise Agreement. Any other on-line presence that you wish to establish must have our prior written consent. You must provide us with all the user IDs and passwords related to each on-line account you establish.

Computer System.

You must obtain and use in your Business a Windows compatible computer with high-speed Internet access, following these minimum guidelines:

Category	Operating Requirements			
Operating System and	Currently supported Windows Operating System			
Software	Currently supported Microsoft Office Professional			
	Appropriate Antivirus Software			
	Current versions of Adobe Acrobat			
Processor Speed,	Adequate to operate the above software			
Memory,				
Disk Space				
Connectivity	LAN Internet Connection			
Printer / Fax / Scanner	All in One Color Laser (HP Suggested)			
Communications	2 business lines			
	1 fax line			
Internet	Broadband connection			

You may obtain your computer hardware from any vendor so long as the computer system meets our requirements. You will be solely responsible for the acquisition, operation, maintenance, and upgrading of the computer system. We reserve the right to change the computer system at any time. We need not reimburse you for any costs that you incur due to a change in the computer system. We estimate that the cost of the computer system and other equipment listed above is between \$500 and \$2,000.

Neither we, nor any affiliate or third party, is obligated to provide ongoing maintenance, repairs, upgrades or updates for the computer system; however, we will do so to the extent practicable under the circumstances.

We currently do not require that you purchase a maintenance, repair, upgrade or update service contract for the computer system, but we reserve the right to do so in the future. The current annual cost of a service contract is about \$1,500.

Online Software Systems

You are required to lease from us a customized online software system, at a monthly rate of \$350, plus \$145/month per Agent. This fee also covers the creation and operation of a website that we will design and operate for you. We may adjust the lease amount by up to 20% annually after you have been a franchisee for 1 year. Upgrades to the software may be required periodically.

We will have independent access to the data and information that is collected under the computer system, and there are no contractual limitations on our independent access to this data and information.

Operations Manual

Exhibit H contains the Table of Contents to our Operations Manual. The Manual presently contains 398 pages.

Training

TRAINING PROGRAM

CHRIEGE	HOURS OF	HOURS OF ON-THE-	LOCATION
SUBJECT	CLASSROOM TRAINING	JOB TRAINING	LOCATION
Operation of the First	8		See Note 1
Choice systems			
Getting started in	6		
Business Brokerage &			
Office Setup			
Determining your	2		
Marketing Area.			
Personal Goals for your	2		
Franchise			
Business Valuation	6		
System– Recasting &			
Pricing a Business			
Preparation of	6		
documents			
In depth Case Studies	6		
Client relations, sales	3		
and business			
development			
Methods of presentation	2		
of the business.			
Working with Buyers	6		
and Sellers			
Buyer/Seller Meetings	5		
Closing the Transaction	3		

SUBJECT	HOURS OF CLASSROOM TRAINING	HOURS OF ON-THE- JOB TRAINING	LOCATION
Franchisee Legal	1		
Compliance and			
Reporting Requirements			
Building Referrals	3		
Training Plans	3		
Financing Methods	4		
Office Management	6		
System (OMS)			
Growing Your Asset	3		
Time Management			
Building your Team of	3		
Associates			
Managing Your	3		
Associates			
Helping Associates	1		
achieve their Personal			
Goals			
Your Office Procedures	3		
Royalty Reporting	2		
Totals	91		

Note 1: We hold initial training online. Training programs are held monthly or as needed throughout the year.

Our training program consists of a minimum of five days of instruction for you and your Key Personnel through our online First Choice University (FCU) Training Program. After completing FCU Training, you will be invited to a minimum of five live webinar reviews (each review comprising of 3.5 hours) of the FCU material. (See Franchise Agreement, Section 6.1).

The Operations Manual will be used as the principal instructional material for the training program.

Jeffrey Nyman, Linda Hentges-Nyman, Freddie McFinn, and Trent Lee teach our initial training classes. We describe the nature and length of experience of our Instructors:

Chief Executive Officer: Jeffrey D. Nyman

Jeffrey D. Nyman has served as our Chief Executive Officer and co-founder Since August 2005. From August 2005 until January 2020, Mr. Nyman also served as our Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Nyman has also served as a franchisee of ours in Las Vegas and California since 2019. Mr. Nyman also served from 1996 to 2019 as President and Secretary of our prior affiliate, Las Vegas 101. Mr. Nyman is also the co-Founder and President of the Nevada Business Brokers Association and is a Board Member of the Las Vegas Commercial Alliance. Mr. Nyman is a member of the State of Nevada Real Estate Commission Advisory Council and co-author of the State of Nevada Business Brokers Permit License test.

President and Chief Operations Officer: Linda Hentges-Nyman

Linda Hentges-Nyman has served as our President since June 2012. Ms. Nyman has also served as a franchisee of ours in Las Vegas and California since 2019. Ms. Hentges-Nyman has also

served as our Chief Operations Officer ("COO") and co-founder since our inception in August 2005. Ms. Hentges-Nyman also served from 1996 to 2019 as the Treasurer of our prior affiliate, Las Vegas 101. Linda was co-author of the State of Nevada Business Brokers Permit License test.

<u>Freddie McFinn, Business Broker</u>. Mr. McFinn has been a Business Broker since 1981. First in Los Angeles, CA where he worked for some of the largest Business Brokerage companies rising to management positions Freddie was also President of Pace Investments in Beverly Hills, a boutique business brokerage formed by him and two attorneys. Freddie moved to Las Vegas in 1994 where he continued his Business Brokerage career. Freddie actively works with Buyers and Sellers regardless of whether its large multi-million dollar one or a small mom and pop business. Over the last two years Freddie's focus has been on the sale of medical practices by diligently guiding buyer and sellers through the purchase and sale process and every step of the way bringing decades of experience to each transaction. He attended Long Island University and C.W. Post.

<u>Trent Lee, Business Broker</u>. Mr. Lee has served as the Owner and a Business Broker for Trent Lee, LLC (a franchisee of ours) in Las Vegas, Nevada since February 2018. From January 2015 to the present, Mr. Lee also served as the Owner and Trainer for Trent Lee Agency, LLC in Las Vegas, Nevada. From January 2012, Mr. Lee has served as the Owner of Product Stop, LLC in Las Vegas, Nevada. Mr. Lee has been honored with the award for highest number of closed transactions in the USA by our National Association (IBBA), for 2019, 2020 and 2021.

You are not required to pay any charges to attend initial training. Because initial training is conducted online, we do not anticipate that you will incur any travel or living expenses to attend initial training.

Before you commence operation of the Franchised Business, you and your Key Personnel must attend and successfully complete our training program for new franchisees to our satisfaction. We may require additional training programs or refresher courses.

ITEM 12 TERRITORY

Area of Operations

Your franchise will be for a specific location within a geographical area that we designate as your "Area of Operations." Your specific location, which we call your "Approved Location," must be approved by us.

Your Area of Operations will be described on Schedule 1 attached to the Franchise Agreement. Typically, your Area of Operations will include a minimum population of 325,000, as determined by the US Census Bureau, or another source we deem reliable, and will be defined by zip codes, natural or political boundaries.

Relocation of your Franchised Business

You will operate your Franchised Business from one location within your Area of Operations and must receive our permission before relocating. If you wish to relocate your franchise, you may

request our consent to relocate to another Approved Location within your Area of Operations. We will not unreasonably withhold our consent, but such consent must be in writing to be effective.

Rights of First Refusal

We do not customarily grant to franchisees options, rights of first refusal or similar rights to acquire additional franchises, although we do retain the right to do so within our sole discretion.

Non-Exclusive Territory

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control. However, you will receive a territory containing a geographic area within which we promise not to establish either a company-owned or franchised outlet selling the same or similar goods or services under the same or similar trademarks or service marks (your Area of Operations). Other franchisees and/or their agents will be permitted to work with their clients who have a business located in your Area of Operations, but they will not be permitted to mass market into your Area of Operations.

Continuation of your territorial rights depends on achieving a minimum of \$200,000 in Gross Sales by the end of your third year of operations and each year after that. If you acquire an Area of Operations with previous operations, the age of the Area of Operations is determined by the length of time of franchise operations in that Area of Operations, regardless of who was the owner of the Area of Operations. If you do not meet this minimum, we may serve a notice to cure upon you and terminate your exclusivity within your Area of Operations.

We may also modify your Area of Operations upon renewal if there is a population increase in your area in order that your Area of Operations maintain roughly the same population upon renewal as when you first acquired your franchise.

Restrictions on Solicitation

We or an affiliate reserve the right to use other channels of distribution, such as the Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing sales, to make sales within your Area of Operations using our principal trademarks.

We or an affiliate also reserve the right to use other channels of distribution, such as the Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing sales, to make sales within your Area of Operations of products or services under trademarks different from the ones that you will use under the franchise agreement.

You and other franchisees also may solicit and transact business in any jurisdiction in which you or they may legally do so, including through other channels of distribution, such as the internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing, to make sales outside your Area of Operations, provided that such advertising is consistent with our advertising standards, any cross territorial protocols we adopt, and you do not engage in mass marketing outside your Area of

Operations. Mass marketing is defined as a concentrated effort or plan through mail, emails, telephone, in person visits, or such other means as we designate, to business locations to obtain business listings.

We are not obligated to pay compensation to you for soliciting or accepting orders from inside your Area of Operations.

You may solicit and accept orders from customers outside your Area of Operations, including through other channels of distribution such as catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing.

Neither we nor any affiliate operates, franchises, or has plans to operate or franchise a business under a different trademark which such business sells or will sell goods or services similar to those you will offer, but we reserve the right to do so.

ITEM 13 TRADEMARKS

The franchise agreement licenses to you the right to use the following principal trademarks ("Marks") registered or applied for with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office ("USPTO"):

Mark	Principal / Supplemental Register of USPTO	Registration Date	Registration Number
FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS (Word mark)	Principal	December 30, 2008	3554190
FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS (Logo)	Principal	November 18, 2008	3534142

We have filed all required affidavits relating to the registered Marks shown above.

There are presently no effective determinations by the USPTO, the Trademark Trial And Appeal Board, the Trademark Administrator of any state or any court, nor any pending interference, opposition or cancellation proceeding or material litigation involving our Marks.

We have no pending infringement, opposition, or cancellation proceedings. We have no pending material litigation involving marks that are material to the franchise. We have no agreements that significantly limit our rights to use or license the use of our Marks that are material to the Franchised Business. We do not know of superior prior rights or infringing uses that could materially affect your use of our principal trademarks in your state.

If any claim is filed against you relating to your proper use of our Marks, you must notify us immediately and cooperate with any action by us. We are not obligated to defend or indemnify

you for damages you incur in any claim, action or proceeding brought by any person against you claiming to have superior rights to the Marks, but we may do so in our sole discretion. To be eligible for us to defend or indemnify you, you must follow the Franchise Agreement and be using the Marks according to our rules.

We will have discretion to take any action we deem appropriate and the right to control exclusively any settlement, litigation, or administrative or other proceeding relating to any infringement, challenge or claim or otherwise relating to any Mark.

You must modify or discontinue use of any of the Marks if we modify or discontinue such use. If this happens, we will reimburse you for your tangible costs of compliance. You must not directly or indirectly contest any right to our Marks, trade secrets, or business techniques that are a part of our business.

You will not receive any interest in the Marks. You may not at any time contest the validity or ownership of the Marks, including any Marks which we license to you after you sign the Franchise Agreement. All of your usage of the Marks and any goodwill established from their use will inure to our benefit and the benefit of our successor(s) or affiliate(s).

<u>ITEM 14</u> PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

No patents are material to the franchise. We claim copyright protection of the Manuals and related materials, system software and other brand identity/marketing/advertisement/promotional materials. We have not registered all of these copyrights with the United States Copyright Office, but do not need to do so at this time to protect them. These materials are considered proprietary and confidential and are considered our property and may be used by you only as provided in the Franchise Agreement. We reserve the right to register any of our copyrighted materials at any time we deem appropriate. You may use these items only as we specify while operating your Business (and must stop using them if we so direct you).

Certain other software programs used by FIRST CHOICE Offices may be protected by copyrights owned by independent third parties and licensed to us for our use and the use of our franchisees. We may or may not apply for other copyrights and service marks in the future.

There currently are no effective determinations of the Copyright Office or any court regarding any of the copyrighted materials. There are no agreements in effect that significantly limit our right to use or license the copyrighted materials. There are no infringing uses actually known to us, which could materially affect your use of the copyrighted materials in any state. We are not required by any agreement to protect or defend you for any use by you of a patent, trademark, or copyright.

We possess certain confidential information including the methods, techniques, formats, specifications, procedures, information, systems and knowledge of and experience in the operation and franchising of FIRST CHOICE Offices (the "Confidential Information"). We will disclose certain of the Confidential Information to you during the training programs, seminars and conventions, in the Manuals and in guidance furnished to you during the term of the Franchise

Agreement. We claim proprietary rights in all of our Confidential Information, in whatever form it exists. You will not acquire any interest in the Confidential Information other than the right to utilize it in the development and operation of a FIRST CHOICE Office during the term of the Franchise Agreement.

We consider our Manuals Confidential Information. You will receive one copy of the Manuals on loan from us during the training program that is required under the Franchise Agreement, and you must retain it for the term of the Franchise Agreement and update it periodically as directed by us. You are required, at all times, to treat the Manuals, any other manuals or written directions or instructions regarding the operation of the Franchised Business, and the information they contain as secret and confidential. We may revise the Manuals, and you will be required comply with each new or changed standard, although these new and changed standards will not materially affect your rights and responsibilities under the Franchise Agreement.

All ideas, concepts, techniques, or materials concerning a FIRST CHOICE Office, whether or not protectable intellectual property and whether created by or for you or your owners or employees, must be promptly disclosed to us and will be deemed to be our sole and exclusive property, part of the System. You are required to assign to us ownership of that item, and all related rights to that item, and you must take whatever action (including signing assignment or other documents) we request to show our ownership or to help us obtain intellectual property rights to the item.

ITEM 15 OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

As a franchisee, you are encouraged but not required to personally operate your Franchised Business. In either case, there are no restrictions on your ability to hire employees or appoint agents to operate or assist you in the operation of your franchise business.

Personal "on-premises" supervision is not required of individual or business entity franchisees but we strongly recommend on-premises supervision. If you choose not to personally supervise your franchise, we do not place any limits on who you can hire as an on-premises supervisor (your Key Personnel). However, any Key Personnel you hire or appoint must successfully complete our training program. We do not require your Key Personnel to have any equity interest in your business. Your Key Personnel need not have an ownership interest in the Franchised Business.

Our franchise model allows (but does not require) you to build a team of Associates. Associates are independent contractors (and not employees) with whom you have an arms' length contractual relationship. Under no circumstances will your Associates be deemed an employee of ours, and your contract with each Associate must clearly state that his or her contractual relationship is with you, and not us, and that we are not a party to the contract.

At our request, you must obtain and furnish to us non-disclosure and non-competition covenants in a form and substance satisfactory to us (including covenants applicable upon the termination of a person's relationship with you) from any or all of the following persons: (a) the Key Personnel; (b) all managers and any other personnel employed by you who have received or will receive

training from us; and (c) all officers, directors, partners, principals, lenders, and other holders of a beneficial interest of five percent or more of your securities or equity interests, and of any corporation or other entity directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under common control with you. Our current form Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement is attached to the Franchise Agreement as <u>Schedule 5</u>.

You are required to have those individuals with an ownership interest in the Franchised Business enter into the Guaranty, Indemnification and Acknowledgement attached to both the Franchise Agreement as Schedule 2.

ITEM 16 RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You can offer, rent, and sell only those goods and services that conform to our standards and specifications. You need to comply with the standards and policies in the Manuals. All goods and services offered in your business must be approved by us. We may add additional authorized services and products that you must offer, and delete items when we deem appropriate, and there are no limits on our right to do so.

You may determine the prices at which you sell the products and services of the Franchised Business, as well as the terms and conditions of sale for such products and services. We may, from time to time, suggest prices to you for the sale of products and services, but you will not be required at any time to sell at or above such suggested prices.

You may accept business from outside your Area of Operations. You can also place advertising in media within or directly solicit orders within your Area of Operations without special permission from us. Other franchisees in your Area of Operations may accept business from and provide services to customers regardless of their proximity to your Approved Location without special permission from us. You can also place advertising in media within or directly solicit orders anywhere within your Area of Operations without special permission from us. You may not mass market into another Franchisee's Area of Operation. Mass marketing is defined as a concentrated effort or plan through mail, emails, telephone, in person visits, or such other means as we designate, to business locations to obtain business listings.

ITEM 17 RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

The table lists important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

PROVISION	SECTION IN FRANCHISE AGREEMENT	SUMMARY
a. Length of the franchise	2.1	Agreement starts on signing and ends 10 years thereafter.
term		

PROVISION	SECTION IN FRANCHISE AGREEMENT	SUMMARY
b. Renewal or extension of the term	2.2	If you are in good standing and meet our conditions for renewal, you will be granted the opportunity to obtain a successor to your franchise agreement for an unlimited number of additional 10-year terms.
c. Requirements for franchisee to renew or extend	2.2	In order to renew your franchise, you must: (a) Give us written notice; (b) Not be in default; (c) Have satisfied all of your monetary obligations; (d) Execute our then-current form of Franchise Agreement, which may contain materially different terms and conditions than the current agreement; (e) Comply with our then-current qualification and training requirements for new franchisees; and (f) Execute a general release. If you seek to acquire a successor franchise at the expiration of the initial term or any renewal term, you may be asked to sign
		a new franchise agreement that contains terms and conditions materially different from those in your previous franchise agreement, like different fee requirements and territorial rights.
d. Termination by franchisee	15	You may terminate upon any grounds available under applicable law, by selling your franchise pursuant to the franchise agreement, or by not renewing.
e. Termination by franchisor without cause	15	Not applicable.
f. Termination by franchisor with cause	15.1	We can terminate the Agreement by notice to you, with or without a cure period, if you breach a material provision of the Franchise Agreement.
g. "Cause" defined – curable defaults	15.2	You will have thirty (30) days after notice to cure defaults relating to your:
		(a) failure to pay fees that you owe us, our affiliates, or vendors, or fail to submit to us financial information as required under the Franchise Agreement;
		(b) failure to operate the Franchise in strict compliance with all of the standards or procedure outlined in the Franchise Agreement, in the Manual or otherwise in writing or failure to promptly pay all expenses;
		(c) failure to obtain our prior written approval or consent, where required;
		(d) engage in any business or market any service or product under a name or mark which, in our opinion, is confusingly similar to the Marks.
		Any default not specifically listed in Section 15.1 of the Franchise Agreement must be cured within thirty (30) days of notice.
h. "Cause" defined – non-curable defaults	15.1	You will not have an opportunity to cure defaults, and we are entitled to terminate the Franchise Agreement upon notice, if you:
		(a) are insolvent;

PROVISION	SECTION IN FRANCHISE AGREEMENT	SUMMARY
		(b) or your Key Personnel fail to satisfactorily complete our initial training program; (c) fail to open the Franchise within the required time limits; (d) abandon the franchise or lose the right to transact business in the legal jurisdiction where your Office is located; (e) Or any of your officers, directors, partners, or principals are convicted of a criminal offense or engage in conduct that we believe is reasonably likely to have an adverse effect on the System; (f) make an unauthorized transfer of the business; (g) fail to consummate an approved transfer within the time required following your death or mental incapacity; (h) violate any covenant not to compete or relating to confidential information; (i) knowingly maintain false books or records, or submit false reports to us; (j) misuse our Marks or any aspect of the System, or otherwise materially impair the goodwill associated with the System; (k) Refuse to permit us to inspect your Office, books, records, or accounts; (l) Upon receiving from us a notice of default, fail to immediately initiate a remedy to cure your default; (m) receive from us more than three (3) notices of default under the Franchise Agreement within a twelve (12) month period, regardless of whether you cured those defaults; or (n) breach any material term of the Computer System User License Agreement, except for those terms relating to
i. Franchisee's obligations on termination/non-renewal	16, 17	payment. Upon termination you shall cease operating as a FIRST CHOICE Office, pay all sums due to us, cease to use the Marks and our software/database, cancel any fictitious name which contains the Marks, turn over all Manuals, records, files and any materials relating to the operation of the Franchised Business, cancel or transfer all telephone numbers and directory listings to us, and comply with all covenants.
j. Assignment of contract by franchisor	14.1	We may transfer the Franchise Agreement without your consent.
k. "Transfer" by franchisee – defined	14	Includes transfer of contract, the Franchised Business, assets, or ownership change
Franchisor approval of transfer by franchisee	14.2	We have the right to approve all transfers but we will not unreasonably withhold approval.
m. Conditions for franchisor approval of transfer	14.3	We have the right to condition our approval of any transfer proposed by you upon the following: (a) You must be in full compliance with the Franchise Agreement and pay all outstanding fees owed to us or our affiliates; (b) We must have declined our right of first refusal; (c) Your transferee must have been approved in writing by us; (d) Your transferee must execute our then-current form of franchise agreement, which may contain terms and conditions

PROVISION	SECTION IN FRANCHISE AGREEMENT	SUMMARY
		materially different from those in your existing franchise agreement; (e) You must pay us a transfer fee; (f) You and your owners must execute a general release; and (g) You must re-affirm to us that you are liable for all obligations you owe to us that arose prior to the effective date of the transfer; (h) Your transferee and/or its Key Personnel must, at your transferee's expense, undergo a minimum of five (5) days of training at our corporate facility in Las Vegas, Nevada, or at a location designated by us; and (i) Your transferee must enter into a written assignment agreeing to discharge all of your obligations under the Agreement, and must guarantee the performance of all such obligations.
n. Franchisor's right of first refusal to acquire franchisee's business	14.5	You must give us written notice of intent to sell or otherwise transfer the Franchise Agreement. We have 30 days from the date that you give written notice to determine whether we will exercise our right of first refusal. We can match any bona fide written offer for your Franchised Business.
o. Franchisor's option to purchase franchisee's business	14	Not applicable.
p. Death or disability of franchisee	14.6	In the event of legal incapacity, the heirs, legal representatives, etc. must, within 120 days, either (i) apply to us for the right to continue to operate the Franchise (if they are qualified) or (ii) sell, assign, transfer or convey the interest.
q. Non-competition covenants during the term of the franchise	17.2	You must not be in a competing business anywhere and must not attempt to divert customers of the Franchised Business to any competitive business.
r. Non-competition covenants after the franchise is terminated or expires	17.3	You will not engage in a competing business within a 20-mile radius of your Approved Location or Area of Operations using the Marks, including at the premises of the Franchised Business, and within a 20-mile radius of any other FIRST CHOICE Office, for a period of 2 years after your Franchise Agreement is terminated. You must completely disassociate yourself from the Marks and return the Manuals and other confidential materials provided to you by us.
s. Modification of the agreement	7.1 and 23	Changes to the Franchise Agreement must be made in writing and agreed to by both parties.
t. Integration/merger clause	23	Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement are binding (subject to state law). Any representations or promises outside of the disclosure document and Franchise Agreement may not be enforceable.
u. Dispute resolution by arbitration or mediation	25.9; Schedule 9	You must mediate claims against us before filing in court. You agree to arbitrate only as may be specified in State Addenda.

PROVISION	SECTION IN FRANCHISE AGREEMENT	SUMMARY
v. Choice of forum	25.2	Subject to state law, litigation must be in the courts of the state of Nevada located in Las Vegas, Nevada, and the United States District Court for the District of Nevada.
w. Choice of law	25.1	Nevada law applies (subject to state law).

<u>ITEM 18</u> PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not use any public figure to promote our franchise system.

ITEM 19 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC's Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

We do not make any representations about a franchisee's future financial performance or the past financial performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the franchisor's management by contacting Jeffrey Nyman at First Choice Business Brokers, Inc., 851 South Rampart Blvd., Suite 200, Las Vegas, Nevada 89145, (702) 368-2500, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.

<u>ITEM 20</u> OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

TABLE NO. 1

Systemwide Outlet Summary For the years 2020 through 2022

Outlet Type	Year	Outlets at the Start of the Year	Outlets at the End of the Year	Net Change
Franchised	2020	33	43	+10
	2021	43	36	-7
	2022	36	58	+22
Company-Owned	2020	0	0	0

Outlet Type	Year	Outlets at the Start of the Year	Outlets at the End of the Year	Net Change
	2021	0	7	+7
	2022	7	5	-2
Total Outlets	2020	33	43	+10
	2021	43	42	-1
	2022	43	63	+20

TABLE NO. 2

Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners (other than to Franchisor)

For years 2020 through 2022

State	Year	Number of Transfers
	2020	2
California	2021	0
	2022	0
	2020	0
Texas	2021	1
	2022	0
	2020	2
Totals	2021	1
	2022	0

TABLE NO. 3

Status of Franchised Outlets For years 2020 to 2022*

State	Year	Outlets at Start of the Year	Outlets Opened	Terminations	Non- Renewals	Reacquired by Franchisor	Ceased Operations- Other Reasons	Outlets at End of the Year
	2020	2	2	0	1	0	0	3
Arizona	2021	3	0	0	0	0	0	3
	2022	3	0	1	0	0	0	2
	2020	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arkansas	2021	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2022	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
	2020	8	0	0	0	0	0	8
California	2021	7	2	0	0	5*	0	4
	2022	4	4	0	1	0	0	7
Colorado	2020	1	0	0	0	0	0	1

34

State	Year	Outlets at Start of the Year	Outlets Opened	Terminations	Non- Renewals	Reacquired by Franchisor	Ceased Operations- Other Reasons	Outlets at End of the Year
	2021	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2022	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2020	3	1	0	1	0	0	3
Florida	2021	3	1	1	0	0	0	3
	2022	3	2	0	0	0	0	5
	2020	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Georgia	2021	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2022	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
	2020	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
Idaho	2021	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2022	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2020	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Kentucky	2021	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2022	0	2	0	0	0	0	2
	2020	1	0	1	0	0	0	0
Maryland	2021	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2020	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Massachusetts	2021	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2022	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
	2020	1	1	0	0	0	0	2
Michigan	2021	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
	2022	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
	2020	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
Minnesota	2021	1	1	1	0	0	0	1
	2022	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2020	1	1	0	0	0	0	2
Missouri	2021	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
	2022	2	3	0	0	0	0	5
	2020	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Montana	2021	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
	2022	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2020	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Nebraska	2021	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2022	0	1	0	0	0	0	1

State	Year	Outlets at Start	Outlets Opened	Terminations	Non- Renewals	Reacquired by	Ceased Operations- Other	Outlets at End of the
		of the Year	Оренец		Kellewals	Franchisor	Reasons	Year
	2020	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
Nevada	2021	1	1	0	0	2*	0	0
	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2020	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
New Hampshire	2021	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2022	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2020	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
New Jersey	2021	0	2	2	0	0	0	0
	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2020	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
New York	2021	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
	2022	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
	2020	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
North Carolina	2021	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
	2022	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
	2020	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
North Dakota	2021	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2022	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
	2020	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
Ohio	2021	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2022	1	2	0	0	0	0	3
	2020	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
Oregon	2021	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2022	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2020	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
Pennsylvania	2021	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2022	1	1	0	0	0	0	2
	2020	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
South Carolina	2021	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2020	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
South Dakota	2021	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2022	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
Тонность	2020	2	0	1	0	0	0	1
Tennessee	2021	1	0	0	0	0	0	1

State	Year	Outlets at Start of the Year	Outlets Opened	Terminations	Non- Renewals	Reacquired by Franchisor	Ceased Operations- Other Reasons	Outlets at End of the Year
	2022	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2020	2	1	0	0	0	0	3
Texas	2021	3	1	2	0	0	0	2
	2022	2	2	0	0	0	0	4
	2020	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
Utah	2021	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
	2022	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
	2020	4	0	0	0	0	0	4
Virginia	2021	4	0	0	0	0	0	4
	2022	4	1	0	0	0	0	5
Washington	2020	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2021	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
	2022	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
Total Outlets	2020	33	15	2	2	0	1	42
	2021	42	5	5	0	5	1	36
	2022	36	24	1	1	0	0	58

^{*}If multiple events occurred affecting an outlet, this table shows the event that occurred last in time.

TABLE NO. 4

Status of Company-Owned Outlets For years 2020 to 2022

State	Year	Outlets at Start of Year	Outlets Opened	Outlets Reacquired From Franchisee	Outlets Closed	Outlets Sold to Franchisee	Outlets at End of Year
California	2020	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2021	0	0	5	0	0	5
	2022	5	0	0	1	1	3
Nevada	2020	1	0	0	0	1	0
	2021	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2022	0	0	2	0	0	2
Total Outlets	2020	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2021	0	0	7	0	0	7
	2022	7	0	0	1	1	5

Table No. 5
Projected Openings for 2023 as of December 31, 2022

State	Franchise Agreements Signed But Outlet Not Open	Projected New Franchised Outlets in the Next Fiscal Year	Projected New Company- Owned Outlets in the Next Fiscal Year
Arizona	0	1	0
California	0	5	0
Florida	0	2	0
Hawaii	0	1	0
Illinois	0	3	0
Minnesota	0	1	0
New Jersey	0	2	0
Pennsylvania	0	1	0
Texas	0	5	0
TOTALS	0	21	0

Exhibit G-1 lists the names of all of our operating franchisees and the addresses and telephone numbers of their outlets as of the end of our last fiscal year.

Exhibit G-2 lists the name, city, and state of every franchisee who had an outlet terminated, cancelled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under a Franchise Agreement within the last fiscal year. If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.

During the last three fiscal years, no current or former franchisees have signed confidentiality clauses that restrict them from discussing with you their experiences as a franchisee in our franchise system.

We have not created, sponsored, or endorsed any trademark-specific organization of franchisees associated with our franchise system. No independent franchisee organizations have asked to be included in this disclosure document.

<u>ITEM 21</u> <u>FINANCIAL STATEMENTS</u>

Exhibit E contains our audited financial statements for our fiscal years ending December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020.

ITEM 22 CONTRACTS

The proposed agreements regarding this franchise offering are included as exhibits to this Disclosure Document as follows:

Exhibit A. Franchise Agreement

Schedule 1 –Area of Operations and Approved Location

Schedule 2 – Guaranty, Indemnification, and Acknowledgement

Schedule 3 – Computer System User License Agreement

Schedule 4 – Assignment of Telephone Numbers, Internet Addresses, and Social

Media Identities

Schedule 5 – Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement

Schedule 6 – Statement of Ownership

Schedule 7 - ACH Authorization

Schedule 8 - Franchisee Compliance Certification

We will not ask you to complete the Compliance Questionnaire, and we will disregard any answers from you, if you live or plan to operate your franchise in the states of California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, Wisconsin.

Schedule 9 - State Addenda to the Franchise Agreement Exhibit B. Non-Disclosure Agreement Exhibit D. General Release

ITEM 23 RECEIPT

Exhibit K contains the Receipts. You should sign and date both copies of the Receipt, retaining one copy for your records and returning the other signed and dated copy to us.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]

EXHIBIT A

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	GRANT OF FRANCHISE	2
2.	TERM AND RENEWAL	5
3.	DUTIES OF FRANCHISOR	5
4.	FEES	7
5.	OPENING OF THE FIRST CHOICE FRANCHISE	9
6.	TRAINING	9
7.	YOUR DUTIES	. 10
8.	PROPRIETARY MARKS	. 14
9.	OPERATIONS MANUAL	. 16
10.	CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION	. 17
11.	ACCOUNTING AND RECORDS	. 17
12.	PROMOTION AND MARKETING	. 18
13.	INSURANCE	. 21
14.	TRANSFER OF INTEREST	. 21
15.	DEFAULT AND TERMINATION	. 25
16.	OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION	. 27
17.	ADDITIONAL COVENANTS	. 28
18.	CORPORATE OR ENTITY FRANCHISEE	. 30
19.	TAXES, PERMITS, LICENESES AND INDEBTEDNESS	. 30
20.	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AND INDEMNIFICATION	. 31
21.	APPROVALS AND WAIVERS	. 32
22.	NOTICES	. 33
23.	ENTIRE AGREEMENT	. 33
24.	SEVERABILITY AND CONSTRUCTION	. 33
25.	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	. 33
26.	FORCE MAJEURE	. 34
27.	ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	. 35
28.	TIME OF ESSENCE and INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE	. 35
	Schedule 1 –Area of Operations and Approved Location	
	Schedule 2 – Guaranty, Indemnification, and Acknowledgement	
	Schedule 3 – Computer System User License Agreement	
	Schedule 4 – Assignment of Telephone Numbers, Internet Addresses, and Social Media	
	Identities	
	Schedule 5 – Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement	
	Schedule 6 – Statement of Ownership	
	Schedule 7 – ACH Authorization	

Schedule 8 – Franchisee Compliance Certification Schedule 9 - State Addenda to the Franchise Agreement

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS A	GREE	EME	NT ("Agreeme	ent") is	made an	d entered	into	on		20 by	and
between	FIRS	ST C	CHOICE BUSI	NESS	BROKER	S, INC.,	dba	FIRST	CHOIC!	E (hereii	nafter
referred	to	as	"Franchisor"	or	"FIRST	CHOICE	Ε" σ	or "W	e" or	"Us"),	and

(hereinafter "Franchisee" or "You") with reference to the following facts:

- A. As the result of the expenditure of time, skill, effort, and money, FIRST CHOICE has developed a distinctive business brokerage business. You will be given the opportunity to learn about our trade and practice from the leadership of FIRST CHOICE. The businesses utilize a specially developed system, including methods and procedures in branding the FIRST CHOICE concept (the "System");
- B. The System consists of a distinctive approach to efficient operation of a business brokerage service; an Opening Guide and Plan of Action for Franchise Success, and Complete Operations Manual; training courses; and specially designed procedures for the promotion of the services of the business;
- C. The distinguishing characteristics of the System include, without limitation, distinctive products, uniform standards, specifications, and procedures for operations, procedures for management, training and assistance, and marketing and promotional programs, all of which may be changed, improved, and further developed from time to time;
- D. The FIRST CHOICE businesses are identified by the name and/or trademark, "FIRST CHOICE," and such other trade names, service marks, trademarks, logos, emblems, and indicia of origin as are now designated, and may hereafter be designated, by us in writing for use in connection with the System (the "Proprietary Marks");
- E. You desire to operate a FIRST CHOICE Franchise (defined below) under the System and using the Proprietary Marks, and wish to enter into this Agreement with us for that purpose, and to receive the training provided by us and other assistance in connection therewith; and
- F. You understand and acknowledge the importance of our high standards of quality, cleanliness, appearance, and service, and the necessity of operating the business franchised hereunder in conformity with our standards and specifications.

THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. GRANT OF FRANCHISE

1.1 Subject to all of the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, FIRST CHOICE grants to you the right, and you undertake the obligation, upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement: (a) to establish and operate a FIRST CHOICE business (hereinafter referred to as the "Franchise") at the Approved Location (defined below), under the System, and in association with the Proprietary Marks, and (b) to use the Proprietary Marks and the System solely in connection therewith.

1.2 You must:

- 1.2.1 Operate the Franchise only within the Area of Operations more fully described in Schedule 1 (referred to as the "Area of Operations"), at the location described in Schedule 1 (the "Approved Location," and/or "Premises"), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
- 1.2.2 At our sole discretion, you may have premises at which you will maintain all documents, books, records and accounts, including, but not limited to, any manuals and proprietary computer software relating to the Franchise which shall be at the following location:

_	 	 	

(sometimes referred to as the "Approved Records Location"). However, you shall not, without written authorization to do so, operate the Franchise at this location.

1.2.3 Operate the Franchise at the Approved Location only if we approve the Approved Location in writing. You may operate your Franchise from an office location which is a "home-based office," provided that: 1) you have no agents or Associates; and 2) you have a professional meeting place to meet with clients that is approved by us. Except as otherwise permitted by this Agreement, you agree that you or any of your agents or Associates will not operate or establish any satellite, branch or other extension of the Franchise from any other location without our prior written consent. You further agree not to conduct, or permit anyone affiliated with the Franchise to conduct, any business or activity at the Approved Location other than the services and product sales authorized under this Agreement, unless we approve of such other activity in writing.

1.3 Area of Operations

Your franchise will be for a specific location within a geographical area that we designate as your "Area of Operations." Your specific location, which we call your "Approved Location," must be approved by us. Your Area of Operations will be described on Schedule 1.

1.4 Relocation of your Franchised Business

You will operate your Franchised Business from one location within your Area of Operations and must receive our permission before relocating. If you wish to relocate your franchise, you may request our consent to relocate to another Approved Location within your Area of Operations. We will not unreasonably withhold our consent, but such consent must be in writing to be effective.

1.5 Rights of First Refusal

We do not customarily grant to franchisees options, rights of first refusal or similar rights to acquire additional franchises, although we do retain the right to do so within our sole discretion.

1.6 Non-Exclusive Territory

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control. However, you will receive a territory containing a geographic area within which we promise not to establish either a company-owned or franchised outlet selling the same or similar goods or services under the same or similar trademarks or service marks.

Continuation of your territory exclusivity depends on achieving a minimum of \$200,000 in Gross Sales for the third year of your operations and each year thereafter. If you acquire a territory with previous operations, the age of the territory is determined by the length of time of franchise operations in that territory, regardless of who was the owner of the territory. If you do not meet this minimum, we may serve a notice to cure upon you and terminate your territory rights.

We may also modify your territory upon renewal if there is a population increase in your area in order that your territory maintain roughly the same population upon renewal as when you first acquired this franchise.

1.7 Restrictions on Solicitation

We or an affiliate reserves the right to use other channels of distribution, such as the Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing sales, to make sales within your territory using our principal trademarks.

We or an affiliate also reserves the right to use other channels of distribution, such as the Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing sales, to make sales within your territory of products or services under trademarks different from the ones that you will use under the franchise agreement.

You and other franchisees also may solicit and transact business in any jurisdiction in which you or they may legally do so, including through other channels of distribution, such as the internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing, to make sales outside your territory, provided that such advertising is consistent with our advertising standards, any cross territorial protocols we adopt, and you do not engage in mass marketing outside your territory. Mass marketing is defined as a concentrated effort or plan through mail, emails, telephone, in person visits, or such other means as we designate, to business locations to obtain business listings.

We are not obligated to pay compensation to you for soliciting or accepting orders from inside your territory.

You may solicit and accept orders from customers outside your territory, including through other channels of distribution such as catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing.

Neither we nor an affiliate operates, franchises, or has plans to operate or franchise a business under a different trademark which such business sells or will sell goods or services similar to those you will offer, but we reserve the right to do so.

2. TERM AND RENEWAL

- 2.1 Except as otherwise provided herein, the initial term of this Agreement shall expire ten (10) years from the date first above written, unless sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions hereof (the "Initial Term").
- 2.2 You may, at your option, acquire a successor to this franchise for an unlimited number of additional ten-year periods (each, a "Successor Term"), provided that you meet the following conditions prior to the expiration of this Agreement:
 - 2.2.1 You must give FIRST CHOICE written notice of your election to renew not more than one (1) year and not less than six (6) months prior to the end of the Initial Term or applicable Successor Term of this Agreement;
 - 2.2.2 You must not be in default of any provision of this Agreement, any amendment hereof or successor hereto, or any other agreement between you and FIRST CHOICE, or its affiliates, and must shall have complied with all the terms and conditions of such agreements during the term(s) thereof;
 - 2.2.3 You must have satisfied all monetary obligations owed by you to FIRST CHOICE and its affiliates, and must have timely met those obligations throughout the term of this Agreement;
 - 2.2.4 You shall execute the FIRST CHOICE then-current form of the Standard Franchise Agreement being offered to new or renewing franchise owners under the System at the time of the renewal, which shall supersede this Agreement in all respects (sometimes referred to as the "Successor Franchise Agreement"), and which may contain terms substantially different than those contained in this Agreement, including but not limited to higher fees and a smaller Area of Operations, and the term of which will be the successor term specified herein;
 - 2.2.5 You and your personnel shall comply with our then-current qualification and training requirements for new franchisees; and
 - 2.2.6 You must execute our then-current form of general release of any and all claims against us and our subsidiaries and affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, agents, and employees.

3. DUTIES OF FRANCHISOR

- 3.1 Before your Franchise is opened, we will provide to you the following assistance:
 - 3.1.1 Grant approval of your Area of Operations (your Area of Operations will be as set forth in Schedule 1 hereto);
 - 3.1.2 Conduct a minimum of five (5) days of training through a webinar held on the Internet and may, at our election, also be held at our headquarters in Las Vegas, Nevada or

- elsewhere. This should be done prior to the opening of the Franchise. You are responsible for all travel, lodging, meals and other expenses incurred to attend training;
- 3.1.3 Assist you in determining a location to be the Approved Location for the Franchise (the Approved Location will be as set forth in Schedule 1 hereto), the selection of which is your obligation and responsibility;
- 3.1.4 Assist you in the layout of the Franchise and equipment selection process;
- 3.1.5 Supply you with our FIRST CHOICE Opening Guide, Plan of Action for Franchise Success, and Complete Operations Manual (together, the "Manual");
- 3.1.6 Provide you with your list of approved and/or designated suppliers;
- 3.1.7 Supply you with the FIRST CHOICE proprietary systems and Proprietary Marks; and
- 3.1.8 Supply you with the recommended sales tracking system and the weekly/monthly reporting system.
- 3.2 During the operation of the Franchise we will:
 - 3.2.1 Provide telephone support and training at or about the time of the opening of the Franchise;
 - 3.2.2 Provide marketing assistance during the grand opening period;
 - 3.2.3 Provide updates, as necessary, modifications and/or changes to the Manual;
 - 3.2.4 At our option, we will provide you with location visits and visitation reports;
 - 3.2.5 At our sole discretion, conduct a mystery business for sale program to ensure product and service quality. In other words, we may present to you a disguised business for sale in order to measure the quality of services provided by you or your sales representatives;
 - 3.2.6 Provide support for your questions related to the operation of the Franchise;
 - 3.2.7 Develop new products and/or methods, and provide you with information about any such developments;
 - 3.2.8 We may hold conferences, additional training courses, or seminars to discuss and instruct you in techniques, performance standards, personnel training, bookkeeping, accounting, advertising programs, new products, marketing and general operating procedures. As set forth under Paragraph 6.3 below, you and your Key Personnel may be required to attend at least two (2) of these programs each year. These conferences will be held at a location chosen by us and you will be responsible for attendance fees as well as your own travel expenses. You must pay us the attendance fee at least 60 days prior to the event;
 - 3.2.9 Provide on-going training and Franchise support services; and
 - 3.2.10 Administer, or appoint a third party to administer, a marketing fund, as set forth in Section 12 below.

- 3.3 You hereby acknowledge and agree that any designee, employee, or agent of FIRST CHOICE may perform any duty or obligation imposed on FIRST CHOICE by this Agreement, as FIRST CHOICE may direct.
- 3.4 You acknowledge that it is your sole responsibility for finding the Approved Location and that FIRST CHOICE is not obligated in any way to obtain an approved location for you, nor is FIRST CHOICE obligated to offer any assistance to you in negotiating with any third party landlords, vendors, or contractors. FIRST CHOICE may, but is not required to, assist you in identifying and obtaining an Approved Location through advice and/or negotiations with third parties, but it is your exclusive responsibility, financially and otherwise, to secure a proposed location, to complete any improvements to the Approved Location, and to engage in any other activity necessary to prepare the Approved Location for opening.

4. FEES

- 4.1 **Initial Franchise and Training/Marketing Fees.** In consideration of the Franchise granted herein, upon execution of this Agreement, you shall pay to FIRST CHOICE an initial franchise fee of \$40,000 and an Initial Training/Marketing Fee of \$12,500. The initial franchise and training fees are not refundable and will be deemed fully earned by FIRST CHOICE upon execution of this Agreement. We offer a \$5,000 discount for an honorably discharged Veteran.
- 4.2 **Royalty Fee.** Commencing with the opening of the Franchise, you shall pay to FIRST CHOICE a monthly royalty fee ("Royalty Fee") of 10% of Gross Sales (as defined in this Section 4) up to \$850,000 during the term of the Franchise Agreement, and 8% of Gross Sales thereafter, to be paid and accounted for on a daily or weekly basis, as we so instruct. The Royalty Fee is subject to a \$300/month minimum beginning in the 13th month of operations. The Royalty Fee due for each month shall be due on the first day of the following month and must be paid on or before the fifth day of that month.
- 4.3 **Marketing Contribution**. If established, Franchisee will be required to pay a Marketing Contribution as set forth in Section 12.1 below.
- 4.4 **Technology Fee**. You agree to sign a Computer System User License Agreement (attached to the Franchise Agreement as Schedule 3) and pay to us a Technology Fee of \$350 per month plus \$145 per month per Agent that you have, to use the Computer System. This fee begins 60 days after you complete initial training. FIRST CHOICE has the right to increase the Technology Fee annually, except that no such increase will exceed a total of 20% of the monthly fee charged during the previous year. This fee will also pay for certain website-related services that FIRST CHOICE will provide to you, as described in the Manual.
- 4.5 **Administrative Support Fee.** You agree to pay to us a monthly Administrative Support Fee, based on the number of active listings you have, if you choose to use our administrative support services for the operation of your Franchise. The amount of the Administrative Support Fee you pay will be according to the following schedule:

# of Active Listings	Monthly Fee Amount
0-15	\$250

# of Active Listings	Monthly Fee Amount
16-30	\$500
61-100	\$1,200
101-150	\$1,500
151-200	\$1,800

We begin charging this fee 180 days after you complete your initial training. We have the right to increase the Administrative Support Fee annually, except that no such increase will exceed a total of 20% of the monthly fee charged during the previous year.

- 4.6 Franchisee expressly acknowledges and agrees that Franchisee's obligations for the full and timely payment of Royalty Fees and Marketing Contributions, if applicable, (and all other amounts provided for in this Agreement) shall be absolute, unconditional, fully earned, and due upon Franchisee's generation of Gross Sales. You must pay all amounts due to us by automated clearinghouse ("ACH"). See Schedule 7 to the Franchise Agreement. We or our designee will debit your bank account for the Royalty Fees and any other amounts owing to us. You are required to make the funds available for withdrawal from your account before each due date. If you pay any amount to us by credit card, we will charge a fee equal to a percentage of the total amount charged for card processing, currently 3%. You shall comply with the payment and reporting procedures specified by Franchisor in the Manual.
- 4.7 Any payment or report not actually received by FIRST CHOICE (or the entity it may designate) on or before the due date shall be deemed overdue. If any payment is overdue, you shall pay FIRST CHOICE a 9% late fee in addition to the overdue amount, plus interest on total amount from the date it was due until paid, at the rate of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month, or the maximum rate permitted by law, whichever is less. This will be in addition to any other remedies FIRST CHOICE may have.
- 4.8 As used in this Agreement, "Gross Sales" includes all consideration, whether by cash, credit, barter, or otherwise, derived directly or indirectly from your operation of the Franchised Business (from all sources, including but not limited to consulting revenues). "Gross Sales" does not include:
 - (a) the amount of any tax imposed by any federal, state, municipal or other governmental authority directly on sales and collected from customers, provided that the amount of any such tax is shown separately and, in fact, paid by Franchisee to the appropriate governmental authority; or
 - (b) all customer refunds, valid discounts and coupons, and credits made by the Franchise (exclusions will not include any reductions for credit card user fees, returned checks or reserves for bad credit or doubtful accounts).

Gross Sales consisting of property, products or services shall be valued at the retail prices applicable and in effect at the time that they are received.

5. OPENING OF THE FIRST CHOICE FRANCHISE

- 5.1 Not less than thirty (30) days prior to the opening date of the Franchise, you shall order such minimum initial inventory of the brochures, business cards, products, equipment and software as prescribed in the Manual or otherwise in writing. You shall provide to FIRST CHOICE reasonable and timely notice that you have obtained such inventory prior to opening of the Franchise.
- You agree to open the Franchise within one hundred and twenty (120) days after execution of this Agreement, unless FIRST CHOICE agrees otherwise in writing.

6. TRAINING

- 6.1 You must ensure that each of you, your Key Personnel, and your non-key personnel have completed our required training program, as applicable:
 - 6.1.1 Prior to the opening of your Franchise, and not more than 30 days after signing this agreement, you and your Key Personnel (as defined in Section 7.2), if appointed, must complete our initial training program, which is normally offered online. If we offer any live portion, you are not required to pay any charges to attend initial training. You are responsible for any travel, lodging, transportation, and meal costs.
 - 6.1.2 All non-key personnel (including Associates) contracted or employed by you are required to attend our online training (First Choice University). For these non-key personnel there is a training fee, which will be \$500 per person. This training is mandatory for each Associate you employ or contract and must be completed within 30 days of hiring such individual. Such individuals will be required to sign an agreement governing the terms of their relationship with you and FIRST CHOICE, which appears in the Manual. You are responsible for the payments described in this section, but the training fee may be paid directly by your non-key personnel.
- 6.2 You and your Key Personnel must also attend any additional meetings, conferences, courses, seminars, and other training programs, as we may in our sole discretion provide from time to time. You and your Key Personnel are required to attend at least two (2) such meetings, conferences, seminars, or training programs per year. You will be required to pay us an attendance fee for each such meeting, conference, course, seminar, or other training programs. You must pay us the attendance fee at least 60 days prior to the event. You will also be required to bear the cost of all travel, lodging, and meals to and from such programs for you and any other person attending with you.
- 6.3 All training programs shall be at such times and places designated by us. We will provide instructors and training materials for all required initial training courses and such additional training courses, seminars, and programs as we may require in our sole discretion. You, your Key Personnel and/or your employees shall be responsible for any and all other expenses and fees incurred by you in connection with any such courses, seminars, and programs, including, but not limited to, the costs of transportation, lodging, meals and wages.

7. YOUR DUTIES

- 7.1 You shall operate the Franchise in strict conformity with such methods, standards, and specifications as we may from time to time prescribe in the Manual or otherwise in writing. You shall refrain from deviating from such standards, specifications, and procedures without our prior written consent.
- 7.2 Prior to the commencement of operations at the Franchise, you shall designate, subject to our reasonable approval, one or more individuals (the "Key Person" or "Key Personnel") who shall be responsible for general oversight, management of the operations and recruiting Associates for the Franchise, if the Key Person is not the franchise owner. You acknowledge and agree that we have the right to rely upon the Key Personnel to have been given, by you, the responsibility and decision-making authority regarding your business and operation. In the event the person or persons designated as the Key Person dies, becomes incapacitated, leaves your employ, transfers his/her interest in Franchisee, or otherwise ceases to supervise the operations of the Franchise, you must promptly designate a new Key Person, subject to our reasonable approval.
- 7.3 You must meet and maintain the highest governmental standards and ratings applicable to the operation of the Franchise. You shall furnish to us, within five (5) days after receipt thereof, a copy of all inspection reports, warnings, citations, certificates, and/or ratings resulting from inspections conducted by any governmental agency with jurisdiction over the Franchise.
- 7.4 You shall at all times maintain the Franchise, and the business equipment or products used in connection therewith, in a high degree of cleanliness, repair, and condition, and in connection therewith shall make such additions, alterations, repairs, and replacements thereto as may be required for that purpose, including, without limitation, such periodic repainting or replacement of obsolete signs, furnishings, fixtures, equipment, and decor as we may reasonably direct.
- 7.5 To maintain the high standards of quality and uniformity associated with the System, you shall offer and sell all products and services that FIRST CHOICE specifies from time to time. You are prohibited from offering or selling any services or products from or through the Franchise that have not previously been authorized by FIRST CHOICE. If you wish to offer or sell any services or products that have not previously been authorized by FIRST CHOICE, you must first make a written request to FIRST CHOICE, requesting authorization to offer or sell such services or products. FIRST CHOICE may deny such approval for any reason. In connection with such request for approval, you must submit to FIRST CHOICE such information and samples as FIRST CHOICE desires. Upon demand, you must pay us a fee in an amount we reasonably determine to cover our costs of reviewing and evaluating the requests for approval you submit.
- 7.6 FIRST CHOICE reserves the right to designate, at any time and for any reason suppliers for any equipment, supplies, services, or products.
- 7.7 If you desire to purchase any equipment, supplies, services, or products from manufacturers, distributors, or suppliers other than those previously designated or

- approved by FIRST CHOICE, you must first make a written request to FIRST CHOICE, requesting authorization to purchase such items. FIRST CHOICE may deny such approval for any reason. Upon demand, you must pay us a fee in an amount we reasonably determine to cover our costs of reviewing and evaluating the requests for approval you submit.
- 7.8 FIRST CHOICE may, from time to time, suggest prices to you for the sale of products and services, but you will not be required at any time to sell at or above such suggested prices. You may determine the prices at which you sell the products and services of the Franchise, as well as the terms and conditions of sale for such products and services.
- 7.9 Not less than thirty (30) days prior to the opening date of the Franchise, you must purchase the minimum initial inventory of approved business cards, brochures, and supplies prescribed by us in the Manual or otherwise in writing.
- 7.10 To ensure the efficient management and operation of the Franchise and the transmission of data to and from FIRST CHOICE, Franchisee, at its own expense, shall install, prior to opening the Franchise, and shall maintain and utilize during the term of this Agreement such Communications and Information Systems as FIRST CHOICE may periodically specify in writing for use by franchisees that operate under the System.
 - 7.10.1 As used in this Agreement, the term "Communications and Information Systems" means: hardware (including without limitation one or more computers, a lead management system such as Zoho or similar systems; Computer User System (as defined below), and/or other computer components); software designed for the management and operation of the Franchise, as well as reporting and sharing information with FIRST CHOICE; and communication systems (including without limitation digital and analog modems, satellite, cable, and other systems).
 - 7.10.2 The term "Computer User System" shall mean a system to be specified by FIRST CHOICE that includes functionality that may automate some or all of the following operations, in whole or in part: tracking individual sales transactions, human resource management issues, maintaining and generating production schedules, vendor orders, inventory lists, product cost analyses, and other collections of data related to the operation of the Franchise.
 - 7.10.3 Franchisee shall lease and/or purchase computer software as necessary to connect with FIRST CHOICE's Communications and Information Systems. Franchisee shall not hire a third party or outside vendors not approved by FIRST CHOICE to perform any services or obligations in connection with the Communications and Information Systems, or any other of Franchisee's obligations without FIRST CHOICE's prior written approval. FIRST CHOICE's consideration of any proposed outsourcing vendor(s) may be conditioned upon, among other things, such third party or outside vendor's entry into a confidentiality agreement with FIRST CHOICE and Franchisee in a form that is provided by FIRST CHOICE.
 - 7.10.4 FIRST CHOICE may from time to time develop or authorize others to develop software programs for use in the System, which Franchisee may be required to purchase and/or license, and use, in connection with the Franchise ("**Proprietary**

- **Program(s)**"). Franchisee agrees that it shall execute any license, sublicense, or maintenance agreement required by FIRST CHOICE or any other approved licensor or approved vendor of such Proprietary Program, which will require the payment of a fee by Franchisee for the use of such Proprietary Programs, at the then-current rate(s) set forth in the Manual(s).
- 7.10.5 Franchisee shall upgrade and update its Communications and Information Systems in the manner, and when, specified by FIRST CHOICE in writing.
- 7.10.6 Franchisee shall: (a) promptly enter, into its Communications and Information Systems, and maintain all information required to be entered and maintained by FIRST CHOICE; (b) provide to FIRST CHOICE such reports as FIRST CHOICE may reasonably request from the data so collected and maintained; and (c) permit FIRST CHOICE to access Franchisee's Communications and Information Systems at all times via modem or other means specified by FIRST CHOICE from time to time. Franchisee shall cooperate with FIRST CHOICE, and shall execute all documents required by FIRST CHOICE to permit access to Franchisee's Communications and Information Systems and data contained therein. The reporting requirements set forth in this Section shall be in addition to and not in lieu of the reporting requirements set forth under Section 11 below. Additionally:
 - (1) Franchisee shall abide by all applicable laws pertaining to privacy of information collected or maintained regarding customers or other individuals ("**Privacy**").
 - (2) Upon entering into this Agreement, Franchisee authorizes FIRST CHOICE to send emails to Franchisee and all of those principals and employees associated with operating the Franchise to the extent such emails relate to the Franchise and/or the System.
- 7.10.7 When communicating with Franchisor in writing, Franchisee and its Associates shall communicate via the Franchisor provided e-mail addresses and system.
- 7.11 You must maintain a competent, conscientious, trained staff, including a fully trained, full-time manager, which may be yourself. You must take such steps as are necessary to ensure that your employees preserve good customer relations: which include rendering competent, prompt, courteous, knowledgeable services, and meeting such minimum standards as we may establish from time to time in the Manual or otherwise in writing. You and your employees shall handle all customer complaints, refunds, and other adjustments in a manner that will not detract from the name and goodwill of FIRST CHOICE. You shall be solely responsible for all employment decisions and functions of your Franchise, including, but not limited to, those related to hiring, firing, training, wage and hour requirements, record keeping, supervision, and discipline of employees.
- 7.12 You are permitted (but not required) to hire Associates to work in your Franchise. An Associate is a sales agent who will be paid by you on commission for the business brokerage transactions that the Associate generates, according to the agreement established between you and your Associate. Associates should be independent contractors (and not

employees) with whom you have an arms' length contractual relationship. You may not, however, hire agents outside of your Area of Operations unless you receive our prior written approval.

- 7.12.1 Under no circumstances will your Associates be deemed an employee of FIRST CHOICE, and your contract with each Associate must clearly state that his or her contractual relationship is with you, and not FIRST CHOICE, and that FIRST CHOICE is not a party to the contract, but that it is an intended third party beneficiary of the contract with the right to enforce provisions relating to confidentiality, the use of FIRST CHOICE's trade secrets and intellectual property (including the Marks), and non-competition, as well as other elements required by FIRST CHOICE as set forth in the Manual from time to time. FIRST CHOICE must approve any contract between you and your Associate(s) to ensure your compliance with this provision.
- 7.13 You grant FIRST CHOICE and its agents the right to enter upon the premises of the Franchise at any time for the purpose of conducting inspections. Franchisee must cooperate with FIRST CHOICE's representatives in such inspections by rendering such assistance as they may reasonably request; and, upon notice from FIRST CHOICE or its agents and without limiting FIRST CHOICE's other rights under this Agreement, Franchisee must take such steps as may be necessary to correct immediately any deficiencies detected during any such inspection.
- 7.14 You must at all times pay your distributors, lessors, contractors, suppliers, trade creditors, employees and other creditors promptly as the debts and obligations to such persons become due, and failure to do so shall constitute a breach of this Agreement. In the event you fail to pay any such obligations promptly as the debts to such persons or entities become due, FIRST CHOICE will, in addition to its other remedies provided in this Agreement, have the right, at its election and without being obligated to do so, to pay such obligations and the amount or amounts paid therefor shall be paid by you to FIRST CHOICE with the next succeeding payment due FIRST CHOICE under this Agreement together with interest at the rate of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month, or the maximum rate permitted by law, whichever is less, for all amounts so advanced by FIRST CHOICE for your benefit.
- 7.15 You agree and acknowledge that you are obligated to comply with FIRST CHOICE's online policy which is subject to change by FIRST CHOICE from time to time. You agree and acknowledge that individual franchisee websites are prohibited unless specifically authorized by us in writing, and that your on-line promotional strategies must comply with FIRST CHOICE's on-line policy. You further agree and acknowledge that FIRST CHOICE may require or proscribe your use of, review and monitor all on-line content on social media sites, blogs, electronic communication and other on-line sites on which its trademarks, service marks, trade names, copyrights or any similar marks are used. You agree to remove any usage or content that FIRST CHOICE requires, including without limitation, content that FIRST CHOICE deems to be scandalous, immoral or detrimental to FIRST CHOICE's image. You further agree and acknowledge that FIRST CHOICE may prohibit use of its trademarks, service marks, trade names, copyrights or any similar marks on any site or all sites.

8. PROPRIETARY MARKS

- 8.1 We have the right to use, and to license others to use, the Proprietary Marks. You disclaim all rights, title and interest in or to the Proprietary Marks and any goodwill associated with the Proprietary Marks. You agree that you will not, during or after the term of this Agreement, engage in any conduct directly or indirectly that would infringe upon, harm or contest our rights in any of the Proprietary Marks or the goodwill associated with the Proprietary Marks, including any use of the Proprietary Marks in a derogatory, negative or other inappropriate manner in any media, including but not limited to print or electronic media.
- 8.2 With respect to your use of the Proprietary marks as required by this Agreement, you agree that:
 - 8.2.1 You are required to use the Proprietary Marks for the operation of the Franchise or in advertising for the Franchise and not otherwise;
 - 8.2.2 You will use the Proprietary Marks only in accordance with the System and the standards and specifications attendant thereto which underlie the goodwill associated with and symbolized by the Proprietary Marks;
 - 8.2.3 Unless otherwise authorized or required by us, you shall operate and advertise the Franchise only under the name "FIRST CHOICE" and shall use all Proprietary Marks without prefix or suffix or any other variation of any kind. You shall not use the Proprietary Marks, or any marks, names or indicia which are or may be confusingly similar, as part of your corporate or other business or legal name, except as authorized by this Agreement;
 - 8.2.4 Your right to use the Proprietary Marks is limited to such uses as are authorized under this Agreement, and any unauthorized use thereof shall constitute an infringement of our rights;
 - 8.2.5 You shall not use the Proprietary Marks to incur any obligation or indebtedness on behalf of us;
 - 8.2.6 During the Initial Term of this Agreement and any Successor Term of this Agreement, you shall identify yourself (in a manner reasonably acceptable to us) as the owner of the Franchise in conjunction with any use of the Proprietary Marks, including, but not limited to, uses on invoices, order forms, receipts, and contracts, as well as the display of a notice in such content and form and at such conspicuous locations on the premises of the Franchise as we may designate in writing;
 - 8.2.7 Without our prior written approval, you shall not use the Proprietary Marks as part of your corporate or other legal name, or as part of any e-mail address, website, domain name, or any other electronic media or social media (including use with any prefix, suffix, other modifying words, terms, designs, or symbols), or in any other manner connected with a website, advertisements on a website, social media site, or other similar means;

- 8.2.8 You may not use the words "First Choice," "First Choice Business Brokers," "FCBB," or any confusingly similar words as any part of the name of your corporation, LLC, or other entity, and you agree to file such fictitious, assumed name or similar certificate as we specify pursuant to our guidelines; and
- 8.2.9 With respect to litigation involving the Proprietary Marks, the parties agree that:
 - (a) You must promptly notify us of any suspected infringement of, or any suspected unauthorized use of, the Proprietary Marks, any known challenge to the validity of the Proprietary Marks, or any known challenge to FIRST CHOICE's ownership of, or our or your right to use, the Proprietary Marks licensed hereunder. You acknowledge that we shall have the right to direct and control any administrative proceeding or litigation involving the Proprietary Marks, including any settlement thereof. We shall also have the right, but not the obligation, to take action against uses by others that may constitute infringement of the Proprietary Marks.
 - (b) If you have used the Proprietary Marks in accordance with this Agreement, we, in our sole discretion, may choose to defend you, at our expense, against any third-party claim, suit, or demand involving the Proprietary Marks arising out of your use thereof. If we undertake the defense or prosecution of any litigation relating to the Proprietary Marks, you shall execute any and all documents and do such acts and things as may, in the opinion of our counsel, be necessary to carry out such defense or prosecution, including, but not limited to, becoming a nominal party to any legal action.
- 8.2.10 **Publicity**: Except as may be required by law, you may not make any press announcement regarding the subject matter of this Agreement without our prior written consent.
- 8.2.11 Name and Likeness: You acknowledge and agree that we have the right to photograph and record, whether by audio, video or otherwise, You and your Franchise, and to use your name and likeness in all forms and media for advertising, trade, or any other lawful purpose, In connection with this right, You grant to us a non-exclusive, irrevocable, worldwide, royalty-free license to use, publish, display and reproduce this content in any form as described in this Section, and agree that this license shall survive the termination of this Agreement.
- 8.3 You expressly understand and acknowledge that:
 - 8.3.1 The Proprietary Marks are valid and serve to identify the System and those who are authorized to operate under the System;
 - 8.3.2 During the term of this Agreement and after its expiration or termination, you shall not directly or indirectly contest the ownership, enforceability, or validity of, nor take any other action which tends to jeopardize, FIRST CHOICE's ownership of, or our right to use and to license others to use, the Proprietary Marks or FIRST CHOICE's right to grant franchises utilizing the Proprietary Marks;

- 8.3.3 Your use of the Proprietary Marks pursuant to this Agreement does not give you any ownership interest or other interest in or to the Proprietary Marks;
- 8.3.4 Any and all goodwill arising from your use of the Proprietary Marks under the System shall inure solely and exclusively to our benefit, and upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, no monetary amount shall be assigned as attributable to any goodwill associated with your use of the System or the Proprietary Marks;
- 8.3.5 The right and license of the Proprietary Marks granted hereunder to you is non-exclusive, and we thus have and retain the rights, among others: (a) to use the Proprietary Marks ourselves in connection with selling products and services, including, but not limited to, the same or similar products or services to be sold by your Franchise; (b) to grant other licenses for the Proprietary Marks; and (c) to develop and establish other systems using the Proprietary Marks, similar proprietary marks, or any other proprietary marks, and to grant licenses thereto without providing any rights therein to you; and
- 8.3.6 We reserve the right to substitute different proprietary marks for use in identifying the System and the businesses operating thereunder if we, in our sole discretion, determine that substitution of different marks as Proprietary Marks will be beneficial to the System. You shall implement promptly any such substitution of new Proprietary Marks. FIRST CHOICE shall bear the costs of modifying your signs and advertising materials to conform to our new Proprietary Marks, but we shall otherwise have no obligation or liability to you as a result of such substitution.

9. OPERATIONS MANUAL

- 9.1 In order to protect the reputation and goodwill of FIRST CHOICE, and to maintain high standards of operation under the System, you shall operate the Franchise in accordance with the standards, methods, policies, and procedures specified in the Manual, which we have the right to modify in our sole discretion.
- 9.2 You shall treat the Manual, any other manuals created for or approved for use in the operation of the Franchise, and the information contained therein, as confidential, and shall use all reasonable efforts to maintain such information as secret and confidential. You shall not copy, duplicate, record, or otherwise reproduce the foregoing materials, in whole or in part, or otherwise make the same available to any unauthorized person.
- 9.3 The Manual shall remain our sole property and shall be kept in a secure place on the Premises.
- 9.4 You shall ensure that the Manual is kept current at all times. In the event of any dispute as to the contents of the Manual, the terms of the master copy maintained by us at our home office shall be controlling.

10. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

- 10.1 You shall not, during the term of this Agreement or thereafter, communicate, divulge, or use for the benefit of any other person, partnership, association, or corporation any proprietary information contained in the Manuals or otherwise communicated to you in any form, and any other information, knowledge, know-how, drawings, materials, technology, equipment, marketing plans, strategic plans, methods, procedures, specifications, manuals, techniques, computer programs and systems concerning the methods of operation of the Franchise, including but not limited to: (a) information regarding the customers of the Franchise, including customer lists, customer names, and customer files; (b) the operating procedures of the System; (c) the economic and financial characteristics of the System and its Franchisees, including without limitation: pricing policies and schedules, profitability, earnings and losses, capital and debt structures; (d) the services and products offered to customers of the Franchise; (e) materials we designate as confidential; and (f) the Manual (collectively, "Confidential Information"). You shall divulge Confidential Information only to such of your employees or independent contractors, or if you are a corporation, then to such officers, directors, and shareholders with a need to know the Confidential Information in order to operate the Franchise. Any and all information, knowledge, know-how, techniques, and other data that we designate as confidential shall be deemed confidential for purposes of this Agreement.
- 10.2 At our request, you shall require your Key Personnel, and any other personnel having access to any Confidential Information to execute covenants that they will maintain the confidentiality of information they receive in connection with their employment by you at the Franchise. Such covenants shall be on FIRST CHOICE's then-current Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement, a form of which is attached to this Agreement as **Schedule 5.**
- 10.3 You acknowledge that any failure to comply with the requirements of this Section 10 will cause FIRST CHOICE irreparable injury, and you agree to pay all court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees incurred by FIRST CHOICE in obtaining specific performance of, or an injunction against violation of, the requirements of this Section 10.

11. ACCOUNTING AND RECORDS

- 11.1 You must prepare, and must preserve for at least five (5) years from the dates of their preparation, complete and accurate books, records, and accounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and in the form and manner prescribed by us from time to time in the Manual or otherwise in writing.
- 11.2 All gross sales, state, and county or municipal sales tax collected on behalf of third parties shall be recorded by you in accordance with the procedures prescribed in the Manual, or on such recording system as we may specify. This may include federal and state taxes to be withheld by you in reference to the sale of real estate by your clients. The withholding requirements may vary based upon the residency or citizenship of your client seller.
- 11.3 You must, at your expense, submit to FIRST CHOICE in the form prescribed by us, the following reports, financial statements, and other data:

- 11.3.1 You must submit a monthly franchise report to accurately reflect all of your Gross Sales during the preceding calendar month (beginning on the first day of the month and ending on the last day of the month) no later than the fifth (5th) day of the following month.
- 11.3.2 You must provide, in a manner and format we specify, a monthly Profit and Loss Statement by the 15th of each month as to activity the prior month; and provide an Annual Profit and Loss Statement by January 15 as to activity in the prior year;
- 11.3.3 Such other forms, reports, records, information, and data as FIRST CHOICE may reasonably designate.
- 11.4 FIRST CHOICE, and/or its designated agents, shall have the right, at reasonable times, to examine and copy, at our expense, the books, records, computer systems, computer records, accounts, and tax returns (the "Books") of the Franchise. FIRST CHOICE shall also have the right, at any time, to have an independent audit made of the books and records of the Franchise. If an inspection should reveal that any payments have been understated in any report to us, then you must immediately pay to FIRST CHOICE the amount understated upon demand, plus 18% per annum interest thereon or the highest rate permitted by law, whichever is lower. If an inspection discloses an understatement in any report of two (2%) percent or more, you must, in addition to repayment of monies owed with interest, reimburse us for any and all costs and expenses connected with the audit and/or inspection (including, but not limited to, travel, lodging, and wage expenses, and reasonable accounting and legal costs). The foregoing remedies shall be in addition to any other remedies that we may have.

12. PROMOTION AND MARKETING

- 12.1 FIRST CHOICE shall have the right at any time, in its sole discretion, to establish a marketing fund for system-wide marketing and promotion of the System (the "Fund"), which shall operate as described in Section 12.2 below. Franchisee must, during each month, contribute to the Fund \$250 per month (the "Marketing Contribution"). We reserve the right to increase this fee by 10% per year. The Marketing Contribution shall be paid to FIRST CHOICE at the same time, and in the same manner, as set forth for the payment of Royalty Fees as required by Section 4.2 above.
- 12.2 The Fund shall be maintained and administered by FIRST CHOICE or its designee, as follows:
 - 12.2.1 FIRST CHOICE or its designee shall direct all marketing programs, with sole discretion over the concepts, materials, and media used in such programs and the placement and allocation thereof. Franchisee agrees and acknowledges that the Fund is intended to maximize general public recognition, acceptance, and use of the System; and that FIRST CHOICE and its designee are not obligated, in administering the Fund, to make expenditures for Franchisee which are equivalent or proportionate to Franchisee's contribution, or to ensure that any particular franchisee benefits directly or pro rata from expenditures by the Fund.

- 12.2.2 The Fund, all contributions thereto, and any earnings thereon, shall be used exclusively to meet any and all costs of maintaining, administering, directing, conducting, and preparing advertising, marketing, public relations and/or promotional programs and materials, Websites (as such term is defined in Section 12.6) and any other activities which we believe will enhance the image of the System, including, among other things, the costs of preparing and conducting media advertising campaigns; direct mail advertising; marketing surveys and other public relations activities; employing advertising and/or public relations agencies to assist therein; employing advertising and/or marketing professionals to assist therein; purchasing promotional items, conducting and administering visual merchandising, point of sale, and other merchandising programs; and providing promotional and other marketing materials and services to the FIRST CHOICE businesses operated under the System. The Fund may also be used to provide rebates or reimbursements to franchisees for local expenditures on products, services, or improvements, approved in advance by us, which products, services, or improvements we in our sole discretion deem will promote general public awareness and favorable support for the System.
- 12.2.3 You must contribute to the Fund by electronic funds transfer in accordance with our requirements, unless we otherwise specify in writing. All sums paid by Franchisee to the Fund shall be maintained in an account separate from the other monies of FIRST CHOICE and shall not be used to defray any of our expenses, except for such reasonable costs and overhead, if any, as we may incur in activities reasonably related to the administration, direction, and implementation of the Fund and marketing programs for franchisees and the System, including, among other things, costs of personnel for creating and implementing, advertising, merchandising, promotional and marketing programs and administration of the Fund. The Fund and its earnings shall not otherwise inure to our benefit and the contributions to and earnings of the Fund are not and shall not be our asset. The Fund may lend money and incur debt in the furtherance of its general purposes.
- 12.2.4 It is anticipated that all contributions to and earnings of the Fund shall be expended for marketing and/or promotional purposes during the taxable year within which the contributions and earnings are received. If, however, excess amounts remain in the Fund at the end of such taxable year, all expenditures in the following taxable year(s) shall be made first out of accumulated earnings from previous years, next out of earnings in the current year, and finally from contributions.
- 12.2.5 FIRST CHOICE or its designee shall maintain separate bookkeeping accounts for the Fund. A statement of the operations of the Fund as shown on the books of FIRST CHOICE shall be prepared annually by FIRST CHOICE (FIRST CHOICE shall not be obligated to have audited financial statements prepared) and shall be made available for inspection by Franchisee, upon written request of Franchisee.
- 12.2.6 Although the Fund is intended to be of perpetual duration, FIRST CHOICE maintains the right to terminate the Fund; provided that FIRST CHOICE shall use

any unexpended monies in the Fund for marketing and/or promotional purposes for the System.

- 12.3. FIRST CHOICE may, in its sole discretion, make available to you, from time to time, marketing plans and promotional materials, including newspaper mats, coupons, merchandising materials, sales aids, point-of-purchase materials, special promotions, direct mail materials, and similar marketing and promotional materials.
- 12.4 You may develop advertising materials for your own use, at your own costs. You must ensure that all advertising and promotional materials, signs, all forms and stationery used in connection with the Franchise, products, and other items specified by FIRST CHOICE bear the Proprietary Marks in the form, color, location, and manner prescribed by FIRST CHOICE in the Manual, or otherwise in writing by FIRST CHOICE. We must approve all advertising materials (including, but not limited to collateral materials and campaigns, broadcast, print or other media) in advance of your using the materials. For all proposed advertising, marketing, and promotional materials that we have not supplied to you or previously approved, you shall submit samples of such plans and materials to us, for our review and prior written approval. If you do not receive written approval from us within fifteen (15) days of the date of our receipt of such samples or materials, we shall be deemed to have approved them. You acknowledge and agree that any and all copyright in advertising and promotional materials developed by or on behalf of you shall be our sole property, and you agree to execute such documents (and, if necessary, require your independent contractors to execute such documents) as we may deem reasonably necessary to give effect to this provision.
- 12.5 If we so require, you shall, at your expense, obtain listings in such online directories that we may specify, from time to time, in our sole discretion.
- 12.6 You shall not establish a Website (as defined below), nor offer, promote, or sell any products or services, or make any use of the Proprietary Marks, through the Internet without our prior written approval. As a condition to granting any such consent, we shall have the right to establish such requirements as we deem appropriate, including but not limited to the requirement that your only presence on the Internet shall be through a webpage established by us on our website. Any Website shall be deemed "marketing" under this Agreement, and will be subject to (among other things) to our approval under Section 12.4 above. (As used in this Agreement, the term "Website" means an interactive electronic document, contained in a network of computers linked by communications software. The term Website includes, but is not limited to, Internet and World Wide Web home pages, as well as social media sites such as Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter, etc.).

A Website will be created and maintained for you by us, as part of the services we provide in exchange for the Technology Fee

Because we expect that each FIRST CHOICE Business will have a strong presence in its community, you must establish an account with each of Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter and any other social or networking Websites we specify, and these accounts must comply with our guidelines including posting of content and representation of the Marks. If any objectionable content is posted to one of these accounts, you will have 12 hours after notice

from us to remove it. If the objectionable content is not removed within this 12-hour period, we have the right to terminate your Franchise Agreement. Any other on-line presence that you wish to establish must have our prior written consent. You must provide us with all the user IDs and passwords related to each on-line account you establish.

13. INSURANCE

- You agree that prior to the commencement of operations under this Agreement, you will 13.1 obtain at your expense an insurance policy or policies protecting you, us, and our respective officers, directors, partners, and employees against any demand or claim with respect to personal injury, death, or property damage, or any loss, liability, or expense whatsoever arising or occurring upon or in connection with the Franchise, including, but not limited to comprehensive general liability insurance property and casualty insurance, vehicle insurance (for your company owned vehicles) and statutory workers' compensation insurance. You agree that you will maintain these policies in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement. Such policy or policies must be written by a responsible carrier or carriers acceptable to us, must name FIRST CHOICE as additional insured, and must provide at least the types and minimum amounts of coverage specified in this Section or in a greater amount if specified in the Manual from time to time. Unless otherwise advised in writing by us (through the Manuals or otherwise in writing), you must carry general liability insurance with a minimum limit of liability in respect to bodily injury or property damage of \$1,000,000 per occurrence. For vehicles, the minimum limits of liability with respect to bodily injury or property damage shall be \$250,000 per person and \$500,000 per occurrence.
- 13.2 Your obligation to obtain and maintain the policies in the amounts specified in this Agreement or in the Manual shall not be limited in any way by reason of any insurance which may be maintained by us, nor shall your performance of that obligation relieve you of liability under the indemnity provisions set forth in Section 20 of this Agreement.
- 13.3 All public liability and property damage policies must contain a provision, or additional insured rider or declaration, that FIRST CHOICE shall be entitled to recover under such policies on any loss occasioned to us or our officers, directors, servants, agents, or employees by reason of the negligence or intentional act or omission by you or your officers, directors, servants, agents, or employees.
- 13.4 Prior to the commencement of any operations under this Agreement, and thereafter at least fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration of any policy, you must deliver to FIRST CHOICE certificates of insurance evidencing the proper types and minimum amounts of coverage. All Certificates must expressly provide that no less than fifteen (15) days prior written notice must be given to FIRST CHOICE in the event of material alteration to or cancellation of the coverage evidenced by such certificates.

14. TRANSFER OF INTEREST

14.1 All rights and duties of FIRST CHOICE under this Agreement may be freely assigned or transferred by FIRST CHOICE in its sole discretion and without restriction to any person

or legal entity, so long as that person or legal entity agrees to assume our obligations hereunder.

- 14.2 FIRST CHOICE has entered into this Agreement in reliance upon and in consideration of the singular personal skill, qualifications and trust and confidence that we have in you. Therefore, you agree that you will not assign, transfer, give away or encumber, voluntarily or involuntarily (a "Transfer") your interest in: (a) this Agreement; (b) in you (if you are a legal entity); (c) the Franchise; (d) the lease for the Franchise; or (e) the Approved Location without the prior written consent of FIRST CHOICE. You may proceed with the assignment with our written consent and with your and your assignee's compliance with the requirements of this Section 14. FIRST CHOICE will not unreasonably withhold approval of assignments and transfers, contingent upon your compliance with the conditions of this Section 14.
- 14.3 You understand and acknowledge the vital importance of your performance to the market position and overall image of Franchisor. You also recognize that there are many subjective factors that comprise the process by which a Franchisor selects a suitable Franchise owner. Therefore, you must notify FIRST CHOICE in writing of any proposed Transfer of any direct or indirect interest in this Agreement, in the Franchise, or in all or substantially all of the assets of the Franchise at least thirty (30) days before such Transfer is proposed to take place. FIRST CHOICE will not unreasonably withhold its consent to any Transfer so long as you comply with the conditions set forth in this Section 14. In the event that you want to engage in a Transfer or any transaction set forth in Paragraphs 14.2 or 14.3, then we have the right to impose any or all of the following conditions on our granting approval of such Transfer or transaction:
 - 14.3.1 The transferee (and, if the transferee is other than an individual, such owners of a beneficial interest in the transferee as we may request) must demonstrate to our satisfaction that it meets our educational, managerial, and business standards; possesses a good moral character, business reputation, and credit rating; has the aptitude and ability to operate the Franchise (as may be evidenced by prior related business experience or otherwise), and has adequate financial resources and capital to operate the Franchise;
 - 14.3.2 All of your accrued monetary, obligations and all other outstanding obligations to FIRST CHOICE and/or its affiliates must have been satisfied;
 - 14.3.3 You must not be in default of any provision of this Agreement, any amendment hereof or successor hereto, or any other agreement between you and Franchisor and/or its affiliates;
 - 14.3.4 You must pay a Transfer fee of \$5,000 to reimburse Franchisor for its reasonable costs and expenses associated with the transfer, including, but not limited to, reviewing the application to transfer, training the new franchisee, legal and accounting fees, and associated costs;
 - 14.3.5 You must remain liable for all of the obligations to FIRST CHOICE, in connection with the Franchise that arose prior to the effective date of the Transfer and execute

- any and all instruments reasonable requested by FIRST CHOICE to evidence such liability;
- 14.3.6 Your transferee (or, if the transferee is a corporation, limited liability company, or other entity, the manager designated by transferee acceptable to FIRST CHOICE) at the transferee's expense, must undergo a minimum of five (5) days of training at our corporate facility in Las Vegas, Nevada, or at a location designated by us (which may be partially or completely through the Internet), prior to effectuating the Transfer; you or your transferee must pay us our then-prevailing fee for attending such training, and your transferee must bear its (or his or her own) travel expenses (other than lodging and meals during the training conferences).
- 14.3.7 Your transferee must execute the then-current form of standard franchise agreement and other ancillary agreements as FIRST CHOICE may require for the Franchise, which successor agreement shall supersede this Agreement in all respects and which may differ materially from the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to a higher royalty and marketing fee, and smaller Area of Operations. However, we will not fundamentally change the nature of the franchise offering in a successor franchise agreement;
- 14.3.8 Your transferee (and, if the transferee is other than an individual, owners of a beneficial interest in the transferee) must enter into a written assignment, in a form satisfactory to FIRST CHOICE, assuming and agreeing to discharge all of your obligations under this Agreement; and if your obligations were guaranteed by the transferor, that the transferee guarantee the performance of all such obligations in writing in a form satisfactory to FIRST CHOICE;
- 14.3.9 Your transferee (and, if the transferee is other than an individual, such owners of a beneficial interest in the transferee as Franchisor may request) execute a guarantee, indemnification, acknowledgment, and assumption of all obligations under this Agreement;
- 14.3.10 You and your owners (if you are a legal entity) must execute our then-current form of general release (a copy of our current required form of general release is attached to this Agreement as "Schedule 3,"), of any and all claims against us and our subsidiaries and affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, agents, and employees.
- 14.3.11 You acknowledge and agree that each condition that must be met by the transferee is necessary to assure such transferee's full performance of the obligations hereunder.
- 14.4 You must not grant a security interest in this Agreement, the Franchise or in any of the assets of the Franchise unless the secured party agrees that in the event of any default by you under any documents related to the security interest, FIRST CHOICE shall have the right and option (but not the obligation) to be substituted as obligor to the secured party and to cure any default of yours, and any acceleration of indebtedness due to your default shall be void.

- 14.5 If you, any party holding any direct or indirect interest in this Agreement, in your company, or in all or substantially all of the assets of the Franchise desires to accept any bona fide offer to complete a Transfer, you must notify FIRST CHOICE. FIRST CHOICE will then have the right and option to purchase the seller's interest on the same terms and conditions offered by the third party. Our option is exercisable within thirty (30) days after we receive from you written notification of the proposed deal by sending you written notice that we intend to purchase the assets being sold on the same terms and conditions as being offered to the third party. If FIRST CHOICE elects not to purchase the seller's interest, any material change thereafter in the terms of the offer from a third party shall constitute a new offer subject to the same rights of first refusal by FIRST CHOICE as in the case of the third party's initial offer. In the event the consideration, terms and/or conditions offered by a third party are such that FIRST CHOICE may not reasonably be required to furnish the same consideration, terms and/or conditions, then FIRST CHOICE may purchase the interest proposed to be sold for the reasonable equivalent in cash. If the parties cannot agree within a reasonable time on the cash consideration, an independent appraiser shall be designated by Franchisor at Franchise's expense, and the appraiser's determination shall be binding.
- 14.6 In the event of death or legal incapacity (or, if you are a corporation, limited liability company, or other entity, any person with an interest in all or substantially all of the assets of the Franchise), the heirs, beneficiaries, devisees, executors, administrators or your other legal representatives must, within one hundred twenty (120) days of such event:
 - 14.6.1 Apply to FIRST CHOICE for the right to continue to operate the Franchise for the duration of the term of this Agreement and any renewals hereof, which right shall be granted provided the surviving spouse, heirs or estate shall satisfy all of the then current qualifications for a purchaser of a Franchise; or
 - 14.6.2 Sell, assign, transfer, or convey your interest in compliance with the provisions of Section 14 of this Agreement; provided, however, in the event a proper and timely application for the right to continue to operate the Franchise has been made by you and rejected by FIRST CHOICE, the one hundred twenty (120) days to sell, assign, transfer, or convey the Franchise shall be computed from the date of said rejection.
- 14.7 If the provisions of Section 14.6 have not been fulfilled within the time provided, all rights granted to you under this Agreement shall, at the option of Franchisor, terminate immediately and automatically revert to Franchisor.
- 14.8 Our consent to a Transfer of any interest in this Agreement, in Franchise owner or in all or substantially all of the assets of the Franchise will not constitute a waiver of any claims we may have against you, nor will it be deemed a waiver of our right to demand exact compliance with any of the terms of this Agreement by the transferor or transferee.
- 14.9 Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event you desire to make an intra-family assignment or Transfer of the Franchise business, or if you wish to make an assignment or Transfer to a corporation or LLC wholly owned by you, the transfer fee set forth herein will be waived.

All other terms and obligations associated with said Transfer will apply to such transfer (including the obligation to pay our then-current training fee).

15. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

- 15.1 You shall be deemed to be in default under this Agreement, and all rights granted to Franchise herein shall automatically terminate without notice to you:
 - 15.1.1 If you become insolvent, meaning unable to pay your bills in the ordinary course as they become due;
 - 15.1.2 If you, or the Key Personnel, in our sole subjective discretion, fail to satisfactorily complete our initial training program;
 - 15.1.3 If you fail to open the Franchise within the time limits provided in Section 5.2 of this Agreement;
 - 15.1.4 If you, at any time, cease to operate or otherwise abandon the Franchise, or otherwise forfeit the right to do so or transact business in the legal jurisdiction where the Franchise is located;
 - 15.1.5 If you, or any officer, director, partner, or principal of Franchisee have engaged in conduct, or are convicted of a criminal offense, that FIRST CHOICE believes is reasonably likely to have an adverse effect on the System, the Proprietary Marks, the goodwill associated therewith, or our interest therein;
 - 15.1.6 If any purported assignment or Transfer of any direct or indirect interest in this Agreement, in Franchisee, or in all or substantially all of the assets of the Franchise is made to any third party without our prior written consent, contrary to the terms of Section 14 hereof;
 - 15.1.7 If an approved Transfer is not affected within the time provided following death or mental incapacity, as required by Section 14.6 hereof;
 - 15.1.8 If you fail to comply with the covenants in Section 17.2 hereof or fail to obtain execution of the covenants required under sections 10.2 or 17.7 hereof;
 - 15.1.9 If, contrary to the terms of Sections 9 or 10 hereof, you disclose or divulge the contents of the Manual or other confidential information provided to you by us;
 - 15.1.10 If you knowingly maintain false books or records, or submit any false reports to us;
 - 15.1.11 If you misuse or make any unauthorized use of the Proprietary Marks or any other identifying characteristics of the System, or otherwise materially impair the goodwill associated with our rights therein;

- 15.1.12 If you refuse to permit FIRST CHOICE, and/or its designated agents, to inspect the Premises, books, records, or accounts upon demand;
- 15.1.13 If you, upon receiving a notice of default under Section 15.2 hereof, fail to initiate immediately a remedy to cure such default;
- 15.1.14 If you receive from FIRST CHOICE three (3) or more notices to cure a default or violation of this Agreement during any twelve (12) month period, whether or not the default or violation is cured after notice;
- 15.1.15 If you breach any material term of the Computer System User License Agreement, except for those terms relating to payment (defaults relating to payment of fees are governed by Paragraph 15.2.1 below); or
- 15.1.16 As stated under Section 12.6, you fail to remove objectionable content from a Website within twelve (12) hours of notice from us.
- 15.2 Except as otherwise provided in Sections 15.1 of this Agreement, you will have thirty (30) days after your receipt from FIRST CHOICE of a written notice of default within which to remedy any other default under this Agreement and to provide evidence thereof to FIRST CHOICE. You may avoid termination by immediately initiating a remedy to cure such default and curing it to our satisfaction within the thirty (30) day period (or within such longer time period as FIRST CHOICE may reasonably specify), and by promptly providing proof thereof to us. If any such default is not cured within the specified time, or such longer period as applicable law may require, this Agreement shall terminate without further notice to you, effective immediately upon the expiration of the period. You will be in default pursuant to this Section 15.2 for failure substantially to comply with any of the requirements imposed by this Agreement, as it may from time to time be reasonably supplemented by the Manual, or failure to carry out the terms of the Agreement in good faith. Such defaults include, but are not limited to, the following illustrative events:
 - 15.2.1 If you fail, refuse, or neglect promptly to pay any monies owing to FIRST CHOICE, its affiliates or vendors when due, or to submit the financial or other information required by FIRST CHOICE under this Agreement (the time for curing such default will be 10 calendar days).
 - 15.2.2 If you fail to operate the Franchise in strict compliance with all of the standards or procedures prescribed by FIRST CHOICE in this Agreement, in the Manual, or otherwise in writing, and without restricting the generality of the foregoing, if you fail to promptly pay all your expenses incurred in the operation of the Franchise;
 - 15.2.3 Except as provided in Section 15.1.6 hereof, if you fail, refuse, or neglect to obtain our prior written approval or consent as required by this Agreement; and/or
 - 15.2.4 If you engage in any business or market any service or product under a name or mark which, in our opinion, is confusingly similar to the Proprietary Marks.

16. OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION

Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, all rights granted hereunder to you will terminate immediately, and:

- 16.1 You must immediately cease to operate the Franchise, and must not thereafter, directly or indirectly, represent to the public or hold yourself out as a present or former franchisee of FIRST CHOICE.
- 16.2 You must immediately and permanently cease to use, in any manner whatsoever, any confidential methods, procedures, and techniques associated with the System, the Proprietary Marks, and all other proprietary marks and distinctive forms, slogans, signs, symbols and devices associated with the System. In particular, you must cease to use, without limitation, the Manual and all signs, bags, advertising materials (including internet, social media, and websites), displays, stationery, collateral materials, and any other articles that display the Proprietary Marks.
- 16.3 You must take such action as may be necessary to cancel any trade or fictitious name registration or equivalent registration obtained by you which contains the mark "FIRST CHOICE" or any other Proprietary Marks, and you must furnish FIRST CHOICE with evidence satisfactory to us of compliance with this obligation within ten (10) days after termination or expiration of this Agreement. You appoint FIRST CHOICE its true and lawful agent and attorney, for it and in its behalf to take such action, and to execute all such documents in its name and on its behalf as may be necessary, pursuant to this subsection to carry out any acts on behalf of you in the event of termination or expiration of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, transfer or assign to FIRST CHOICE or to its designee or to disconnect and forward all telephone numbers, white and yellow page telephone references and advertisements, and all trade and similar name registrations and business licenses, and to cancel any interest which you may have had in the same. You must execute our Assignment of Telephone Numbers, Internet Addresses, and Social Media Identities, attached as **Schedule 4**, to assist us in accomplishing this.
- 16.4 You agree, in the event you continue to operate or subsequently begin to operate any other business, not to use any reproduction, counterfeit, copy or colorable imitation of the Proprietary Marks, either in connection with such other business or the promotion thereof, which, in our opinion, is likely to cause confusions, mistake, or deception, or which, in our opinion, is likely to dilute our rights in and to the Proprietary Marks. You further agree not to utilize any designation of origin or description or representation which, in our opinion, falsely suggests or represents an association or connection with us.
- 16.5 You must promptly pay all sums owing to FIRST CHOICE and/or its affiliates. In the event of termination for any default by you, such sums shall include all damages, costs, and expenses, including attorney's fees and disbursements, incurred by FIRST CHOICE as a result of the default. These damages will include the Royalty Fees which FIRST CHOICE would have received from you through the end of the Initial Term if this Agreement had not been terminated prematurely. Your obligation to pay all damages, costs and expenses will give rise to and remain, until paid-in-full, a lien in favor of FIRST CHOICE against any and all of the personal property, furnishings, equipment, signs,

fixtures, and inventory owned by you. Termination or expiration of this Agreement shall not affect, modify or discharge any claims, rights, causes of action or remedies which FIRST CHOICE may have against you, whether such claims or rights arise before or after termination or expiration.

- 16.6 You must pay to FIRST CHOICE all damages, costs, and expenses, including attorney's fees and disbursements, incurred by us subsequent to the termination or expiration of this Agreement in obtaining injunctive or other relief for the enforcement of any provision of this Agreement.
- 16.7 You must immediately deliver to FIRST CHOICE the Manual and all other records, correspondence, and instructions containing confidential information relating to the operation of the Franchise, all of which are acknowledged to be the property of FIRST CHOICE, and must retain no copy or record of any of the foregoing.
- 16.8 You must comply with the covenants contained in Section 17.3 of this Agreement.
- 16.9 To secure your performance under this Agreement and indebtedness for all obligations owed and sums due us or our affiliates, we shall have a lien upon, and you hereby grant us a security interest in, the following collateral and any and all attachments, accessories, additions, accessions, and substitutions to or for it and the cash and non-cash proceeds derived from insurance or the disposition of such collateral: (a) all inventory, equipment, furniture, furnishings, fixtures, and supplies now leased, owned or after-acquired by you and the Franchise, including but not limited to all inventory, equipment, furniture, furnishings, fixtures, and supplies transferred to or acquired by you in connection with this Agreement; (b) all accounts of you and/or the Franchise now existing or subsequently arising, together with all interest in you and/or the Franchise, now existing or subsequently arising, together with all chattel paper, documents, and instruments relating to such accounts; (c) all contract rights of you and/or the Franchise, now existing or subsequently arising; (d) all general intangibles of you and/or the Franchise, now owned or existing, or after-acquired or subsequently arising; (e) all of your and/or the Franchise's interests in the real estate where the Franchised Business is located; and (f) all improvements to that real estate. You hereby authorize us to file and record financing statements, financing statement amendments, continuation financing statements, fixture filings and other documents that we deem necessary to evidence, perfect and continue the priority of security interests in and to these assets. You also agree to execute and deliver any such documents to us upon our request.
- 16.10 The provisions of this Section 16, as well as Sections 10, 14, 17, 20, and 25 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

17. ADDITIONAL COVENANTS

17.1 You covenant that during the term of this Agreement or any renewals thereof, except as otherwise approved in writing by us, you (individually or as an entity) must use your best efforts in guiding the management and operation of the Franchise, and in recommending, promoting and encouraging patronage of all franchised units operating under the System.

- 17.2 You specifically acknowledge that, pursuant to this Agreement, you will receive valuable, specialized training and confidential information, including, but not limited to, information regarding the operational sales, promotional, and marketing methods and techniques used under the System in the operation of the Franchise. You covenant that during the term of this Agreement, in the United States, except as otherwise approved in writing by FIRST CHOICE, you will not, directly or indirectly:
 - 17.2.1 Divert or attempt to divert any present or prospective business or customer of the Franchise or any FIRST CHOICE franchise to any competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or perform, directly or indirectly, any other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with the Proprietary Marks and the System; or
 - 17.2.3 Own, maintain, operate, engage in, be employed by, provide any assistance to, or have any interest in (as owner or otherwise) any business that offers products or services which are the same as or similar to the products and services being offered by FIRST CHOICE under the System.
- 17.3 You covenant that, except as otherwise approved in writing by FIRST CHOICE, you will not, directly or indirectly, in your Area of Operations, within 20 miles of your Approved Location, for a two (2) year period beginning upon the expiration or termination (including a sale or transfer of your rights under this Agreement or your interest in it) of this Agreement offer business brokerage services. You also agree to this same prohibition for the same time period as to the Area of Operations and a 20 mile radius of the Approved Location of other FIRST CHOICE franchisees at the time of your expiration or termination.
- 17.4 Sections 17.2 and 17.3 shall not apply to ownership by you of less than five (5%) percent beneficial interest in the outstanding equity securities of any corporation which has securities registered under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 ("publicly-held corporation").
- 17.5 You understand and acknowledge that we shall have the right, in our sole discretion, to reduce the scope of any covenant set forth in Sections 17.2 or 17.3, or any portion thereof, without your consent effective immediately upon receipt by you of written notice thereof; and you agree that you must comply forthwith with any covenants as so modified, which must be fully enforceable notwithstanding the provisions of Section 23 hereof.
- 17.6 You expressly agree that the existence of any claims you may have against FIRST CHOICE, whether or not arising from this Agreement, will not constitute a defense to the enforcement by FIRST CHOICE of the covenants in this Section 17. You agree to pay all costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees) incurred by FIRST CHOICE in connection with the enforcement of this Section 17.
- 17.7 At our request, you must obtain and furnish to FIRST CHOICE executed covenants, in our then-current form of Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement from any or all of the following persons: (a) all managers and any other personnel employed by you who have received or will receive training from us; and (b) all officers, directors, partners, principals, lenders, and other holders of a beneficial interest of five percent (5%) or more

of your securities or equity interests, and of any corporation or other entity directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under common control with you. our current form of Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement is attached hereto as **Schedule 5.**

18. CORPORATE OR ENTITY FRANCHISEE

- 18.1 You and each of your owners, officers, directors, shareholders, members, principals and/or partners (the "Owners") warrants and agrees that the Statement of Ownership (Schedule 6 to this Agreement) is current, complete and accurate. You agree that updates to Schedule 6 attached hereto will be furnished promptly to FIRST CHOICE, so that Schedule 6 (as so revised and signed by you) is at all times current, complete and accurate. Each of your Owners will be an individual acting in his individual capacity, unless we waive this requirement.
- 18.2 If you are, or at any time become, a business corporation, limited liability company, or other legal entity, you and each of your Owners represents, warrants and agrees that: (a) Franchisee is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the state of its organization; (b) Franchisee has the authority to execute and deliver the Franchise Agreement and all related agreements and to perform its obligations under all such agreements; (c) the articles of incorporation, articles of organization, or other organizational documents recite that the issuance, transfer or pledge of any direct or indirect legal or beneficial ownership interest in Franchisee is restricted by the terms of the Franchise Agreement; and (d) all certificates representing direct or indirect legal or beneficial ownership interests now or hereafter issued bear a legend in conformity with applicable law reciting or referring to such restrictions.
- 18.3 Any Owner listed on Schedule 6 must sign the "Guaranty, Indemnification, and Acknowledgement," attached hereto as **Schedule 2** as a guarantor. In addition, any person or entity that is an Owner of Franchisee, or at any time becomes an Owner of Franchisee, is a personal guarantor and must execute Schedule 2 as a condition of becoming an Owner.
- 18.4 You must provide FIRST CHOICE with copies of your Operating Agreement, Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, shareholder agreements, membership agreements, and other governing documents, and any amendments thereto, including the resolution of the Board of Directors authorizing entry into this Agreement.

19. TAXES, PERMITS, LICENSES AND INDEBTEDNESS

- 19.1 You must promptly pay, when due, all taxes levied or assessed, including, but not limited to, environmental and sales taxes and all accounts and other indebtedness of every kind incurred by you in the operation of the Franchise.
- 19.2 You must comply with all federal, state, municipal and local laws, rules and regulations, and must timely obtain any and all permits, certificates, or licenses necessary for the full and proper conduct of the Franchise, including, but not limited to, licenses to do business, and trade or fictitious name registrations. Specifically, you and all employees, sales agents employed or contracted by you must maintain all necessary licenses required to operate as a business brokerage or to operate as a business broker, as applicable,

as required by your state's laws. You are solely responsible for determining which laws will apply to your Franchise.

19.3 You must immediately notify FIRST CHOICE, in writing, of the commencement of any action, suit, or proceeding, and of the issuance of any order, writ, injunction, award, or decree of any court, agency or other governmental instrumentality, which may adversely affect the operation or financial condition of the Franchise.

20. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AND INDEMNIFICATION

- 20.1 It is understood and agreed by the parties that this Agreement does not create a fiduciary relationship between them, that you must be an independent contractor, and that nothing in this Agreement is intended to constitute either party as agent, legal representative, subsidiary, joint venture, partner, employee, or servant of the other for any purpose whatsoever. You must comply with the provisions of Section 7.12 hereof and ensure that your Associates do not consider themselves our agent, legal representative, subsidiary, joint venture, partner, employee, or servant.
- 20.2 During the term of this Agreement you must hold yourself out to the public as an independent contractor operating the Franchise as required by this Agreement with FIRST CHOICE. You agree to take such action as may be necessary to do so, including, but not limited to, advising suppliers and customers of your independent ownership of the Franchise. All of your business forms, business cards, stationery, and advertisements must clearly state that the Franchise is independently owned and operated. In addition, the Premises must display a clear sign, in a conspicuous location, stating that the Franchise is independently owned and operated.
- 20.3 Nothing in this Agreement authorizes you to make any contract, agreement, warranty, or representation on our behalf, or to incur any debt or other obligation in our name, and we shall in no event assume liability for, or be deemed liable hereunder as a result of, any such action; nor shall we be liable by reason of any act or omission by you in your operation of the business franchised hereunder or for any claim or judgment arising therefrom against Franchisee or us.
- You must, during the Term and after the termination or expiration of this Agreement, indemnify and defend FIRST CHOICE, its affiliates and their respective officers, directors, managers, members, and employees, and hold them harmless against all claims, demands, causes of action, lawsuits, disputes, controversies, investigations or administrative proceedings (collectively, "Claims") and resulting losses, damages (including punitive damages), costs, suits, judgments, penalties, expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees and amounts paid in settlement or compromise) and liabilities of any kind, whether or not ultimately determined to be meritorious (and including damages suffered by Franchisee or any of its property) (collectively, "Damages") for which they are held liable, or which they incur (including travel, investigation and living expenses of employees and witness fees) in any Claim as a result of or arising out of:

- (a) a breach by Franchisee of this Agreement, or any other agreement between the parties, or any breach of a lease or other instrument by which the right to occupy the Approved Location of the Franchise is held;
- (b) any injury to, or loss of property of, any person in, or on, the Approved Location of the Franchise, the Approved Records Location, or any other premises used by Franchisee to operate the Franchise;
- (c) Franchisee's taxes, liabilities, costs or expenses of its Franchised Business;
- (d) any negligent or willful act or omission of Franchisee, its Owners, officers, directors, managers, members, partners, employees, agents, servants, contractors or others for whom it is, in law, responsible;
- (e) any violation of a legal requirement imposing requirements or prohibitions on Franchisee in the operation of the Franchise; and
- (f) any advertising or promotional material distributed, broadcast or in any way disseminated by Franchisee, or on its behalf, unless such material has been produced, or approved in writing, by FIRST CHOICE.
- 20.5 Franchisee must defend FIRST CHOICE against all Claims identified within the scope of Paragraph 20.4, provided that upon notice to Franchisee, FIRST CHOICE, in its discretion, may use its own counsel and may control such defense of any claims against FIRST CHOICE, but at Franchisee's cost.

21. APPROVALS AND WAIVERS

- 21.1 Whenever this Agreement requires the prior approval or consent of FIRST CHOICE, you must make a timely written request to us, and such approval or consent must be obtained in writing. FIRST CHOICE shall provide the approval or consent in a timely manner, or within the time specified in this Agreement.
- 21.2 FIRST CHOICE makes no warranties or guarantees upon which you may rely, and assumes no liability or obligation to you, by providing any waiver, approval, consent, or suggestion to you in connection with this Agreement, or by reason of any neglect, delay, or denial of any request therefore.
- 21.3 No failure of FIRST CHOICE to exercise any power reserved to it by this Agreement, or to insist upon strict compliance by you with any obligation or condition hereunder, and no custom or practice of the parties at variance with the terms hereof, shall constitute a waiver of our right to demand exact compliance with any of the terms hereof. Waiver by FIRST CHOICE of any particular default by you shall not affect or impair our rights with respect to any subsequent default by you, nor shall any delay, forbearance, or omission of FIRST CHOICE to exercise any power or right arising out of any breach or default by you of any of the terms, provisions, or covenants hereof, affect or impair our right to exercise the same, nor shall such constitute a waiver by FIRST CHOICE of any right hereunder, or the right to declare any subsequent breach or default and to terminate this Agreement prior to the

expiration of its term. Subsequent acceptance by FIRST CHOICE of any payments due to it hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver by FIRST CHOICE of any preceding breach by you of any terms, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement.

22. NOTICES

Any and all notices required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing and must be personally delivered or sent by tracked delivery to the respective parties at the addresses listed in this Agreement, or any subsequent address of record. We may also send notice to you via email.

Any notice by means which affords the sender evidence of delivery or attempted delivery shall be deemed to have been given and received at the date and time of receipt or attempted delivery, provided, however, if delivery or attempted delivery is on a holiday or weekend, delivery shall be deemed to have been given and received on the next business day.

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement and all exhibits to this Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the parties and supersede any and all prior negotiations, understandings, representations, and agreements. Nothing in this or in any related agreement, however, is intended to disclaim the representations we made in the franchise disclosure document that we furnished to you.

24. SEVERABILITY AND CONSTRUCTION

- 24.1 If, for any reason, any portion of this Agreement is deemed invalid, it shall be deemed severed from the Agreement and the rest shall be enforceable.
- 24.2 Any provision of this Agreement that by its nature imposes obligations beyond the expiration or termination of this Agreement survive such expiration or termination.
- 24.3 Except as expressly provided to the contrary herein, nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor shall be deemed, to confer upon any person or legal entity other than you, FIRST CHOICE, their officers, directors, and employees, and such other successors and assigns as may be contemplated by Section 14 hereof, any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement.
- 24.5 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be deemed an original, but such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

25. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

25.1 Choice of Law. This Agreement is effective upon its acceptance in Nevada by our authorized officer. Except as to claims governed by federal law, Nevada law governs all claims that in any way relate to or arise out of this Agreement or any of the dealings of the parties ("Claims"). However, no laws regulating the sale of franchises or governing the relationship between franchisor and franchisee shall apply unless the jurisdictional requirements of such laws are met independently of this paragraph.

- 25.2 **Jurisdiction and Venue.** You and we agree that venue and jurisdiction for any Claims shall be proper solely in the state and federal court nearest to our corporate headquarters, presently located in Las Vegas, Nevada.
- 25.3 **Jury Waiver.** In any trial between any of the parties as to any Claims, you and we agree to waive our rights to a jury trial and instead have such action tried by a judge.
- 25.4 Class Action Waiver. You agree to bring any Claims, if at all, individually and you shall not join such claim with claims of any other person or entity or bring, join or participate in a class action against us.
- 25.5 **Punitive Damages Waiver.** As to any Claims, you and we agree to waive our rights, if any, to seek or recover punitive damages.
- 25.6 **Limitation of Actions.** You agree to bring any Claims against us, if at all, within one (1) year of the occurrence of the facts giving rise to such Claims, and that any action not brought within this period shall be barred as a claim, counterclaim, defense, or set-off.
- 25.7 **Prior Notice of Claims.** As a condition precedent to commencing an action for a Claim, you must notify us within thirty (30) days after the occurrence of the violation or breach, and failure to timely give such notice shall preclude any claim for damages.
- 25.8 **Internal Dispute Resolution.** You must first bring any Claim to our CEO, after providing notice as set forth in Section 25.7 above. You must exhaust this internal dispute resolution procedure before you may bring your Claim before a third party.
- 25.9 **Mediation.** Before you may bring any Claim against us in court, you agree to try for a period of 60 days to mediate such claim before a mutually agreed to mediator in the city or county where our headquarters are located. If we cannot mutually agree on a mediator, you and we agree to use the mediation services of the American Arbitration Association ("AAA"), and split any AAA and mediator fees equally.
- 25.11 **Waiver of bond.** You agree that if we are forced to bring suit to enforce any provision of this Agreement, you agree to waive any requirement that we post bond to obtain a temporary, preliminary, or permanent injunction to enforce these duties.
- 25.12 **Third Party Beneficiaries.** Our officers, directors, members, shareholders, agents, and employees are express third party beneficiaries of the terms of the Dispute Resolution provisions contained herein.
- 25.13 **Reimbursement of Costs.** If we are the substantially prevailing party as to any Claims, you agree to reimburse our costs and attorney fees incurred in pursuing or defending the Claims.

26. FORCE MAJEURE

Neither party shall be responsible to the other for non-performance or delay in performance occasioned by causes beyond its control, including without limiting the generality of the foregoing: (a) acts of God; (b) acts of war, terrorism, or insurrection; (c) strikes, lockouts, labor actions,

boycotts, floods, fires, hurricanes, tornadoes, and/or other casualties; and/or (d) the inability of Franchisor and/or its affiliates or suppliers to manufacture, purchase, and/or cause delivery of any products used in the operation of the Franchise.

27. YOUR ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

27.1 You acknowledge that FIRST CHOICE, or its agent, has provided you with its Franchise Disclosure Document, a complete copy of this Agreement, the schedules hereto, and agreements relating thereto, if any, at least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the date on which you execute the Agreement.

Initial

We will not, because of this Agreement or by virtue of any approvals, advice or services provided to you, be liable to any person or entity that is not a party to this Agreement. You understand that you are not a third-party beneficiary of any other franchise agreement between us and other FIRST CHOICE franchisees, and that you have no independent right to enforce the terms of, or require performance under, any other franchise agreement. You further acknowledge that you are aware of the fact that other present or future FIRST CHOICE franchisees may operate under different forms of agreement(s), and consequently that our obligations and rights for other franchisees may differ materially from yours in certain circumstances.

Initial

You represent and warrant to us that all statements, documents, materials, and information submitted to us, including the application for the rights granted by this Agreement, are true, correct and complete in all material respects, and there have been no material omissions or misrepresentations. You agree to promptly advise us of any material change in the information or statements submitted to us. You acknowledge and understand that we have entered into this Agreement in reliance on the statements and information submitted to us by you, and that any material breach, inaccuracy, misrepresentation, or omission is grounds for us to terminate this Agreement.

Initial

28. TIME OF ESSENCE AND INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

- 28.1 Time shall be of the essence for all purposes of this Franchise Agreement.
- 28.2 The parties acknowledge that all exhibits, addenda, schedules and riders attached to this Agreement are a part of it and fully incorporated into it.

INTENDING TO BE LEGALLY BOUND, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement of the date first above written.

FRANCHISEE		

By:	
Name:	
Title:	
FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC.	
Ву:	
Name:	DATE
Title:	

Approved Territory by Zip Codes:

Map:

SCHEDULE 2 GUARANTY, INDEMNIFICATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

As an inducement to FIRST CHOICE to between FIRST CHOICE ("Franchisor" or	o execute the franchise agreement (the "Agreement") r "We") and
("Franchisee" or "You"), dated	, each of the undersigned, jointly and severally,
hereby unconditionally guarantees to us	and our successors and assigns the Franchisee named
1 &	this Agreement each and every covenant, payment, your part contained and set forth in this Agreement.

Upon demand by FIRST CHOICE, the undersigned will immediately make each payment required under the Agreement. The undersigned hereby waives any right to require FIRST CHOICE to: (a) proceed against the franchise business for any payment required under the Agreement; (b) proceed against or exhaust any security from the franchise business or you; or (c) pursue or exhaust any remedy, including any legal or equitable relief, against you. Without affecting the obligations of the undersigned, under this Guaranty, FIRST CHOICE may, without notice to the undersigned, extend, modify, or release any indebtedness or obligation of yours, or settle, adjust, or compromise any claims against you. The undersigned waives notice of amendment of the Agreement and notice of demand for payment by FIRST CHOICE, and agree to be bound by any, and all such amendments and changes to the Agreement.

The undersigned hereby agree to defend, indemnify, and hold FIRST CHOICE harmless against any and all losses, damages, liabilities, costs, and expenses (including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees, reasonable costs of investigation, court costs, fees, and expenses) resulting from, consisting of, or arising out of or in connection with any failure by you to perform any obligation under the Agreement, any amendment thereto, or any other agreement executed by you referred to therein, and/or due to any act or omission of the Franchise business or you.

The undersigned hereby acknowledge and agree to be personally and individually bound by all of the covenants and non-disclosure provisions contained in the Agreement, including but not limited to those contained in Sections 10 and 17, to the same extent as and for the same period of time as you are required to comply with and abide by such covenants and provisions, except to the extent otherwise required by the Agreement. These obligations of the undersigned shall survive any expiration or termination of the Agreement or this Guaranty.

This Guaranty shall terminate upon the termination or expiration of the Agreement, except that all obligations and liabilities of the undersigned which arose from events that occurred on or before the effective date of such termination, shall remain in full force and effect until satisfied or discharged by the undersigned, and all covenants which by their terms continue in force after the expiration or termination of the Agreement shall remain in force according their terms. Upon the

death of an individual guarantor, the estate of such guarantor shall be bound by this Guaranty, but only for defaults and obligations hereunder existing at the time of death; and the obligations of the other guarantors will continue in full force and effect.

Unless specifically stated otherwise, the terms used in this Guaranty shall have the same meaning as in the Agreement, and shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with Section 25 of the Agreement. This Guaranty shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the State of Nevada.

Any and all notices required or permitted under this Guaranty shall be in writing and shall be personally delivered, sent by registered mail, transmitted by telecommunications equipment, as elected by the party giving notice, or sent by other means which afford the sender evidence of delivery or attempted delivery, to the respective parties at the addresses set forth in the Agreement unless and until a different address has been designated by written notice to the other party.

If more than one person has executed the Guaranty, the term "the undersigned," as used herein shall refer to each such person, and the liability of each of the undersigned hereunder shall be joint and several and primary.

INTENDING TO BE LEGALLY BOUND, the parties hereto have duly executed this Guaranty, Indemnification and Acknowledgment of the date first above written.

FRANCHISEE	
By:Name:	
Title:	
FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC.	
By:	
Name:	DATE

COMPUTER SYSTEM USER LICENSE AGREEMENT

1. License Grant

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement ("Agreement" or "License Agreement"), First Choice Business Brokers, Inc. (licensor referred to as "we", "us" or "our") grant Licensee (referred to as "you") a non-exclusive, revocable, limited license, to use the First Choice Business Brokers, Inc. Computer System for all commercial purposes associated with your business. You authorize FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC. to retrieve, use and rely upon the data collected by (or stored in) the Computer System (referred to as "system" or "application" or "Application") in order to determine the amount of royalties or other payments owed by you, as applicable. The amount of royalties to be collected from you as well as the frequency of collection of such royalties are defined within your FIRST CHOICE Franchise Agreement, as applicable.

2. Technology Fee

In consideration of our granting to you the right to use our Application and for our provision of certain website-related services to you, you agree to pay us a monthly Technology Fee of \$350 per month plus \$145 per month per Agent that you have, to use the Computer System. This fee begins 60 days after you complete initial training. You must pay this fee monthly in advance by remitting it to us at the start of each month. We have the right to increase the monthly fee for use of the Computer System annually, except that no such increase will exceed a total of 20% of the monthly fee charged during the previous year.

3. Term

The term of this License Agreement will be concurrent with the Term of the Franchise Agreement between you and us. In the event that your FIRST CHOICE Franchise Agreement is terminated by us or you in any other manner lose your right to operate the FIRST CHOICE franchise licensed thereunder, this License Agreement will also terminate automatically, and you will have no further rights to use the Application.

4. License Conditions

You may not rent, sell, lease, sublicense, distribute, assign, copy, or in any way transfer any Applications or use any Applications for the benefit of any third party through any outsourcing or time-sharing arrangement or through the operation of any service bureau. You may not modify, reverse-engineer, decompile, disassemble, or otherwise discover the Application, or attempt to do so for any reason. Further, you may not access, create or modify our source code in any way. You do not have the right to and may not create derivative works of the Application. All modifications or enhancements to the Applications remain the sole property of FIRST CHOICE.

Without limiting any other remedy available to us, we may suspend or terminate this Agreement and your access to the Applications or our services under this Agreement if we have reasonable

cause to believe that you have failed to comply with your obligations under this Agreement or that you have failed to comply with your obligations under your Franchise Agreement with us, as applicable. Upon termination, cancellation, suspension or expiration of this Agreement for any reason and by either party, you agree to cease all use of the Applications and our services. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, you shall not thereby be entitled to any refund or credit.

We reserve the right to add additional features or functions to the existing Applications. We may require the updating of the Application when we release a new version of the Application, or when we make new features available. This update may occur automatically or through other means and may occur all at once or over multiple sessions. You understand that we may require your review and acceptance of our then-current privacy policy and/or end user license agreement before you will be permitted a limited license for any subsequent versions of our Application.

5. Ownership

You acknowledge and agree that the Application is licensed, not sold to you by FIRST CHOICE You acknowledge that the Application, including all code, content, protocols, software, and documentation provided to you by FIRST CHOICE in conjunction with the Application or our services are our property or the property of FIRST CHOICE, software developers or licensors, and are protected by U.S. and international copyright, trademarks, patents and other proprietary rights and laws relating to Intellectual Property Rights. "Intellectual Property Rights" means, collectively, rights under patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret laws, and any other intellectual property or proprietary rights recognized in any country or jurisdiction worldwide, including, without limitation, moral or similar rights. You may not delete, alter, or remove any copyright, trademark, or other proprietary rights notice we have placed on any Application. All rights not expressly granted hereunder are expressly reserved to FIRST CHOICE and FIRST CHOICE's licensors. FIRST CHOICE, BUSINESS BROKERS® and other marks and logos are trademarks owned by and/or applied for by First Choice Business Brokers, Inc., All Rights Reserved.

6. Content and Infringement

You understand that all content, including, without limitation all data, links, articles, search results, graphic or video messages and all information, text, software, sound, graphics or other materials ("Content") made available or accessible through the Applications or our services, whether publicly available or privately transmitted, is the sole responsibility of the entity from whom it originated. You agree to accept all risks associated with the use of any Content, including any reliance on the accuracy or completeness of such Content. Under no circumstances will FIRST CHOICE be liable in any way for any Content, including, but not limited to, for any errors or omissions in any Content, or for loss or damage of any kind incurred as a result of the use of any Content posted or transmitted via the Application.

You understand, acknowledge and agree that the Application includes software that allows us to distribute updates and fixes, and to shut down, monitor and modify the Application, and you hereby authorize us to do the same. Such updates will occur only upon prior notice to you, except for the limited case where notice is not possible due to technical problems or an emergency that requires

us to update the application in order to maintain existing functionality or to comply with the law. All such updates shall be governed by and made in compliance with this Agreement.

7. Access and Interference; Passwords

You agree that you will not use any robot, spider, other automatic or manual device or process to interfere or attempt to interfere with the proper working of any of our Applications, services or content, except to remove our Applications from a computer of which you are an owner or authorized user. You may not violate or attempt to violate the security of our services. We reserve the right to investigate occurrences which may involve such violations, and may involve, and cooperate with, law enforcement authorities in prosecuting users who have participated in such violations. You agree that it is your responsibility to install anti-virus software and related protections against viruses, Trojan horses, worms, time bombs, cancelbots or other techniques that may have the effect of damaging, destroying, disrupting or otherwise impairing a computer's functionality or operation, which may inadvertently be transferred to your computer through your use of the Application.

In order to access certain services, which may from time to time be offered by FIRST CHOICE, you may be required to pay fees, accept additional terms and conditions and/or, establish an account including an unique identification code or name (an "ID") and password (a "Password"). You are the sole and exclusive owner of any Password and ID combination issued or chosen by to you. Maintaining the confidentiality and security of your Password(s) and ID(s) is solely your responsibility. You are fully responsible for the use and protection of each Password and ID issued to or chosen by you and for all transactions undertaken by means of any account opened, held, accessed or used via such Password and ID. You shall notify us immediately and confirm in writing any unauthorized use of accounts or any breach of security, including without limitation any loss, theft or unauthorized use of your Password(s), and/or ID(s) or any related account. If we have reasonable grounds to suspect that the security of your Password and/or ID has been compromised, we have the right to suspend or terminate your account, refuse any and all current or future use of the services, and pursue any appropriate legal remedies. We shall not be responsible for any losses incurred in connection with any misuse of any Password or ID.

8. Electronic Signatures and Agreements

You acknowledge and agree that by clicking on the button labeled "SUBMIT", "DOWNLOAD", "I ACCEPT" or such similar links as may be designated by FIRST CHOICE. to accept the system software, you are submitting a legally binding electronic signature and are entering into a legally binding contract. You acknowledge that your electronic submissions constitute your agreement and intent to be bound by this Agreement, pursuant to any applicable statutes, regulations, rules, ordinances or other laws, including without limitation, the United States Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act, P.L. 106-229 (the "E-Sign Act") or other similar statutes. You hereby agree to the use of electronic signatures, contracts, orders and other records and to electronic delivery of notices, policies and records of transactions initiated or completed through the application or services offered by FIRST CHOICE. Further, you hereby waive any rights or requirements under any statutes, regulations, rules, ordinances or other laws in any jurisdiction

which require an original signature or delivery or retention of non-electronic records, or to payments or the granting of credits by other than electronic means.

9. Disclaimer of Warranty

Your access and use of the applications and services and any content available through our services or on our websites at your sole risk.

We provide the Applications and the content on an "as is," and "as available" basis without warranty of any kind, either express, implied or statutory, including without limitation, any implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, title, custom, trade, quiet enjoyment, accuracy of informational content, system integration or non-infringement.

We make no representations or warranties concerning the services provided by third parties accessible on or through our applications or our services.

Neither we nor our directors, officers, employees, parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, agents, contractors, third party vendors, facilities, information providers, licensors, nor any exchanges, clearing organizations or other suppliers providing data, information, or services (each a "provider") make any representation or warranty: (a) as to the timeliness, sequence, accuracy, completeness, reliability or content of the applications or FIRST CHOICE's services or any information, service or transaction provided thereby, or (b) that the applications or FIRST CHOICE's services will be available or will operate in an uninterrupted or error-free manner, (c) that errors or defects related to the applications or the services will be corrected or (d) that we can identify any identity theft. We also do not warrant that the applications or the services or the information available through the services, is appropriate, accurate or available for use in any particular jurisdiction.

This disclaimer of warranty constitutes an essential part of this agreement.

The above exclusions may not apply in jurisdictions that do not allow the exclusion of certain implied warranties.

10. Termination

In the event that your FIRST CHOICE Franchise Agreement is terminated pursuant to the terms of such agreement, then this License Agreement will also terminate at the same time, without needing any further actions by us. We also may terminate this Agreement only for good cause and disable Applications or cease providing any service at any time in our reasonable discretion.

11. Limitation of Liability

The parties agree that the limitation of liability provisions contained in this section shall not supersede any conflicting terms, representations or warrantees as contained in the Standard Franchise Agreement executed by the parties, as applicable.

You expressly acknowledge and agree that in no event will FIRST CHOICE, its parents, subsidiaries, or affiliates or their employees, distributors, suppliers, merchant partners, advertisers, directors or agents (each a "protected party," collectively "protected parties") be liable for any direct, incidental, special, punitive, consequential or exemplary damages or other relief arising out of, or related to, this agreement or to your use or inability to use any or all of the applications or FIRST CHOICE services including, without limitation, lost profits, lost business or lost opportunity, goodwill, or other intangible losses (even if FIRST CHOICE has been advised of the possibility of such damages).

Solely to the extent the foregoing limitation of liability is, for any reason, held to be inapplicable or unenforceable in whole or in part, then the protected parties' aggregate liability, for any reason and for any cause of action and any theory of liability, arising out of or related to the services or this agreement shall be limited to the lesser of damages actually incurred or the average revenue received by FIRST CHOICE pursuant to this agreement. The protected parties assume no liability hereunder for, and shall have no obligation to defend you or to pay costs, damages or attorneys' fees for, any claim based upon: (i) any method or process in which the Application may be used by you; (ii) any results of using the Application; (iii) any use of other than a current unaltered release of one of the Applications; or (iv) the combination, operation or use of any of the Application(s) with third party programs or data.

Because some states or jurisdictions do not allow the exclusion or the limitation of liability for consequential or incidental damages, in such states or jurisdictions, our liability shall be limited to the extent permitted by law.

12. Export Controls

The Application and the underlying information and technology may not be downloaded or otherwise exported or re-exported (i) into (or to a national or resident of) any country to which the U.S. has embargoed goods; or (ii) to anyone on the U.S. Treasury Department's list of Specially Designated Nationals or the U.S. Commerce Department's Table of Deny Orders. By downloading or using the Application, you agree to the foregoing and you represent and warrant that you are not located in, under the control of, or a national or resident of any such country or on any such list, and that you will otherwise comply with all applicable export control laws.

13. Applicable Law

By accessing or using the Application or our services, you agree that the substantive laws of the State of Nevada in the United States of America shall govern all matters relating to or arising from this Agreement, and the use (or inability to use) any or all of the services or the Application, and that such laws shall apply without regard to principles of conflict of laws. Subject to the dispute resolution procedures set forth below, you hereby submit to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the appropriate State and Federal courts located in Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada with respect to all matters arising out of or relating to this Agreement. The United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods does not apply to this Agreement. You agree that regardless of any statute or law to the contrary, any claim or cause of action arising out of or related

to use of the FIRST CHOICE Service, any Application or the FIRST CHOICE Privacy Policy must be filed within one (1) year after such claim or cause of action arose or be forever barred.

14. Successor Agreements

The terms of this Agreement may change from time to time. You should check back at the website regularly to determine if any material changes have been made. We may prominently post material changes on the FIRST CHOICE website at least 14 days prior to the effective date of the change and will also attempt to provide you with an on-line notice informing you when such material changes have been made to this Agreement, which notice shall contain an active link that you can use to view a web page containing or linking to the revised Agreement.

You agree that your continued use of any Application or our services after the effective date of any change will constitute your affirmative consent to this revised Agreement. If you do not accept such revisions, you must affirmatively indicate to us in writing with such notice being sent to the same address listed in Section Eight above that you do not accept the successor Agreement and remove all of our Applications from your computer and cease all access to and use of our services hereunder. Failure to remove our Applications from your computer will be deemed an acceptance of the terms of the most current Agreement.

15. General

This Agreement, as modified from time to time as described above, and including the FIRST CHOICE Privacy Policy, Terms of Service and any other policies incorporated by reference, sets forth the entire understanding and agreement between the parties. No delay or failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement will constitute a waiver of such provision by FIRST CHOICE or acts as estoppel against later enforcement. Subject to the terms of the Order of Precedence set forth above, this Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between you and FIRST CHOICE with respect to the specific subject matter addressed herein, and governs your use of the Application and our services, superseding any prior agreements between you and FIRST CHOICE or its affiliates or related entities relating to such subject matter, but this Agreement may be supplemented by any other agreement you enter into with FIRST CHOICE or its affiliates or related entities pursuant to a registration to access additional software or services provided by FIRST CHOICE. You may not assign any of your rights or delegate any of your obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of FIRST CHOICE FIRST CHOICE shall not be deemed to be in breach of this Agreement due to any delay or failure of performance or interruption in the availability of the Services resulting directly or indirectly from any act of nature or other cause beyond the reasonable control of FIRST CHOICE If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the parties nevertheless agree that the court should endeavor to give effect to the parties' intentions as reflected in the provision, and that the other provisions of this Agreement remain in full force and effect. Sections 2-12 of this Agreement will survive any expiration, cancellation or termination of this Agreement.

LICENSEE:	
FRANCHISEE	
By:	
LICENSOR: FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BRO	OKERS, INC.
By:	DATE

The section headings used in this Agreement are for convenience only and have no legal or contractual effect.

<u>SCHEDULE 4</u> ASSIGNMENT OF TELEPHONE NUMBERS, INTERNET ADDRESSES, AND SOCIAL MEDIA IDENTITIES

By:	By: Name:
By:	By:
FRANCHISEE	FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC.
conclusive proof of our exclusive rights in and to the L agree that if a Listing Agency requires that the part documentation at the time of expiration or termination effectuate Franchisee's consent and agreement to the atthis Agreement, they will perform such acts and except agreement.	scept written direction from FCBBI, or this Assignment, as istings upon such termination or expiration. The parties further ies execute the Listing Agency's assignment forms or other on, FCBBI's execution of such forms or documentation will assignment. The parties agree that at any time after the date of ecute and deliver such agreements or documents as may be scribed in this Agreement upon termination or expiration of the
Franchise Agreement, FCBBI will have the sole righ FCBBI as Franchisee's true and lawful attorney-in-fac and will execute such agreements and take such action event, Franchisee will immediately notify the Listing A not to utilize any call forwarding messages referring	FCBBI and Franchisee, upon termination or expiration of the at to and interest in the Listings, and Franchisee will appoint at to direct the Listing Agencies to assign the same to FCBBI, as as may be necessary to effectuate the assignment. Upon such gencies to assign the Listings to FCBBI; Franchisee also agrees to another number. If Franchisee fails to promptly direct the BI will direct the Listing Agencies to effectuate the assignment
and are hereby empowered to effectuate the assignment further right, title or interest in the Listings and will reto the Listing Agencies on or before the effective date. Franchise Agreement, FCBBI will have the sole right including but not limited to Meta and Google and the transfer all social media and assets to FCBBI, as well as	ment (without renewal or extension), FCBBI will have the right nt of the Listings, and, in such event, Franchisee will have no main liable to the Listing Agencies for all past due fees owing to of the assignment. Upon the termination or expiration of the to all audience data and ad copy from all paid media sources neir respective subsidiaries and Franchisee agrees that it will as all current and active usernames and passwords. Franchisee the Franchisee Agreement, Franchisee will ensure that FCBBI has
or obligation of any kind whatsoever arising from or i	ept as specified in this Agreement, FCBBI will have no liability in connection with this Assignment unless FCBBI notifies the net service providers and all listing agencies (collectively, the greement to effectuate the assignment.
Choice Business Brokers, Inc. ("FCBBI") and this Agreement, under which FCBBI granted Franchis Business ("Franchised Business"), Franchisee, for valutitle and interest in and to those certain telephone numdirectory listings, URLs, domain names, websites,	Franchise Agreement ("Franchise Agreement") between First ("Franchisee"), executed concurrently with see the right to own and operate a franchised FIRST CHOICE are received, hereby assigns to FCBBI all of Franchisee's right, bers, facsimile numbers, regular, classified, or other telephone social media accounts, and e-mail addresses and accounts I's trade and service marks and used from time to time in ess.

SCHEDULE 5 CONFIDENTIALITY AND NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

NAME:	
HOME ADDRESS:	
HOME TELEPHONE:	
CLASSIFICATION:	(Owner, Member, Officer, Director, Etc.)
("Franchisee")	is a Franchisee of First Choice Business Brokers, Inc. ("FIRST
CHOICE") pursuant to a Franchise Agreer	nent entered into by FIRST CHOICE and Franchisee dated
(the "Franchise Agre	eement").

I agree that during the term of my employment by, ownership or participation in, association with or service to Franchisee, or at any time thereafter, I will not communicate, divulge or use for the benefit of any other person, persons, partnership, proprietorship, association, corporation or entity any confidential information, knowledge or know-how concerning the systems of operation, services, products, clients or practices FIRST CHOICE which may be communicated to me ("Confidential Information"), and I will not divert any business to competitors of Franchisee and/or FIRST CHOICE.

Any and all information, knowledge, know-how, techniques and information which the entities mentioned above or their officers designate as confidential will be Confidential Information for the purposes of this Agreement, except information which I can demonstrate came to my attention before disclosure or which had become or becomes a part of the public domain through publication or communication by others, but in no event through any act of mine.

I specifically understand that, without limitation, the following have been deemed to constitute Confidential Information: the FIRST CHOICE system of operations and all services, products, technologies, business relationships, business methods, operating manuals, policies, standards, systems, techniques, requirements, criteria and procedures that are used by FIRST CHOICE now or in the future (the "System"); Franchisee in the course of the operation of Franchisee's business, as well as all procedures, systems, techniques and activities employed by FIRST CHOICE and/or Franchisee in the course of offering or selling products and services from or at Franchisee's businesses; all of FIRST CHOICE's and Franchisee's sources (or prospective sources) of policies and contracts, and all information pertaining to same; the computer hardware and software utilized by FIRST CHOICE and Franchisee; all information pertaining to FIRST CHOICE's, and Franchisee's advertising, marketing, promotion and merchandising campaigns, philosophies, materials, specifications and procedures; FIRST CHOICE's and Franchisee's computer network Web sites and any and all computer network Web sites of FIRST CHOICE and any affiliate of FIRST CHOICE; all information posted on or received at such Web sites; all of FIRST CHOICE's instructional materials; quality assurance programs; supervision systems; recommended services; recordkeeping, bookkeeping and accounting systems and materials; revenue reports; activity schedules; job descriptions; records pertaining to customers of Franchisee; business forms; product and service order forms; general operations materials; revenue reports; specifications, systems, standards, techniques, philosophies and materials, guidelines, policies and procedures concerning the System; additions to, deletions from, and modifications and variations of the components of the System or the systems and methods of operations which now or in the future are employed by FIRST CHOICE, including all related standards and specifications and the means and manner of offering and selling them; and, all other components, specifications, standards, requirements and duties imposed by FIRST CHOICE or any of FIRST CHOICE's affiliates.

I will at no time copy, duplicate, record or otherwise reproduce any of the Confidential Information or material containing it, in whole or in part, store them in a computer retrieval or database, nor otherwise make them available to any unauthorized person. Upon the expiration or other termination for any reason of my employment, association, service or ownership participation, I agree to return to FIRST CHOICE or Franchisee (as the case may be) all materials, books, records, and manuals considered confidential under this Agreement which are in my possession.

I further agree that during the term of my employment/service/association/ownership participation, I will not, directly or indirectly, engage in business brokerage services ("Competitive Business").

For a period of two years immediately following the expiration or termination of my employment/service/association/ownership participation, I agree that I will not, directly or indirectly, engage in business brokerage services at my former place of employment with Franchisee, within twenty (20) miles of such location, or within twenty (20) miles of any business brokerage office operated by FIRST CHOICE, any of its affiliates, or any of its franchisees, at such time.

However, nothing herein will prevent me from owning for investment purposes up to an aggregate of 5% of the capital stock of any Competitive Business, so long as the Competitive Business is a publicly held corporation whose stock is listed and traded on a national or regional stock exchange.

I acknowledge that violation of the covenants not to compete contained in this Agreement would result in immediate and irreparable injury to FIRST CHOICE and Franchisee, for which no adequate remedy at law will be available. Accordingly, I hereby consent to the entry of an injunction procured by FIRST CHOICE or Franchisee (or both) prohibiting any conduct by me in violation of the terms of those covenants not to compete and/or restrictions on the use of Confidential Information set forth in this agreement. I expressly agree that it may conclusively be presumed in any legal action that any violation of the terms of these covenants not to compete was accomplished by and through my unlawful utilization of FIRST CHOICE's Confidential Information, know-how, methods and procedures. Further, I expressly agree that any Claims I may have against FIRST CHOICE will not constitute a defense to FIRST CHOICE's enforcement of the covenants not to compete set forth in this Agreement. I further agree to pay all costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' and experts' fees) incurred by FIRST CHOICE in connection with the enforcement of those covenants not to compete set forth in this Agreement.

If all or any portion of this covenant not to use Confidential Information and not to compete is held unreasonable, void, vague or illegal by any court or agency having valid jurisdiction in an final decision (after the exhaustion of all appellate rights), the court or agency will be empowered to revise and/or construe the covenant to fall within permissible legal limits, and should not invalidate the entire covenant. I expressly agree to be bound by any lesser covenant subsumed within the terms of this Agreement as if the resulting covenant were separately stated in and made a part of this Agreement.

I agree that this Agreement and all relations and disputes between myself on the one hand, and Franchisee or FIRST CHOICE on the other hand, whether sounding in contract, tort, or otherwise, are to be exclusively construed in accordance with and/or governed by (as applicable) the law of the State of Nevada without recourse to Nevada (or any other) choice of law or conflicts of law principles. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to invoke the application of any franchise, business opportunity, antitrust, unfair competition, fiduciary or any other doctrine of law of the State of Nevada or any other state, which would not otherwise apply

I further agree that any litigation arising out of or related to this Agreement; any breach of this Agreement; and, all relations and any and all disputes between myself on the one hand, and Franchisee or FIRST CHOICE on the other hand, whether sounding in contract, tort, or otherwise, will be instituted exclusively in a court of competent jurisdiction in Las Vegas, Nevada. I agree that any dispute as to the venue for this litigation will be submitted to and resolved exclusively by a court of competent jurisdiction situated in Las Vegas, Nevada. I hereby waive and covenant never to assert or Claim that said venue is for any reason improper, inconvenient, prejudicial or otherwise inappropriate (including, without limitation, any Claim under the judicial doctrine of forum non conveniens).

(Signature)	
(Printed Name)	
(Date)	

SEEN AND AGREED:

FRANCHISEE OWNERSHIP INFORMATION

Franchisee:			
Trade Name (if di	fferent from above):		
	Form of Ownership (Check One)		
Individual _	Limited Liability Company _	Corporation _	Partnership
the manager(s), ar	lity Company, give the state and dead list the names and addresses of held by each member.		
	give the state and date of incorporations the names and addresses of every each.		
	provide name and address of each parent, and indicate the state in which t		_
	rledges that this Statement of Owner Franchise Agreement.	ership applies to the	e Franchised Business
Use additional shee to First Choice in w	ets if necessary. Any and all changes vriting.	to the above inform	ation must be reported
Date	<u> </u>	Name	



AUTOMATIC PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION FORM

AUTHORIZATION FOR CHECKING/SAVINGS ACCOUNT DRAFT OPTION:

PLEASE PRINT:

I authorize charges to be drafted from the bank account listed below.

Name on account (exactly as printed)_____

I authorize First Choice Business Brokers Inc. (Franchise Support) to draft from the bank account listed below in the following amount: \$1.00 or as Reported on the Royalty Reporting Form whichever is greater.

Please check type of account:

Checking Account

Full Address for (Incl. Street & Apt. #):

Checking/Savings Account Number _____

Name of Bank: _____

Routing Number:

Signature of Bank Account Holder

Date

1 The NACHA Operating Rules do not require the consumer's express authorization to initiate Reversing Entries to correct erroneous transactions. However, Originators should consider obtaining express authorization of debits or credits to correct errors.

2 Written debit authorizations must provide that the Receiver may revoke the authorization only by notifying the Originator in the time and manner stated in the authorization. The reference to notification should be filled with a statement of the time and manner that notification must be given in order to provide company a reasonable opportunity to act on it (e.g., "In writing by mail to 100 Main Street, Anytown, NY that is received at least three (3) days prior to the proposed effective date of the termination of authorization").

FRANCHISEE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

As you know, First Choice (the "Franchisor") and you are preparing to enter into a Franchise Agreement for the establishment and operation of a "First Choice" Franchised Business (the "Franchise"). The purpose of this Questionnaire is to determine whether any statements or promises were made to you that the Franchisor has not authorized and that may be untrue, inaccurate or misleading. Please review each of the following questions and statements carefully and provide honest and complete responses to each.

We will not ask you to complete this form, and we will disregard any answers from you, if you live or plan to operate your franchise in the states of California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, or Wisconsin.

1.	Have you received and personally reviewed the Franchise Agreement, each Addendum and related agreement attached to them?	ı,
	Yes No	
2.	Do you understand all of the information contained in the Franchise Agreement, each Addendum and related agreement provided to you?	h
	Yes No	
	If no, what parts of the Franchise Agreement, Addendum, and/or related agreement do you not understand? (Attach additional pages, as needed.)	
3.	Have you received and personally reviewed the Franchisor's Franchise Disclosure Document ("FDD") that was provided to you?	e
	Yes No	
4.	Did you sign a receipt for the FDD indicating the date you received it?	

5.	Do you understand all of the information contained in the FDD and any state-special Addendum to the FDD?		
	Yes No		
	If No, what parts of the FDD and/or Addendum do you not understand? (Attach additional pages, as needed.)		
6.	Have you discussed with an attorney, accountant, or other professional advisor the benefits and risks of establishing and operating a business as a FIRST CHOICE franchise?		
	Yes No		
	If No, do you wish to have more time to do so?		
	Yes No		
7.	Do you understand that the success or failure of your Franchise will depend in large part upon your skills and abilities, competition from other businesses, interest rates, inflation, labor and supply costs, lease terms and other economic and business factors?		
	Yes No		
8.	Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor made any statement or promise to you (or, to the best of your knowledge, information and belief, to any person or entity on your behalf) concerning the actual or possible revenues, profits or operating costs of a "First Choice" business operated by the Franchisor or any of its franchisees, that is contrary to the information contained in the FDD?		
	Yes No		
9.	Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor made any statement or promise to you (or, to the best of your knowledge, information and belief, to any person or entity on your behalf) regarding the amount of money you may earn in operating the Franchise that is contrary to the information contained in the FDD?		
	Yes No		

10.	Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor made any statement or promise to you (or, to the best of your knowledge, information and belief, to any person or entity on your behalf) concerning the total amount of revenue the Franchise will or may generate, that is contrary to the information contained in the FDD?
	Yes No
11.	Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor made any statement or promise to you (or, to the best of your knowledge, information and belief, to any person or entity on your behalf) regarding the costs you may incur in operating the Franchise that is contrary to or different from, the information contained in the FDD?
	Yes No
12.	Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor made any statement or promise to you (or, to the best of your knowledge, information and belief, to any person or entity on your behalf) concerning the likelihood of success that you should or might expect to achieve from operating the Franchise?
	Yes No
13.	Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor made any statement, agreement or promise to you (or, to the best of your knowledge, information and belief, to any person or entity on your behalf) concerning the advertising, marketing, training, support service or assistance that the Franchisor will furnish to you that is contrary to, or different from, the information contained in the FDD?
	Yes No
14.	Have you entered into any binding agreement with the Franchisor concerning the purchase of this franchise prior to today?
	Yes No
15.	Have you paid any money to the Franchisor concerning the purchase of this franchise prior to today?
	Yes No
16.	Do you understand that you are not being granted an exclusive or protected territory, and that Franchisor and its affiliates and subsidiaries retain the right, directly or through others, to develop and franchise other similar FIRST CHOICE franchises or different franchise systems regardless of their proximity to your Approved Location?
	Yes No

17.	Do you understand that the Franchise Agreement contains the entire agreement between you and the Franchisor concerning the franchise and development rights for the Franchise meaning that any prior oral or written statements not set out in the Franchise Agreement will not be binding?
	Yes No
18.	I signed the Franchise Agreement, and Addenda (if any) on, 20, and acknowledge that no agreement or Addendum is effective until signed and dated by the Franchisor.
19.	Have we or any of our employees or any other persons speaking on our behalf made a statements to you regarding the financial condition of our parent company or any of affiliated companies? Check one: () Yes () No.
	If your answer is "Yes," have you relied on the statement(s) regarding the financial condition of any of our affiliated companies in deciding whether to purchase a franchise from us? Check one: () Yes () No.
Then	Understand That Your Answers Are Important To Us And That We Will Rely On By Signing This Questionnaire, You Are Representing That You Have Considered Consider Constitute Constitute Consider Constitute Constit
	Question Carefully And Responded Truthfully To The Above Questions. FRANCHISE APPLICANT
	FRANCHISE APPLICANT
	FRANCHISE APPLICANT Signed

STATE ADDENDA TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

CALIFORNIA ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

Sections 15.1 and 15.2 are deleted and in their place are substituted the following:

- **15.1 Termination by Us Without Right to Cure.** We may terminate this Agreement without notice and the opportunity to cure for any of the following reasons:
- (a) The franchisee or the business to which the franchise relates has been judicially determined to be insolvent, all or a substantial part of the assets thereof are assigned to or for the benefit of any creditor, or the franchisee admits his or her inability to pay his or her debts as they come due;
- (b) The franchisee abandons the franchise by failing to operate the business for five consecutive days during which the franchisee is required to operate the business under the terms of the franchise, or any shorter period after which it is not unreasonable under the facts and circumstances for the franchisor to conclude that the franchisee does not intend to continue to operate the franchise, unless such failure to operate is due to fire, flood, earthquake, or other similar causes beyond the franchisee's control;
 - (c) The franchisor and franchisee agree in writing to terminate the franchise;
- (d) The franchisee makes any material misrepresentations relating to the acquisition of the franchise business or the franchisee engages in conduct which reflects materially and unfavorably upon the operation and reputation of the franchise business or system;
- (e) The franchisee fails, for a period of 10 days after notification of noncompliance, to comply with any federal, state, or local law or regulation, including, but not limited to, all health, safety, building, and labor laws or regulations applicable to the operation of the franchise;

- (f) The franchisee, after curing any failure in accordance with Section 15.2 engages in the same noncompliance whether or not such noncompliance is corrected after notice;
- (g) The franchisee breaches the franchise agreement three or more times in a 12-month period, whether or not corrected after notice;
- (h) The franchised business or business premises of the franchise are seized, taken over, or foreclosed by a government official in the exercise of his or her duties, or seized, taken over, or foreclosed by a creditor, lienholder, or lessor, provided that a final judgment against the franchisee remains unsatisfied for 30 days (unless a supersedeas or other appeal bond has been filed); or a levy of execution has been made upon the license granted by the franchise agreement or upon any property used in the franchised business, and it is not discharged within five days of such levy;
- (i) The franchisee is convicted of a felony or any other criminal misconduct which is relevant to the operation of the franchise;
- (j) The franchisee fails to pay any franchise fees or other amounts due to the franchisor or its affiliate within five days after receiving written notice that such fees are overdue; or
- (k) The franchisor makes a reasonable determination that continued operation of the franchise by the franchisee will result in an imminent danger to public health or safety.
 - **15.2 Termination by Us with Opportunity to Cure**. We may terminate this Agreement, after sending you notice and a 60 day opportunity to cure, for any other breach of this Agreement.

Franchisee owners must sign a personal guaranty, making you and your spouse individually liable for your financial obligations under the agreement if you are married. The guaranty will place your and your spouse's marital and personal assets at risk, perhaps including your house, if your franchise fails.

No disclaimer, questionnaire, clause, or statement signed by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall be construed or interpreted as waiving any claim

of fraud in the inducement, whether common law or statutory, or as disclaiming reliance on or the right to rely upon any statement made or information provided by any franchisor, broker or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor that was a material inducement to a franchisee's investment. Any statements or representations signed by a franchisee purporting to understand any fact or its legal effect shall be deemed made only based upon the franchisee's understanding of the law and facts as of the time of the franchisee's investment decision. This provision supersedes any other or inconsistent term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

FRANCHISEE	
By: Name: Title:	
FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC.	
By:Name:Title:	DATE

HAWAII ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

1. The Franchise Agreement is modified to also provide that we defer the payment of all initial fees paid by you to us until we have performed all pre-opening obligations and you are open for business.

FRANCHISEE	
By:	
Name:	
Title:	
FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC.	
By:	
Name:	DATE
Title:	

ILLINOIS ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

- 1. Illinois law governs the Franchise Agreement.
- 2. Section 25.2 of the Franchise Agreement is deleted. In its place is substituted the following: "You agree to bring any claim against us, including our present and former employees and agents, which in any way relates to or arises out of this Agreement, or any of the dealings of the parties hereto, solely in arbitration before the American Arbitration Association in the city or county where our National Headquarters office is located."
- 3. 815 ILCS 705/41 provides as follows: "Sec. 41. Waivers void. Any condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of this Act or any other law of this State is void."
- 4. Due to our financial condition, the State of Illinois Attorney General has required us to defer collection of all initial franchise fees that we charge, including the Initial Franchise Fee, until the franchisee commences doing business.

FRANCHISEE	
By:	
Name:	
Title:	
FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC.	
By:	
Name:	DATE
Title:	

MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

- 1. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.
- 2. A franchisee may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.
- 3. A general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.
- 4. All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.
- 5. Section 4 of the Franchise Agreement is modified to also provide: "Based upon the franchisor's financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has required a financial assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees shall be deferred until the franchisor completes its pre-opening obligations under the franchise agreement."

FRANCHISEE	
By:Name:	
Title:	
FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC.	
By:	
Name:	DATE
Title:	

MINNESOTA ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

- Minn. Stat. §80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or agreements can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the franchisee's rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or (2) franchisee's rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.
- With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.14 Subds. 3, 4, and 5 which require (except in certain specified cases), that a franchisee be given 90 days' notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days' notice for non-renewal of the franchise agreement and that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.
- The franchisor will protect the franchisee's rights to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes or other commercial symbols or indemnify the franchisee from any loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the name.

Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee's right to use the trademarks. Refer to Minnesota Statutes 80C.12, Subd. 1(g).

- Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent to a general release.
- The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor may seek injunctive relief. See Minn. Rules 2860.4400J.

Also, a court will determine if a bond is required.

Any Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17, Subd. 5.

FRANCHISEE	
By:	
Name:	
Title:	
FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC.	
By:	
Name:	DATE
Title:	

NORTH DAKOTA ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

- 1. You are not required to sign a general release upon renewal of the franchise agreement.
- 2. The franchise agreement is amended to also provide as follows:
 - "Covenants not to compete are generally considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota."
- 3. The provisions concerning choice of law, jurisdiction and venue, jury waiver, and waiver of punitive damages are hereby deleted and in their place is substituted the following language:
 - "You agree to bring any claim against us, including our present and former employees, agents, and affiliates, which in any way relates to or arises out of this Agreement, or any of the dealings of the parties hereto, solely in arbitration before the American Arbitration Association."
- 4. North Dakota law governs any cause of action arising out of the franchise agreement.
- 5. Any requirement in the Franchise Agreement that requires you to pay all costs and expenses incurred by us in enforcing the agreement is void. Instead, the prevailing party in any enforcement action is entitled to recover all costs and expenses including attorney's fees.
- 6. The third sentence of Section 16.5 of the Franchise Agreement, which requires you to consent to termination or liquidated damages, is hereby deleted as North Dakota determines it be unfair, unjust, and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.
- 7. The first sentence of Section 25.9 of the Franchise Agreement is amended and restated so that it reads: "Before you may bring any Claim against us in court, you agree to try for a period of 60 days to mediate such claim before a mutually agreed-to mediator in a place that is mutually agreeable and that is not remote from your place of business.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

FRANCHISEE		

By:	
Name:	
Title:	
FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC.	
By:	
Name:	DATE
Title:	

RHODE ISLAND ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

- 1. If the franchise agreement contains any provisions that conflict with the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, the provisions of this Addendum shall prevail to the extent of such conflict.
- 2. Any provision in the franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum outside of Rhode Island is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act.
- 3. Any provision in the franchise agreement requiring the application of the laws of a state other than Rhode Island is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act.
- 4. The Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act stipulates that you cannot release or waive any rights granted under this Act. Any provision of this franchise agreement, which constitutes a waiver of rights granted under the Act, is superseded.
- 5. You agree to bring any claim against us, including our present and former employees and agents, which in any way relates to or arises out of this Agreement, or any of the dealings of the parties hereto, solely in arbitration before the American Arbitration Association.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

FRANCH	(ISEE		
_			
By:			
Name:			
Title:			

FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC.

By:	
Name:	DATE
Title:	

SOUTH DAKOTA ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

1. The Franchise Agreement is clarified to also indicate that 50% of the initial franchise fee and 50% of royalties are deemed paid for the use of our Marks and 50% are deemed paid for our training, support, and franchise system.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

FRANCHISEE	
By:	
Name:	
Title:	
FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC.	
By:	
Name:	DATE
Title:	

VIRGINIA ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

The Franchise Agreement is modified to also provide as follows: "The Virginia State Corporation Commission's Division of Securities and Retail Franchising requires us to defer payment of the initial franchise fee and other initial payments owed by franchisees to the franchisor until the franchisor has completed its pre-opening obligations under the franchise agreement."

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

FRANCHISEE	
D	
By:	
Name:	
Title:	
FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC.	
By:	
Name:	DATE
Title:	

WASHINGTON ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee may bring an action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial, may not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor's reasonable estimated or actual costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee's earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed \$100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor's earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed \$250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations are void and unenforceable in Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington.

Section 4 of the Franchise Agreement is amended to also state: "In lieu of an impound of franchise fees, the Franchisor will not require or accept the payment of any initial franchise fees until the franchisee (a) has received all initial training that it is entitled to under the franchise agreement or disclosure document, and (b) is open for business."

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

FRANCHISEE		
By:		
Name:		
Title:		
FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC.		
Timor errerez Been (255 Brieffans, n. e.		
D		
By:		
Name:	DATE	
Title:		

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this addendum.

WISCONSIN ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

- 1. If the Franchise Agreement contains any provision that conflict with the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, the provisions of this Addendum shall prevail to the extent of such conflict.
- 2. The Franchise Agreement is amended to also include the following language:

With respect to franchises governed by Wisconsin law, the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law applies to most, if not all, franchise agreements and prohibits the termination, cancellation, non-renewal or the substantial change of the competitive circumstances of a dealership agreement without good cause. That Law further provides that 90 days prior written notice of a proposed termination, etc. must be given to the dealer. The dealer has 60 days to cure the deficiency and if the deficiency is cured, the notice is void.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

FRANCHISEE	
By:	
Name:	
Title:	
FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC.	
By:	
Name:	DATE
Title:	

EXHIBIT B

NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC. NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

This agreement is entered into thisth day of, 20 by and between First Choice Business
Brokers, Inc. ("FIRST CHOICE"), having principal offices in Las Vegas, NV and
(insert name), having his principal offices in(insert city
and state). For purpose of this agreement, FIRST CHOICE is the disclosing party and
(insert name) is the receiving party. The purpose of this agreement is to
prevent the unauthorized disclosure or use of Confidential Information (as defined below), which
may be disclosed to Receiving Party for the purpose of pursuing the establishment of a business
relationship or negotiating any contract or agreement between Disclosing Party and Receiving
Party.

For purposes of this Agreement, Confidential Information shall not mean information regarding the brokerage of businesses and franchises, in general, including business operations, formats and techniques not formulated by FIRST CHOICE. Furthermore, Confidential Information shall not mean information formulated by FIRST CHOICE which would otherwise be known by a broker already in the trade or business of brokering businesses or franchises. For purpose of this section, "known" is defined as actual knowledge or knowledge that would have been expected when applying an objective reasonable person standard.

For purposes of this Agreement, except as provided for above, the term "Confidential Information" means: proprietary techniques, methodology, formats, processes, business plans, legal agreements and legal documents, research programs, teaching techniques, trade secrets, unpublished financial data including but not limited to formats, specifications, know-how, budgets, projections, tools of the trade, professional trade references, marketing strategies, manuals, and customer lists, disclosed to Receiving Party by FIRST CHOICE.

NOW THEREFORE IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants, agreements, representations, and warrantees, and in exchange for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

- 1. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the earlier of the first date of execution of this Agreement or the date that any Confidential Information was or is first disclosed to Receiving Party, whichever comes first.
- 2. Non-Disclosure. Receiving Party acknowledges that the FIRST CHOICE Confidential Information is essential to the goodwill of the business of Disclosing Party. Receiving Party shall hold and maintain FIRST CHOICE's Confidential Information in strictest confidence and in trust for the sole and exclusive benefit of Disclosing Party. Receiving Party shall not use for its own benefit, publish, or otherwise disclose to others (with the exception of associated agents, employees or lending institutions), or permit the use by others for their benefit or to the detriment of Disclosing Party, any of the FIRST CHOICE Confidential Information. Receiving Party shall

carefully restrict access to the FIRST CHOICE Confidential Information to those of its officers, directors, agents, and employees and associated financial institution representatives who clearly need such access in order to participate on behalf of Receiving Party in the analysis and negotiation of a business relationship or any contract or agreement, or the advisability thereof, with Disclosing Party.

- 3. Injunction Relief. In the event of breach of any of the covenants or representations hereof, the Disclosing Party shall be entitled to injunctive relief in addition to any other remedy, including claims for damages that it might otherwise have.
- 4. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of the Disclosing Party and shall be binding upon the personal representatives of the undersigned and may not be terminated, amended or modified, except by an instrument in writing signed by the Parties. The parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement is entered into for the purpose of Receiving Party's consideration of whether it will enter into a binding Franchise Agreement. Any Franchise Agreement entered into by the parties to this Agreement will supersede this Agreement in all aspects.
- 5. Applicable Law. The provisions of this Agreement shall be construed, and the performance thereof shall be enforced, in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada.
- 6. Term. The parties hereto agree that the term of this agreement shall commence on the date described in section 1 and shall terminate five (5) years from this date.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hand and seal this, 20	^{tii} day of
Disclosing Party, FIRST CHOICE By:	
Receiving Party	
(name of person), Individually and on behalf of (name of corporation/franchisee)	

EXHIBIT C
STATE ADMINISTRATORS/AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

State	State Administrator	Agent for Service of Process
California	Department of Financial	Commissioner of Financial
	Protection and Innovation	Protection and Innovation
	320 West 4th Street	Department of Financial
	Los Angeles, CA 90013	Protection and Innovation
		320 West 4th Street
	2101 Arena Boulevard	Los Angeles, CA 90013
	Sacramento, CA 95834	_
	(866) 275-2677	
Connecticut	The Banking Commissioner	The Banking Commissioner
	The Department of Banking,	The Department of Banking,
	Securities and Business	Securities and Business
	Investment Division	Investment Division
	260 Constitution Plaza	260 Constitution Plaza
	Hartford, CT 06103-1800	Hartford, CT 06103-1800
	Phone Number (860) 240-8299	Phone Number (860) 240-8299
Hawaii	Commissioner of Securities of the	Commissioner of Securities of the
	State of Hawaii	State of Hawaii
	Department of Commerce and	Department of Commerce and
	Consumer Affairs	Consumer Affairs
	Business Registration Division	Business Registration Division
	Securities Compliance Branch	Securities Compliance Branch
	335 Merchant Street, Room 203	335 Merchant Street, Room 203
	Honolulu, HI 96813	Honolulu, HI 96813
	(808) 586-2722	Tionoraia, III 70013
Illinois	Office of Attorney General	Illinois Attorney General
	Franchise Division	Office of Attorney General
	500 South Second Street	Franchise Division
	Springfield, IL 62706	500 South Second Street
	(217) 782-4465	Springfield, IL 62706
Indiana	Secretary of State, Securities	Secretary of State, Securities
	Division	Division
	302 West Washington Street,	West Washington Street, Room
	Room E-111	E-111
	Indianapolis, IN 46204	Indianapolis, IN 46204
	(317) 232-6681	
Kentucky	Kentucky Attorney General	
reneucky	700 Capitol Avenue	
	Frankfort, Kentucky 40601-3449	
	(502) 696-5300	
Maryland	Office of the Attorney General	Maryland Securities
<i>J</i>	Securities Division	Commissioner
	200 St. Paul Place	200 St. Paul Place
	Baltimore, MD 21202	Baltimore, MD 21202-2020
	(410) 576-6360	241111010, 11112 21202 2020
Michigan	Department of Attorney General	Department of Attorney General
111CHIZAH	Department of Attorney General	Department of Attorney General

State	State Administrator	Agent for Service of Process
	Consumer Protection Division –	525 W. Ottawa Street
	Franchise Unit	G. Mennen Building
	525 W. Ottawa Street	Lansing, MI 48913
	G. Mennen Building	
	Lansing, MI 48913	
	(517) 373-7117	
Minnesota	Minnesota Commissioner of	Minnesota Commissioner of
	Commerce	Commerce
	85 7 th Place East, Suite 280	85 7th Place East, Suite 280
	St. Paul, MN 55101-2198	St. Paul, MN 55101-2198
	(651) 539-1500	,
Nebraska	Nebraska Department of Banking	
1 (CDI USKU	and Finance	
	1200 N Street-Suite 311	
	Post Office Box 95006	
	Lincoln, Nebraska 68509	
	(402) 471-3445	
New York	New York State Department of	New York Department of State
INCW TUIK	Law	One Commerce Plaza
	Investor Protection Bureau	99 Washington Avenue, 6th Floor
	28 Liberty St. 21st Floor	Albany, New York 12231-0001
	New York, NY 10005	(518) 473-2492
	Phone: 212-416-8222	(316) 473-2472
North Dakota	Securities Commissioner	Securities Commissioner
North Dakota	North Dakota Securities	North Dakota Securities
	Department 600 East Boulevard Avenue	Department 600 East Boulevard Avenue
	State Capital, Fifth Floor, Dept. 414	State Capital, Fifth Floor, Dept. 414
	Bismarck, ND 58505-0510	Bismarck, ND 58505-0510
DI 1 T 1 1	(701) 328-4712	Day and the order of Day in a second
Rhode Island	Department of Business	Department of Business
	Regulation	Regulation Securities Division
	Securities Division	
	John O. Pastore Complex	John O. Pastore Complex
	1511 Pontiac Avenue, Bldg. 69-1	1511 Pontiac Avenue, Bldg. 69-1
	Cranston, RI 02920	Cranston, RI 02920
C (LD L)	(401) 462-9588	(401) 462-9588
South Dakota	Division of Insurance	Division of Insurance
	Securities Regulation	Securities Regulation
	124 South Euclid, Suite 104	124 South Euclid, Suite 104
	Pierre, SD 57501	Pierre, SD 57501
	(605) 773-3563	
Texas	Secretary of State	
	Statutory Document Section	
	P.O. Box 12887	
	Austin, TX 78711	
	(512) 475-1769	
	•	1
Utah	Department of Commerce	

State	State Administrator	Agent for Service of Process
	160 East 300 South	
	Salt Lake City, Utah 84111-0804	
	(801) 530-6601	
Virginia	State Corporation Commission	Clerk of the State Corporation
O	Division of Securities and Retail	Commission
	Franchising	1300 East Main Street, 1st Floor
	1300 E. Main Street, 9th Floor	Richmond, VA 23219
	Richmond, VA 23219	
	(804) 371-9051	
Washington	Washington State Department of	Securities Administrator
Ö	Financial Institutions	Washington State Department of
	Securities Division	Financial Institutions
	P.O. Box 9033	150 Israel Rd., SW
	Olympia, WA 98507	Tumwater, WA 98501
	(360) 902-8760	
Wisconsin	Wisconsin Department of	Wisconsin Department of
	Financial Institutions	Financial Institutions
	345 West Washington Avenue	345 West Washington Avenue
	Madison, WI 53703	Madison, WI 53703
	(608) 266-8557	

EXHIBIT D GENERAL RELEASE

TITIO

11115	GENERAL	RELEASE	1S	made ("Release	and or") with	given reference	to the
follov	wing facts:		,	(Tereuse	or , with	Tererence	to the
1.	Releasor and First Cl franchise agreements.	noice Business B	rokers, Inc.	(Releasee	e) are part	ies to one	or more
2.	The following consider	eration is given:					
	the execution documents renewing t	h by Releasor of a he franchise (the '			Agreemen	nt or other	renewal
	Releasor's co	nsent to Releasee	's transfer of	f its rights a	and duties	under the F	ranchise
	Releasor's c Franchise Agreement;	onsent to Releas	ee's assum	ption of	rights and	l duties un	nder the
					[inser	t descriptio	n]

- 3. Release- Franchisee and all of Franchisee's guarantors, members, employees, agents, successors, assigns and affiliates fully and finally release and forever discharge Releasee, its past and present agents, employees, officers, directors, members, Franchisees, successors, assigns and affiliates (collectively "Released Parties") from any and all claims, actions, causes of action, contractual rights, demands, damages, costs, loss of services, expenses and compensation which Franchisee could assert against Released Parties or any of them up through and including the date of this Release.
- 4. THIS IS A SPECIFIC RELEASE GIVING UP ALL RIGHTS WITH RESPECT TO THE TRANSACTIONS OR OCCURRENCES THAT ARE BEING RELEASED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.
- 5. California Releasor- You represent and warrant that YOU EXPRESSLY WAIVE ANY AND ALL RIGHTS AND BENEFITS UNDER CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE §1542, which provides as follows:

A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.

6. The above Release shall not apply to any liabilities arising under the California Franchise Investment Law, the California Franchise Relations Act, Indiana Code § 23-2-2.5.1 through 23-2-2.7-7, the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, Michigan Franchise Investment Law, Minnesota Franchise Act, North Dakota franchise laws, the Rhode Island

Investment Act, and the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act.

EXHIBIT E

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2022, 2021 AND 2020



FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2022, 2021 AND 2020

Table of Contents

Independent Auditor's Report	1-2
Financial Statements:	
Balance Sheets	3
Statements of Operations	4
Statements of Stockholders' Deficit	5
Statements of Cash Flows	6
Notes to the Financial Statements	7-14



Independent Auditor's Report

To the Stockholders of First Choice Business Brokers, Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of First Choice Business Brokers, Inc. (a Nevada corporation), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of operations, stockholders' deficit, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of First Choice Business Brokers, Inc. as of December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of First Choice Business Brokers, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about First Choice Business Brokers, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of First Choice Business Brokers, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about First Choice Business Brokers, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Ellsworth & Stout, UC

March 2, 2023 Las Vegas, Nevada

FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC. BALANCE SHEETS DECEMBER 31, 2022, 2021 AND 2020

		2022		2021		2020
ASSETS						
Current Assets:						
Cash	\$	674,168	\$	294,200	\$	282,487
Accounts receivable, net		1,280		1,775		-
Prepaid expenses		25,000		-		-
Current maturities of deferred contract costs		34,767		16,030		14,470
Total current assets	_	735,215		312,005		296,957
Other Assets:						
ROU asset from operating lease, net		1,350,868		-		-
Deferred contract costs, net of current		242,138		108,270		110,260
Deferred income taxes		108,131		16,890		53,008
Deposits		21,381				
Total other assets		1,722,518		125,160		163,268
Total Assets	\$	2,457,733	\$	437,165	\$	460,225
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT						
Current Liabilities:						
Accounts payable	\$	29,565	\$	1,098	\$	2,844
Income tax payable	Ψ	83,687	Ψ	25,629	Ψ	28,564
Deferred revenue		2,050		-		-
Stockholder loans		-		_		50,206
Current maturities of long-term debt		-		-		1,157
Current operating lease liability		188,745		-		-
Current maturities of deferred franchise fees		163,076		86,226		70,416
Total current liabilities		467,123		112,953		153,187
Long-Term Liabilities:						
Long-term debt, net of current maturities		-		-		30,400
Liability for operating lease, net		1,165,095		-		-
Deferred franchise fees, net of current		1,185,732		575,582		509,617
Total long-term liabilities	_	2,350,827		575,582		540,017
Total Liabilities		2,817,950		688,535		693,204
Stockholders' Deficit:						
Common stock, no par value; 100,000 shares authorized,						
90,000 shares issued and outstanding		-		-		-
Additional paid-in capital		65,891		65,891		65,891
Accumulated deficit		(426,108)		(317,261)		(298,870)
Total Stockholders' Deficit		(360,217)		(251,370)		(232,979)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit	\$	2,457,733	\$	437,165	\$	460,225

FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC. STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022, 2021 AND 2020

	2022	2021	2020		
Revenue	\$ 1,052,951	\$ 745,341	\$	546,308	
Cost of Revenue	73,009	17,530		32,987	
Gross Profit	979,942	727,811		513,321	
Operating Expenses:					
Advertising	425,292	160,528		103,874	
Automobile	-	12,000		2,600	
Employee benefits	23,574	16,994		10,660	
Insurance	2,591	2,560		2,056	
Office expense and other	11,407	9,925		49,023	
Professional fees	173,408	211,386		168,078	
Repairs and maintenance	6,521	4,500		6,323	
Rent	72,049	27,500		29,150	
Salaries, wages and related	375,801	255,126		199,430	
Taxes and licenses	5,700	7,215		4,303	
Travel and entertainment	 -	3,177			
Total operating expenses	1,096,343	710,911		575,497	
Operating Income (Loss)	(116,401)	16,900		(62,176)	
Other Income (Expense):					
PPP loan forgiveness	-	31,557		-	
Interest expense	 	(4,620)		(2,451)	
Total other income (expense)	 -	26,937		(2,451)	
Net Income (Loss) before Taxes	(116,401)	43,837		(64,627)	
Provision for Income Tax Benefit (Expense)	 7,554	 (62,228)		13,572	
Net Loss	\$ (108,847)	\$ (18,391)	\$	(51,055)	

FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC. STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022, 2021 AND 2020

	Common Shares	Comm		I	lditional Paid-In Capital	Ac	ccumulated Deficit	Sto	Total ockholders' Deficit
Balance, December 31, 2019	90,000	\$	-	\$	65,891	\$	(247,815)	\$	(181,924)
Net loss			-		-		(51,055)		(51,055)
Balance, December 31, 2020	90,000		-		65,891		(298,870)		(232,979)
Net loss			-		-		(18,391)		(18,391)
Balance, December 31, 2021	90,000		-		65,891		(317,261)		(251,370)
Net loss			-		-		(108,847)		(108,847)
Balance, December 31, 2022	90,000	\$	-	\$	65,891	\$	(426,108)	\$	(360,217)

FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS, INC. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022, 2021 AND 2020

	2022 2021		2020		
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:					
Net loss	\$	(108,847)	\$ (18,391)	\$	(51,055)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash					
provided by operating activities:					
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense		(91,241)	36,118		(42,136)
Accrued interest		-	-		157
Operating lease accretion		2,972	-		-
PPP loan forgiveness		-	(31,557)		-
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:					
(Increase) decrease in:					
Accounts receivable		495	(1,775)		-
Prepaid expenses		(25,000)	-		-
Deferred contract costs		(152,605)	430		(87,230)
Deposits		(21,381)	-		-
Increase (decrease) in:					
Accounts payable		28,467	(1,746)		(9,571)
Income tax payable		58,058	(2,935)		28,564
Deferred revenue		2,050	-		-
Deferred franchise fees		687,000	81,775		339,651
Net cash provided by operating activities		379,968	61,919		178,380
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:					
Proceeds from debt borrowings		-	-		31,400
Stockholder loans		-	(50,206)		(32,176)
Net cash used in financing activities			 (50,206)		(776)
Net Change in Cash		379,968	11,713		177,604
Cash, Beginning of Year		294,200	282,487		104,883
Cash, End of Year	\$	674,168	\$ 294,200	\$	282,487
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:					
Cash paid for interest	\$	_	\$ 4,620	\$	2,294

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of significant accounting policies of First Choice Business Brokers, Inc. (the Company) is presented to assist in understanding the Company's financial statements. The financial statements and notes are representations of the Company's management who are responsible for the integrity and objectivity of the financial statements. These accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Nature of the Business

The Company was incorporated on August 19, 2005, and is based in Las Vegas, Nevada. The Company provides worldwide franchise opportunities in relation to the establishment and operation of a business brokerage franchised business. The Company provides technical assistance in the establishment, business management and product and services of a business brokerage within the framework of a franchise agreement.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, which recognizes income when earned and expenses when incurred.

Use of Estimates in Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments available for current use with original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management believes the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

The Company's receivables are primarily generated from ongoing business relationships with franchisees as a result of franchise agreements.

Accounts receivable are reported net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to account receivable.

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Accounts Receivable (Continued)

As of December 31, accounts receivable consisted of the following balances:

	2022		2021		2020		 2019
Accounts receivable Allowance for doubtful accounts	\$	1,280	\$	1,775	\$	-	\$ 36,317 (36,317)
Anowance for doubtful accounts							 (30,317)
	\$	1,280	\$	1,775	\$	-	\$ -

Revenue Recognition

In accordance with ASC 606, the Company applies each of the following steps in the recognition of contract revenue:

- Identifies contracts with customers.
- Identifies performance obligations in contracts.
- Determines transaction prices.
- Allocates transaction prices to performance obligations in the contracts.
- Recognizes revenue when performance obligations are satisfied.

The Company executes franchise agreements for each franchise which set out the terms of the agreement with the franchisee. Franchise agreements typically require the franchisee to pay an initial, non-refundable fee and continuing fees based upon a percentage of sales. Subject to the Company's approval and payment of a renewal fee, a franchisee may generally renew the franchise agreement upon its expiration.

The Company has determined that the services provided in exchange for these initial franchise fees are highly interrelated with the franchise right and are not individually distinct from the ongoing services the Company provides to its franchisees. As a result initial franchise fees are recognized as revenue over the term of each respective franchise agreement. Revenues for these initial franchise fees are recognized on the straight-line basis, which is consistent with the franchisee's right to use and benefit from intellectual property.

The Company's contract liabilities are comprised of unamortized initial franchise fees. As of December 31, deferred franchise fees consisted of the following:

	2022		2021	 2020
Deferred franchise fees Less: current maturities	\$	1,348,808 (163,076)	\$ 661,808 (86,226)	\$ 580,033 (70,416)
	\$	1,185,732	\$ 575,582	\$ 509,617

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue Recognition

As of December 31, the Company expects to recognize contract liabilities as revenue over the remaining term of the associated franchise agreements as follows:

2023	\$ 163,076
2024	162,685
2025	162,685
2026	162,060
2027	162,060
Thereafter	 536,242
	\$ 1,348,808

Continuing fees are recognized monthly, as they are earned.

Additionally, the Company incurs incremental costs in the course of obtaining franchise agreements. The Company's incremental costs of obtaining franchise agreements are capitalized and presented on the accompanying balance sheets. Costs for these incremental costs are recognized on the straight-line basis which is consistent with the franchisee's right to use and benefit from intellectual property.

The Company's contract assets are comprised of unamortized incremental contract costs. As of December 31, deferred contract costs consisted of the following:

	2022		2021	2020
Deferred contract costs Less: current maturities	\$	276,905 (34,767)	\$ 124,300 (16,030)	\$ 124,730 (14,470)
	\$	242,138	\$ 108,270	\$ 110,260

Income Taxes

Provisions for income taxes are based on taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred taxes on temporary differences between the amount of taxable income and pretax financial income and between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are included in the financial statements at currently enacted income tax rates applicable to the period in which the deferred tax assets and liabilities are expected to be realized or settled. As changes in tax laws or rates are enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted through the provision for income taxes. The deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the future tax consequences of those differences, which will either be taxable or deductible when the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled. Deferred taxes are also recognized for operating losses that are available to offset future income. A valuation allowance is recorded for deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that such deferred tax assets will not be realized.

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income Taxes (Continued)

If it is probable that an uncertain tax position will result in a material liability and the amount of the liability can be estimated, then the estimated liability is accrued. If the Company were to incur any income tax liability in the future, interest on any income tax liability would be reported as interest expense, and penalties on any income tax would be reported as income taxes. As of December 31, 2022, there were no uncertain tax positions.

The Company is no longer subject to potential income tax examinations by tax authorities for years in which the statute of limitations has expired.

Advertising

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 was \$425,292, \$160,528 and \$103,874, respectively.

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which supersedes existing guidance for accounting for leases under Topic 840, Leases. The FASB also subsequently issued the following additional ASUs, which amend and clarify Topic 842: ASU 2018-01, Land Easement Practical Expedient for Transition to Topic 842; ASU 2018-10, Codification Improvements to Topic 842, Leases; ASU 2018-11, Leases (Topic 842): Targeted Improvements; ASU 2018-20, Narrow-scope Improvements for Lessors; ASU 2019-01, Leases (Topic 842): Codification Improvements, and ASU 2019-10, Financial Instruments-Credit Loses (Topic 326), Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815), and Leases (Topic 842): Effective Dates. The most significant change in the new leasing guidance is the requirement to recognize right-to-use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities for operating leases on the statement of financial position.

The Company elected to adopt these ASUs effective January 1, 2022 using transition method B. The adoption had a material impact on the Company's balance sheet but did not have a material impact on the statement of operations. The most significant impact was the recognition of ROU assets and lease liabilities for operating leases. Adoption of the standard required the Company to restate amounts as of January 1, 2022, resulting in an increase in operating lease ROU assets of \$1,384,876 and an increase in operating lease liabilities of \$1,384,876.

The Company has elected to apply to the portfolio approach to account for ROU assets and liabilities, where applicable.

The Company has elected the practical expedient that does not require the Company to separate lease and non-lease components for its leases.

The Company has elected to use the risk-free rate as the discount rate.

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Company has elected the short-term lease recognition exemption for all applicable classes of underlying assets. Short-term disclosures include only those leases with a term greater than one month and 12 months or less, and expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Leases with an initial term of 12 months or less that do not include an option to purchase the underlying asset that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, are not recorded on the balance sheet.

The Company has elected to use the package of transition practical expedients.

The Company leases office space. The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease is made at the lease's inception. Under ASC 842, a contract is (or contains) a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is defined under the standard as having both the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset and the right to direct the use of the asset. Management only reassesses its determination if the terms and conditions of the contract are changed.

ROU assets represent the Company's right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, and lease liabilities represent the Company's obligation to make lease payments. Operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term using the risk-free rate. Operating lease ROU assets also include any lease payments made and exclude any lease incentives. Lease expense for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The Company's lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise the option.

None of the Company's leases contain provisions for variable rent payments, material residual value agreements, or ratios that must be maintained.

NOTE 2 – INCOME TAXES

For the year ended December 31, the provision for income taxes consisted of the following components:

		2022		2021	 2020
Current tax expense	\$	(83 687)	\$	(26,110)	\$ (28,564)
Deferred tax benefit (expense)	<u> </u>	91,241	Ψ	(36,118)	 42,136
	\$	7,554	\$	(62,228)	\$ 13,572

NOTE 2 – INCOME TAXES (Continued)

As of December 31, the accompanying balance sheets included the following amounts of deferred tax assets:

	 2022	 2021	 2020
Deferred tax asset Deferred tax liability	\$ 108,131	\$ 16,890	\$ 53,008
	\$ 108,131	\$ 16,890	\$ 53,008

The deferred tax balances resulted primarily from differences between the accrual basis method used for financial reporting and the cash basis method used for tax reporting.

NOTE 3 – STOCKHOLDER LOANS

From time to time the stockholders of the Company engage in loan transactions with the Company. As of December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, net loan balances due from and (to) the Company's stockholders were \$0, \$0 and \$(50,206). These loan balances carried simple interest rates ranging from approximately 6% to 8%.

NOTE 4 – LONG-TERM DEBT

	2	022	2	021	2020
On June 22, 2020, the Company was granted a loan from a financial institution					
in the aggregate amount of \$31,400, pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (the "PPP") under Division A, Title I of the CARES Act, which					
was enacted March 27, 2020. The loan was set to mature in June 2025, but was					
forgiven during the year ended December 31, 2021.	\$	-	\$	-	\$ 31,557
Less: current maturities		-		-	 (1,157)
	\$	-	\$	-	\$ 30,400

NOTE 5 – REVENUE

For the years ended December 31, revenue sources were as follows:

	 2022	 2021	 2020
Initial Franchise Fees	\$ 232,246	\$ 241,927	\$ 170,659
Royalties	496,695	212,525	145,907
Other	 324,010	290,889	229,742
	\$ 1,052,951	\$ 745,341	\$ 546,308

NOTE 5 – REVENUE (Continued)

As of December 31, the timing and recognition of revenue was as follows:

	2022	2021	 2020
Services transferred at a point in time	\$ 820,705	\$ 503,414	\$ 375,649
Services transferred over time	232,246	241,927	 170,659
	\$ 1,052,951	\$ 745,341	\$ 546,308

Various economic factors such as supply and demand, laws and policies, and labor affect revenues and cash flows. The Company's revenue is derived from sources within the United States.

NOTE 6 – LEASE ACTIVITIES

As of December 31, 2022, additional information about the Company's leases were as follows:

Lease (Costs (inclu	ided ir	rent	expe	nse):	
Lease .		111010	iaca II.	1 1 0111	CZIPCI	1100 / .	

Operating lease cost	\$ 37,181
Short-term lease cost	 34,868
Total lease costs	\$ 72,049

Other Information:

Weighted-average remaining lease terms (years)	6.33
Weighted-average discount rate	1.40%

As of December 31, 2022, operating lease liabilities mature as follows:

2023	\$	206,255
2024		212,385
2025		219,084
2026		225,213
2027		232,055
Thereafter		320,858
Total lease payments	1	,415,850
Less: interest		(62,010)
Present value of lease liabilities	\$ 1	,353,840

NOTE 7 – EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company provides employees with the opportunity to participate in a 401(k) plan (the Plan), subject to certain eligibility requirements. The Plan covers eligible employees immediately upon hire and employees may begin to elect to make contributions to the plan up to the maximum amount allowed by the Internal Revenue Code. The Company made contributions to the Plan on behalf of a related party officer in the amount of \$23,000, \$9,000 and \$6,000 for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. These amounts are included under the caption "Employee benefits" on the accompanying statements of operations.

NOTE 8 – RELATED PARTIES

The Company paid salaries and wages to a related party stockholder and officer in the amount of \$166,000, \$157,000 and \$138,000 for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. These amounts are included under the caption "Salaries, wages and related" on the accompanying statements of Operations.

NOTE 9 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 2, 2023, the date which the financial statements were available to be issued. No events were identified that required adjustments of disclosure to the financial statements.

EXHIBIT F

STATE ADDENDA TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

CALIFORNIA ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the California Franchise Investment Law, if any of the terms of the Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED TOGETHER WITH THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

Item 3 of the Disclosure Document is amended by adding the following paragraph:

Neither we nor any person or franchise broker in Item 2 of this disclosure document is subject to any currently effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending or expelling these persons from membership in this association or exchange.

Item 5 of the Disclosure Document is modified by adding the following: "The California Department of Financial Protection and Innovation has imposed a financial assurance condition on the Franchisor which is being satisfied by posting a surety bond as shown in Exhibit A here."

Item 17 of the Disclosure Document is amended by adding the following paragraphs:

California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to the franchisee concerning termination, transfer, or non-renewal of a franchise. If the franchise agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control.

Item 17.g. of the Disclosure Document is modified to state that, in addition to the grounds for immediate termination specified in Item 17.h., the franchisor can terminate upon written notice and a 60 day opportunity to cure for a breach of the Franchise Agreement.

Item 17.h. of the Disclosure Document is modified to state that the franchisor can terminate immediately for insolvency, abandonment, mutual agreement to terminate, material misrepresentation, legal violation persisting 10 days after notice, repeated breaches, judgment, criminal conviction, monies owed to the franchisor more than 5 days past due, and imminent danger to public health or safety.

The franchise agreement requires application of the laws of Nevada. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.

The franchise agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the termination of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.

SECTION 31125 OF THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES US TO GIVE TO YOU A DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT APPROVED BY THE COMMISSIONER OF

FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION BEFORE WE ASK YOU TO CONSIDER A MATERIAL MODIFICATION OF YOUR FRANCHISE AGREEMENT.

YOU MUST SIGN A GENERAL RELEASE OF CLAIM IF YOU RENEW OR TRANSFER YOUR FRANCHISE. CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE §31512 VOIDS A WAIVER OF YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW (CALIFORNIA CODE §831000 THROUGH 31516). BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE §20010 VOIDS A WAIVER OF YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE FRANCHISE RELATIONS ACT (BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE §820000 THROUGH 20043).

Our website is located at fcbb.com.

OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTINO AND INNOVATION AT www.dfpi.ca.gov.

Exhibit A

STATE OF CALIFORNIA -DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS OVERSIGHT SURETY BOND

DBO - 31113 (Rev. 09-15)



BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS OVERSIGHT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

(Under Section 31113 of the Corporations Code)

	Bond No. 107246303
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That we FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS INC.	, as
principal, and Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America	, a
corporation, created, organized and existing under and by virtue of the law CONNECTICUT, as surety, are held and firmly bound unto the State of C and for the use of any interested person or persons who may have a cause on named principal of said bond under the provisions of the Law entitled "Frathe State of California, in the aggregate sum of \$90,000.00 , lawful in America, to be paid to the State of California, or to any person or persons, aforesaid, for which payment well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by the	California for the use thereof, of action against the above- unchise Investment Law," of money of the United States of for the use and benefit s, our heirs, executors,

The condition of the above obligation is such that-

WHEREAS, The above-named principal has made application to the Commissioner of Business Oversight of the State of California for registration of franchises under and pursuant to the Franchise Investment Law, and desires to furnish a bond under the provisions of Section 31113 of the Corporations Code and Section 310.113.5 of Title 10, California Administrative Code in the penal sum above named, conditioned as herein set forth; and

WHEREAS, Section 31113 of the Corporations Code requires that this bond be conditioned upon the discharge by the franchisor of its (his) obligations under the franchise contract to provide real estate, improvements, equipment, inventory, training and other items included in the offering of franchises;

NOW, THEREFORE, If the said principal and any and all agents and employees representing said principal shall faithfully conform to and abide by the provisions of the Law entitled "Franchise Investment Law," and of all rules and regulations made by the Commissioner of Business Oversight thereunder, and further shall pay to the State, and to such person or persons, any and all amounts which may become due or owing to the State or to such person or persons, from said principal under and by virtue of the provisions of said Law, then this obligation is to be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

This bond is subject to the following provisions:

- That any person who sustains an injury covered by this bond, may, in addition to any other remedy that he may have, bring an action in his own name upon this bond for the recovery of any damage sustained by him.
 - 2. That the total aggregate liability of the sureties herein for all claims which may arise under

STATE OF CALIFORNIA -DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS OVERSIGHT **SURETY BOND**

DBO - 31113 (Rev. 09-1	5)				
this bond shall be limite		\$90,000.00			
That the st hereunder by delivering State of California; how hereunder prior to the to	vever, such cancellati	notice to the Co ion shall not affe	mmissioner of Bu	siness Oversight	of the
That this liability by said Comm	oond shall remain in t issioner or until the b	force and effect ond is canceled	until the surety or by said surety or	sureties are releasureties.	sed from
5. That the e	ffective date of this b	ond shall be	April 08, 2020	<u> </u>	
IN WITNESS V corporate seal and the San Diego	WHEREOF, The seal name of said surety is California, this	s hereto affixed a	and attested by its	l is hereto affixed duly authorized o ,2020	and the

Surety PATRICK K MCNAMARA



ACKNOWI EDGMENT

certific who s attach		dentity of the individual which this certificate is				
State of	Nevada of Clark					
On	April 09, 2020	before me, Jeffrey	-Nyman	michele	Muscatos	uotan Public
			sert name	and title of the	he officer)	
	ly anneared	PHYCEY IVYMAN				
who pro subscrib his/her/tl	ved to me on the bask ed to the within instru neir authorized capaci	s of satisfactory evidence ment and acknowledged ty(ies), and that by his/hi ehalf-of which the person	to me that er/their sig	he/she/they nature(s) on	executed the sa the instrument the	me in
who pro- subscrib his/her/ti person(s	ved to me on the basis ed to the within instruineir authorized capaci b), or the entity upon b	s of satisfactory evidence ment and acknowledged ty(ies), and that by his/h	to me that er/their sig n(s) acted,	he/she/they nature(s) on executed the	executed the sa the instrument the instrument.	me in ne
who prosubscrib his/her/ti person(s I certify u paragrap	ved to me on the basis ed to the within instruineir authorized capaci b), or the entity upon bunder PENALTY OF P	s of satisfactory evidence ment and acknowledged ty(ies), and that by his/h ehalf-of which the person ERJURY under the laws	to me that er/their sig n(s) acted,	he/she/they nature(s) on executed the ate of Californ Notary Put COU MICH	executed the sa the instrument the instrument.	me in ne



POWER OF ATTORNEY

Farmington Casualty Company Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Company Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Underwriters, Inc. St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company St. Paul Guardian Insurance Company

St. Paul Mercury Insurance Company **Travelers Casualty and Surety Company** Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company

Surety Bond No.

107246303

Principal: FIRST CHOICE BUSINESS BROKERS INC.

5420 WEST SAHARA SUITE 200 LAS VEGAS, NV 89146

Obligee: California Department of Business Oversight

1515 K Street, Suite 200 SACRAMENTO, CA 958144052

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That Farmington Casualty Company, St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company, St. Paul Guardian Insurance Company, St. Paul Mercury Insurance Company, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America, and United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, are corporations duly organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut, that Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Company is a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Iowa, and that Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Underwriters, Inc. is a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Wisconsin (herein collectively called the "Companies"), and that the Companies do hereby make, constitute and appoint PATRICK K MCNAMARA, of the City of SAINT PAUL, State of MN, their true and lawful Attorney(s)-in-Fact, to sign, execute, seal and acknowledge the surety bond referenced above.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Companies have caused this instrument to be signed and their corporate seals to be hereto affixed, this 7th day of July, 2016.

Farmington Casualty Company Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Company Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Underwriters, Inc. St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company St. Paul Guardian Insurance Company

St. Paul Mercury Insurance Company Travelers Casualty and Surety Company Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company



















State of Connecticut

City of Hartford ss.

On this the 7th day of July, 2016, before me personally appeared Robert L. Raney, who acknowledged himself to be the Senior Vice President of Farmington Casualty Company, Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Company, Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Underwriters, Inc., St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company, St. Paul Guardian Insurance Company, St. Paul Mercury Insurance Company, Travelers Casualty and Surety Casualty Casualty and Surety Casu therein contained by signing on behalf of the corporations by himself as a duly authorized officer.

In Witness Whereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

My Commission expires the 30th day of June, 2021.

Marie c. Titreault Marie C. Tetreault, Notary Public

This Power of Attorney is granted under and by the authority of the following resolutions adopted by the Boards of Directors of Farmington Casualty Company, Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Underwriters, Inc., St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company, St. Paul Guardian Insurance Company, St. Paul Mercury Insurance Company, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America, and United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, which resolutions are now in full force and effect, reading as follows:

RESOLVED, that the Chairman, the President, any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vice President, any Second Vice President, the Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Corporate Secretary or any Assistant Secretary may appoint Attorneys-in-Fact and Agents to act for and on behalf of the Company and may give such appointee such authority as his or her certificate of authority may prescribe to sign with the Company's name and seal with the Company's seal bonds, recognizances, contracts of indemnity, and other writings obligatory in the nature of a bond, recognizance, or conditional undertaking, and any of said officers or the Board of Directors at any time may remove any such appointee and revoke the power given him or her; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chairman, the President, any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President or any Vice President may delegate all or any part of the foregoing authority to one or more officers or employees of this Company, provided that each such delegation is in writing and a copy thereof is filed in the office of the Secretary; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that any bond, recognizance, contract of indemnity, or writing obligatory in the nature of a bond, recognizance, or conditional undertaking shall be valid and binding upon the Company when (a) signed by the President, any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President or any Vice President, any Second Vice President, the Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Corporate Secretary or any Assistant Secretary and duly attested and sealed with the Company's seal by a Secretary or Assistant Secretary; or (b) duly executed (under seal, if required) by one or more Attorneys-in-Fact and Agents pursuant to the power prescribed in his or her certificate or their certificates of authority or by one or more Company officers pursuant to a written delegation of authority; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the signature of each of the following officers: President, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President, any Vice President, any Assistant Vice President, any Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, and the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile to any Power of Attorney or to any certificate relating thereto appointing Resident Vice Presidents, Resident Assistant Secretaries or Attorneys-in-Fact for purposes only of executing and attesting bonds and undertakings and other writings obligatory in the nature thereof, and any such Power of Attorney or certificate bearing such facsimile signature or facsimile seal shall be valid and binding upon the Company and any such power so executed and certified by such facsimile signature and facsimile seal shall be valid and binding on the Company in the future with respect to any bond or understanding to which it is attached.

I, Kevin E. Hughes, the undersigned, Assistant Secretary, of Farmington Casualty Company, Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Company, Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Company, Fit Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company, St. Paul Guardian Insurance Company, St. Paul Mercury Insurance Company, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America, and United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Power of Attorney executed by said Companies, which is in full force and effect and has not been revoked.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seals of said Companies this 09 day of April, 2020.

Kevin E. Hughes, Assistant Secretary



















To verify the authenticity of this Power of Attorney, call 1-800-421-3880 or contact us at www.travelersbond.com. Please refer to the above-named individuals and the details of the bond to which the power is attached.

HAWAII ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law, if any of the terms of the Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

THESE FRANCHISES HAVE BEEN FILED UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW OF THE STATE OF HAWAII. FILING DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS OR A FINDING BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING.

THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR SELL ANY FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHSIOR, AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXECUTION BY THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE OF ANY BINDING FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT, OR AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION BY THE FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR, WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, TOGETHER WITH A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE.

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF CERTAIN MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT SHOULD BE REFERRED TO FOR A STATEMENT OF ALL RIGHTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE FRANCHISOR AND THE FRANCHISEE.

Registered agent in the state authorized to receive service of process:

Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs Business Registration Division Securities Compliance Branch 335 Merchant Street, Room 203 Honolulu, HI 96813

Items 5 and 7 of the Disclosure Document are modified to also provide that we defer the payment of all initial fees paid to us until we have performed all of our pre-opening obligations and you are open for business.

ILLINOIS ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, if any of the terms of the Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

- 1. Item 17.u. is modified to provide that you must arbitrate claims against us.
- 2. Item 17.v. is modified to provide that arbitration shall take place in the location of our corporate headquarters.
 - 3. Item 17.w. is modified to provide that Illinois law applies.
- 4. Any condition, stipulation, or provision of the Franchise Agreement purporting to bind you to waive compliance with any provision of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of the State of Illinois is void.
- 5. The conditions under which your Franchise Agreement can be terminated and your rights upon nonrenewal may be affected by Sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.
- 6. Due to our financial condition, the State of Illinois Attorney General has required us to defer collection of all initial franchise fees that we charge, including the Initial Franchise Fee, until the franchisee commences doing business.

MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, if any of the terms of the Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

- 1. Item 17.b. is modified to also provide, "The general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.
- 2. Item 17.u. is modified to also provide, "A franchisee may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law."
- 3. Item 17.v. is modified to also provide, "Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise."
- 4. Item 5 is modified to also provide: "Based upon the franchisor's financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has required a financial assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees shall be deferred until the franchisor completes its preopening obligations under the franchise agreement."

MINNESOTA ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the Minnesota franchise laws, if any of the terms of the Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

- Minn. Stat. §80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or agreements can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the franchisee's rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or (2) franchisee's rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.
- With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.14 Subds. 3, 4, and 5 which require (except in certain specified cases), that a franchisee be given 90 days' notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days' notice for non-renewal of the franchise agreement and that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.
- The franchisor will protect the franchisee's rights to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes or other commercial symbols or indemnify the franchisee from any loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the name.

Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee's right to use the trademarks. Refer to Minnesota Statutes 80C.12, Subd. 1(g).

- Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent to a general release.
- The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor may seek injunctive relief. See Minn. Rules 2860.4400J.

Also, a court will determine if a bond is required.

The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17, Subd. 5.

NEW YORK ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the New York franchise laws, if any of the terms of the Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

1. The following information is added to the cover page of the Franchise Disclosure Document:

THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS COVERED IN THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE FRANCHISOR CANNOT USE THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS WHICH ARE LESS FAVORABLE SET THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

2. The following is added at the end of Item 3:

Except as provided above, with regard to the franchisor, its predecessor, a person identified in Item 2, or an affiliate offering franchises under the franchisor's principal trademark:

- A. No such party has an administrative, criminal or civil action pending against that person alleging: a felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust or securities law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive practices or comparable civil or misdemeanor allegations.
- B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to the business, which are significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size, nature or financial condition of the franchise system or its business operations.
- C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony charge or, within the 10 year period immediately preceding the application for registration, has been convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the subject of a civil action alleging: violation of a franchise, antifraud or securities law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property, or unfair or deceptive practices or comparable allegations.
- D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree relating to the franchise, or under a Federal, State or Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust, trade regulation or trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending action or proceeding brought by a public agency, or is subject to any currently effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or expelling such person from membership in such association or exchange; or is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order relating to any other business activity as a result of an action brought by a public agency or department, including, without limitation, actions affecting a license as a real estate broker or sales agent.

3. The following is added to the end of the "Summary" sections of Item 17(c), titled "Requirements for franchisee to renew or extend," and Item 17(m), entitled "Conditions for franchisor approval of transfer":

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any causes of action arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of this proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be satisfied.

4. The following language replaces the "Summary" section of Item 17(d), titled "Termination by franchisee":

You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law.

5. The following is added to the end of the "Summary" sections of Item 17(v), titled "Choice of forum," and Item 17(w), titled "Choice of law":

The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon the franchisor or upon the franchisee by Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York

NORTH DAKOTA ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the North Dakota franchise laws, if any of the terms of the Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

Restrictive Covenants: To the extent that covenants not to compete apply to periods after the term of the franchise agreement, they are generally unenforceable under North Dakota law.

Applicable Laws: North Dakota law will govern the franchise agreement.

Waiver of Trial by Jury: Any waiver of a trial by jury will not apply to North Dakota Franchises.

Waiver of Exemplary & Punitive Damages: Any waiver of punitive damages will not apply to North Dakota Franchisees.

General Release: Any requirement that the franchisee sign a general release upon renewal of the franchise agreement does not apply to franchise agreements covered under North Dakota law.

Enforcement of Agreement: Any requirement in the Franchise Agreement that requires the franchisee to pay all costs and expenses incurred by the franchisor in enforcing the agreement is void. Instead, the prevailing party in any enforcement action is entitled to recover all costs and expenses including attorney's fees.

Termination or Liquidated Damages: Section 17(i) of the Franchise Disclosure Document and the third sentence of Section 16.5 of the Franchise Agreement, which requires you to consent to termination or liquidated damages, is hereby deleted as North Dakota determines it be unfair, unjust, and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

Site of Mediation: Item 17(u) of the Disclosure Document and Section 25.9 of the Franchise Agreement provides that the franchisee must agree to the mediation of disputes in Nevada. The Commissioner has determined that franchise agreements, which provide that parties agree to the arbitration or mediation of disputes at a location that is remote from the site of the franchisee's business, are unfair, unjust, or inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. Item 17(u) of the Disclosure Document and Section 25 of the Franchise Agreement are hereby amended to state that the site of any mediation must be agreeable to all parties and may not be remote from the franchisee's place of business.

Item 5 of the Franchise Disclosure Document and Section 4.1 of the Franchise Agreement are amended to state that payment of your Initial Franchise Fee and Initial Training / Marketing Fee will be deferred until we have satisfied our pre-opening obligations to you and you have commenced business operations.

RHODE ISLAND ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, if any of the terms of the Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

Item 17.m. of the Disclosure Document is revised to provide:

Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act prohibits a franchisee to be restricted in choice of jurisdiction or venue. To the extent any such restriction is purported to be required by us, it is void with respect to all franchisees governed under the laws of Rhode Island.

Item 17.w. of the Disclosure Document is revised to provide:

Rhode Island law applies.

VIRGINIA ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the Virginia Retail Franchise Act, if any of the terms of the Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

1. Additional Disclosure. The following statements are added to Item 17.h of the Franchise Disclosure Document.

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or termination stated in the Franchise Agreement does not constitute "reasonable cause," as that term may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable.

2. Item 5 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is amended to also state as follows: "The Virginia State Corporation Commission's Division of Securities and Retail Franchising requires us to defer payment of the initial franchise fee and other initial payments owed by franchisees to the franchisor until the franchisor has completed its pre-opening obligations under the franchise agreement."

WASHINGTON ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the Washington State Franchise Investment Laws, if any of the terms of the Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee may bring an action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial, may not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor's reasonable estimated or actual costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee's earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed \$100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor's earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed \$250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations are void and unenforceable in Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington

Item 5 of the Disclosure Document is amended to also state: "In lieu of an impound of franchise fees, the Franchisor will not require or accept the payment of any initial franchise fees until the franchisee (a) has received all initial training that it is entitled to under the franchise agreement or disclosure document, and (b) is open for business."

WISCONSIN ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

As to franchises governed by the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, if any of the terms of the Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

1. Item 17 is modified to also provide,

If the franchise agreement contains any provisions that conflict with the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, the provisions of this Addendum shall prevail to the extent of such conflict.

With respect to franchises governed by Wisconsin law, the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law applies to most, if not all, franchise agreements and prohibits the termination, cancellation, non-renewal or the substantial change of the competitive circumstances of a dealership agreement without good cause. That Law further provides that 90 days prior written notice of a proposed termination, etc. must be given to the dealer. The dealer has 60 days to cure the deficiency and if the deficiency is cured, the notice is void.

EXHIBIT G-1 LIST OF CURRENT FRANCHISEES

The following is a list of the names of all Franchisees and the address and telephone number of each of their outlets as of the end of our most recently completed fiscal year.

Arizona

213-Leilani Felix Two North Central Ave 18th & 19th Floor, Phoenix, AZ - 85004 (602) 675-4261

222-Mounir & Andrea Bousaid 9375 E Shea Blvd Suite 266, Scottsdale, AZ - 85260 (602) 962-0888

<u>Arkansas</u>

247- Amanda Martinez 1202 McClain Road Bldg. 7, Bentonville, AR 72712 (479) 250-0767

California

130-Adrianna D. Smith-Lana Hout 1642 Westwood Blvd., Ste 201 Los Angeles, CA - 90024 (424) 832-3410

226-Felizardo Gaxiola 3610 Central Avenue Suite 400, Riverside, California - 92506 (951) 848-6010

238-Ryan Roques 1101 California Avenue Suite #100, Corona, CA 92881 (951) 776-5050

253-Michael Faust 5250 Lankershim Blvd Suite 500-1001 Los Angeles, CA - 91601 (818) 810-4242

Colorado

214-Kevin and Stephanie Robertson 5125 South Kipling Street, Suite 340 Littleton, CO 80127 (720) 295-7579

Florida

126-Ken Vichinsky 7351 Wiles Road, Suite 202 Coral Springs, FL 33067 (954) 796-7965

232-Michael Canales 8345 Kelsall Drive Orlando, FL 32832 (407) 312-9519

Moe & Andrea Bousaid 9100 Conroy Windermere Road Windermere, FL 34786 (702) 241-1242

239 -AndyRumph Tampa 401 East Jackson Street SunTrust Tower, Tampa, Florida - 33602 (813) 773-6434

240-AndyRumph- Fort Myers 401 East Jackson Street SunTrust Tower, Tampa, Florida - 33602 (813) 773-6434

Georgia

243- Mike Denham & Joe Moon 279 West Crogan Street, Lawrenceville, GA- 30046 (770) 203-1100

Idaho

229-Brandon Brown 4155 Yellowstone Highway Ste 1260B, Pocatello, ID 83202 (208) 244-6440

Kentucky

252- Adam Marley 1200 Ben Thomas Road Bowling Green KY 42013 (270) 535-0981

257- Adam Marley 1200 Ben Thomas Road Bowling Green KY 42013 (270) 535-0981

Massachusetts

256 John Donovan 126 Reedsdale Road, Milton, MA- 02186 (617) 799-5077

Michigan

217-Ken Lee 41000 Woodward Avenue Suite 350 East Building, Bloomfield Hills, MI 48304 (248) 218-2630

225-Carl and Susan Howard 120 North Washington Square Suite 380 Lansing, MI 48933 (517) 940-8975

Minnesota

Scott Krantz 21897 So Diamond Lake Rd # 400-315 Rogers, MN 55374 (612) 662-5488

Missouri

205-Bruce Thomson 1701 Discovery Drive St Louis Franchise Wentzville, MO 63385 (314) 596-7668

245- John Martinez 800 East 101st Terrace Suite 350, Kansas City, MO- 64131 (816) 601-0590

248- Amanda Martinez 909 East Republic Road C100, Springfield, Missouri - 65807 (417) 719-9480

246- John & Amanda Martinez 100 Chesterfield Business Pkwy# 200, Chesterfield, MO- 63005 (636) 252-4113

233-Bruce Thomson 1701 Discovery Drive St Charles Franchise Wentzville, MO 63385 (314) 596-7668

Montana

231-Quin Rasmussen 120 South Reserve # 110 Missoula MT 59801 (406) 431-6260

Nebraska

258-Kevin Kohler 1908 Liberty Lane Papillon, NE 68133 (402) 657-5745

New Hampshire

224-Dan Cisz 20 Trafalgar Square Suite #443, Nashua, NH - 03063 (603) 589-4049

New York

215-Gil Tatarsky 122 Main St Suite 828, New Paltz, NY 12561 (845) 400-2420

206-Greg Carafello One World Trade Center Suite 8500, New York, NY 10007 (212) 220-5900

North Carolina

209-Lenwood Mills 2500 Regency Parkway Cary, NC - 27518 (919) 651-8353

203-Scott and Christie Curtis 301 McVullough Drive Suite 400 Charlotte, NC 28262

North Dakota

254-Barry Maring 2534 University Drive # 6 Fargo, ND 58103 (701) 232 4020

Ohio

223-Brandon Owens 3481 South Dixie Highway Suite #300, Middletown, OH 45044 (513) 392-6750

242-Eric Iffland 7621 Central Avenue, Toledo, OH - 43617 (419) 318-7403

242-Franz Nunziata 1900 Polaris Parkway Suite 450-777, Columbus, OH- 43240 (740) 965-1981

Oregon

227-Daniel Mulligan 3334 NE 79th Ave, Portland OR 97213 (503) 550-1689

Pennsylvania

228-Sam Meister 322 North Shore Drive Building 1B, Suite 200 Pittsburgh, PA 15212 (412) 406-6281

236- Daniel Ring 600 West Germantown Pike, Plymouth Meeting, PA- 19462 (484) 326-2718

South Dakota

244 Scott Kranz 9605 West Broek Drive, Sioux Falls, SD- 57106 (605) 413-1871

Tennessee

133-Patrick Marsch Jr Adam Weaver 4117 Hilsboro Pike, Suite 103-350 Nashville, TN 37215 (615) 450-0410

Texas

137-Bonnie Benkula 217 E. Main League City, TX 77573 (832) 794-1153

145 - Lenwood Mills 10777 Westheimer Road Suite 1100 001, Houston, TX 77042 (713) 806-7013

249-John Martinez 6136 Frisco Square Boulevard Suite 400, Frisco, TX- 75034 (469) 535-5547

255- Browning Williams 5847 San Felipe Street Suite 620, Houston, TX- 77057 (713) 595-6976 <u>Utah</u>

141-Craig and Jill Smith 802 E Bamberger Dr

Suite A American Fork, UT 84003 (801) 319-7278

216-Phil Neuenswander 420 West 1500 South Suite #106, Bountiful, Utah - 84010 (520) 818-9988

<u>Virginia</u>

201-William and Patricia Griswold Richmond VA Franchise 4209 West Hundred Road Chester, VA 23831 (804) 520-7557

200-Tim Johnson Chesapeake VA Franchise 720 Willowbrook Road Chesapeake, VA 23320 (757) 866 2321

202-Tim Johnson Norfolk VA Franchise 4876 Princess Anne Road Suite 118 Virginia Beach, VA 23462 (757) 866-2321

204-Tim Johnson Virginia Beach VA 4876 Princess Anne Road Suite 118 Virginia Beach, VA 23462 (757) 866-2321

251-Jonathan Ring 520 12th Street # 339 Arlington VA 22202 (202) 681-6777

Washington

James Shin 4500 9th Avenue Northeast Suite 300, Seattle, WA 98105 (844) 424-9725

Franchise Agreements Signed	But Outlet Not Yet Open (as of 12/31/2022)
NONE	

EXHIBIT G-2 FORMER FRANCHISEES

The following is a list of the names, city and state, and current business telephone number, or if unknown, the last known home telephone number of every franchisee who had an outlet terminated, canceled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the franchise agreement during our most recently completed fiscal year or who have not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document. If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.

TRANSFERRED

None

TERMINATED

218-Chris Pyatt 8201 East Hoverland Road, Scottsdale, AZ - 85255 (602) 679-1086

106-Chris Seaman- Patrick Marsch 9879 Hilbert Street, A San Diego, CA 92131 (858) 578-5111

EXHIBIT H

TABLES OF CONTENTS FOR MANUALS

Manuals

The table of contents of the operations manuals, which include sales, marketing, and business operations are as follows:

Manual 1.0 Starting Your Business

1.0 Purpose of This Manual	4	
2.0 Office and Business Setup		
2.1 Office Type		
2.2 Office Essentials	6	
2.2.1 Ten Points to Remember with Your Office	8	
2.2.2 Ten Common "Getting Started" Mistakes	8	
2.3 Having a Team of Professionals	9	
2.3.1 Attorney	9	
2.3.2 Accountant	9	
2.3.3 Business Coach	10	
2.3.4 Insurance Broker	10	
2.3.5 Other Professionals to Consider	11	
2.3.6 Ten Points to Remember	11	
3.0 Initiating Your Marketing	12	
3.1 Network Groups	12	
3.2 Database Purchase	13	
3.3 Research Preferred Marketing Strategies	15	
3.4 Research Direct Mail	16	
3.5 Centers of Influence	16	
4.0 Computer Setup	17	
5.0 Building Your Team	19	
5.1 Getting Started	19	
5.2 Marketing Team	19	
5.3 Receptionist	20	
5.4 Bookkeeper	20	
5.5 Adding More Agents	21	
6.0 Gaining Knowledge	22	
7.0 Quarterly Plan	23	
8.0 Conclusion	24	
Appendix 1: 90-Day Plan Template	26	

MANUAL 2.0

MARKETING YOUR BUSINESS: ATTRACTING BUYERS AND SELLERS

1.0 N	Marketing 5	
	1.1 The First Choice Marketing System.	5
	1.2 Your Attitude toward Marketing	6
	1.3 Planning.	7
2.0 I	Direct Mail	14
	2.1 Identify Your Market	14
	2.2 Preparing Your Mailing List	15
	2.3 Direct Mail Letter	17
	2.4 Direct Mail Follow-Up Script	19
3.0	Employing a Telemarketer or a Telemarketing Company	22
	3.1 Using an Outside Telemarketing Company	23
	3.2 Interviewing Potential Telemarketers	23
	3.3 Goal Setting	24
	3.4 Preparation	24
	3.5 Telemarketer	25
	3.6 First Choice Business Broker follow up	25
	3.7 Doing the Telemarketing	26
	3.8 Some Common Objections/Questions	32
4.0	Strategic Alliances	37
5.01	Networking	39
6.0 \$	Seminars	41
	6.1 Marketing the Seminar to Sellers	41
	6.2 Location for Your Seminar	45
	6.3 Set Dates and Book Your Seminar	45
	6.4 Your Alliances and/or Sponsors	47
	6.6 Seminar RSVP's	47
	6.7 Confirmation	48
	6.8 Presenting the Actual Seminar	49
	6.9 Post-Seminar Sales Process	53
	6.10 Business Evaluation Appointment Set	54
	6.11 Summary of Seminar	57
7.0	Other Marketing Strategies:	58
	7.1 Newsletters	58
	7.2 Newspaper Advertising	58
	7.3 Magazine Advertising	58
	7.4 Trade Journal and Industry Newsletter Advertising	59
	7.5 Inserts	59
	7.6 Brochures	60
	7.7 Yellow/White Pages and Other Directories	60
	7.8 Post Card Mailings	60
	7.9 Internet/Web Pages	61
	7.10 Building Signage	61

	7.11 Business Cards	61
	7.12 Radio Shows	62
	7.14 Press Release Articles	62
8.0	Meeting Potential Buyers and Sellers in Your Everyday Life	63
9.0	GENERAL BUSINESS INFORMATION	64
	9.1 Understanding Businesses	64
	9.2 Lead Generation through Specialization	64
	9.3 Managing Your Prospects	65
10.0	Your Documents	66

MANUAL 3.0

THE CORE BUSINESS: SELLING LISTINGS TO BUYERS

1.0 Introduction	6
1.1 Business Brokering	8
1.2 Welcome	11
2.0 The Process of Getting Listings SOLD	13
2.1 Process Overview	14
3.0 Acquiring Listings	18
3.1 Set Appointments with Prospective Sellers	19
3.2 Presentation of who you are and of First Choice	19
3.3 Interview of the Seller	20
3.3.1 DISCUSSION OF THE BUSINESS	21
3.4.1 Evaluations	24
3.4.2 TYPES OF BUSINESS OWNERSHIP AND	
WHO MUST SIGN THE BROKER AGREEMENT	32
3.5 Discuss Fees and the Contract/Agreement	33
3.5.1 CORRELATING AND NEGOTIATING THE	
LISTING PRICE AND TERMS	33
3.5.2 FOUR TYPES OF LISTINGS	35
3.5.3 FEES	37
3.5.4 BROKER AGREEMENTS	40
3.5.5 Do's and Don't of a Listing	49
3.6 Listing Case Studies	50
4.0 The BUYER	61
4.1 The Advantages of Buying an Existing Business	62
4.2 Qualifying a Prospective Buyer – Getting to the First Appointment	65
4.3 First meeting With the Buyer	69
4.3.1 Buyer Confidentiality Acknowledgement Form	72
4.4 Showing the Buyer a Business	74
4.4.1 The Follow-Up Meeting with a Buyer	77
4.4.2 Good Questions for Your Buyer	80
4.5 Methods of Buying a Business	81
4.5.1 Asset Purchase	82
4.5.2 OFFERS	95
4.5.3 Other Points to Remember	115
4.5.4 Sample Asset Purchase Case Studies	121
5.0 Escrow – Closing the Deal	124
5.1 CLOSING THE BUSINESS SALE	126
Appendix I – Glossary of Business Brokerage Terms	129
Appendix II – Forms and Documents:	140

MANUAL 4.0 RECRUITING AGENTS

1.0 Purpose of This Manual	4
2.0 Overview of the Agent Recruiting Process	5
3.0 Advertising to Recruit a New Agent	6
3.1 WHO are you looking for: Knowing Your IDEAL Agent	6
3.2 Sample Recruiting Advertisements	8
3.3 Publications to Place Your Recruitment Advertisement	9
3.4 Selecting the Right Candidates for an Interview	10
4.0 Conducting the Agent Interview	11
4.1 Interview Format	11
4.2 Key Interview Questions	12
4.3 Personality and/or Behavior Tests	15
4.4 Concluding the Interview – The Next Step	21
5.0 Determining Who Will Be a Good Agent	22
6.0 Starting Your New Agent	23
6.1 Training Requirements	23
6.2 Scenarios for Training Payment	24
6.3 Policies and Procedures – Agents	27
7.0 Growing Your Business	28
7.1 How Many Agents to Hire	28
7.2 Systematizing your Agent Recruiting Process	29
8.0 Conclusion	32
Appendix I DiSC Profile	32

MANUAL 5.0 OPERATING PROCEDURES

(40 Pages) Table of Contents

Introd	uction	1
I.	Listing Acceptance Procedure	2
II.	Incomplete Listing Procedure	3
III.	Listing Input Procedure (Lotus Approach)	4
IV.	Website Entry Procedure	7
V.	Scanning Procedures	15
VI.	Listing Changes Procedure	18
VII.	Sold Listings Procedure	19
VIII.	Expired Listings Procedure	20
IX.	Generate Business List Log and Blind Log	22
X.	Miscellaneous Listing Updates	23
XI.	Confids Database	24
Appen	ndices:	
A. B. C. D. E. F.	Broker Listing Checklist Sample e-mail to Agent for Incomplete Listing Packet Listings Pending Completion spreadsheet Key Codes Office Codes New Listing Letter	
G. H. I. J.	Change Order Sold Business Details Listing Changes Checklist Sold Listings Checklist	

Manual 5.0 Operating Procedures (40 Pages)

- 1.0 Listing Acceptance Procedure
- 2.0 Incomplete Listing Procedure
- 3.0 Listing Input Procedure
- 4.0 Web Site Entry Procedure
- 5.0 Listing Changes Procedure
- 6.0 Pending Listing Procedure
- 7.0 Sold Listings Procedure
- 8.0 Expired Listings Procedure
- 9.0 General Business List Log and Blind Log
- 10. Miscellaneous Listing Updates

Appendices:

- A. Broker Listing Checklist
- B. Sample Email to Agent for Incomplete Listing Packet
- C. Key Codes
- D. Office Codes
- E. Approved Listing Categories
- F. Quarter Sheet for Distribution
- G. New Listing Letter
- H. Change Order
- I. Sold Business Details
- J. Red and Blue File Stacking Order

EXHIBIT I AREA REPRESENTATIVE DISCLOSURES

Our current area representatives, and their respective territories, are listed below. We also list their additional disclosures for Items 2, 3, and 4 of the Franchise Disclosure Document.

Barry Maring: Area Representative for Arizona and North Dakota

ITEM 2. BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Barry Maring is the President and Chief Financial Officer for Sonmar Management in Fargo, North Dakota, a position he has had since January 2008.

ITEM 3. LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this item.

ITEM 4. BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this item.

Melissa Salyer: Area Representative for Georgia

ITEM 2. BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Melissa Salyer has served as our Executive Vice President of Franchise Development for Loyalty, LLC in Virginia Beach, Virginia since December 2019. From August 2019 to the present, Ms. Salyer has also served as the Owner of FranDiscovery in Virginia Beach, Virginia. From July 2015 to September 2019, Ms. Salyer served as Executive Vice President of Franchise Opportunities for Happy Tax Franchising, LLC in Virginia Beach, Virginia.

ITEM 3. LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this item.

ITEM 4. BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this item.

Scott Curtis: Area Representative for Charlotte, North Carolina

ITEM 2. BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Scott Curtis is the Vice President for Charlotte Business Sales, Inc. in Midland, North Carolina since September 2018. Mr. Curtis is also President of LTS Carolina Inc., and has been since September 2005.

<u>ITEM 3.</u> <u>LITIGATION</u>

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this item.

ITEM 4. BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this item.

Frank Nunziata: Area Representative for Cleveland, Dayton, and Columbus, Ohio

ITEM 2. BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Frank Nunziata is the Managing Member for Nunziata Franchise Consulting, LLC in Lewis Center, Ohio since March 2022. Mr. Nunziata is also Managing Member for Nunziata Business Brokerage, LLC in Lewis Center, Ohio since March 2022. From September 1997 to the present, Mr. Nunziata is and has been Managing Member of F.A. Nunziata and Sons, LLC in Lewis Center, Ohio.

ITEM 3. LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this item.

ITEM 4. BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this item.

William Griswold: Area Representative for Virginia (except Hampton-Rhodes area)

ITEM 2. BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

William Griswold is a unit-level franchisee of ours in Richmond, Virginia through his company Golden Dunes Business Brokers, a role he has had since June 25, 2018. Between September 2014 and January 2020, Mr. Griswold was President of Golden Dunes Insurance in Colonial Heights, Virginia.

ITEM 3. LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this item.

ITEM 4. BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this item.

EXHIBIT J STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document is filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below:

State	Effective Date
California	
Hawaii	
Illinois	
Indiana	July 18, 2022
Maryland	
Michigan	April 25, 2022
Minnesota	
New York	
North Dakota	
South Dakota	
Rhode Island	
Virginia	
Washington	
Wisconsin	

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws, such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted marketing plans.

EXHIBIT K RECEIPT

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If First Choice Business Brokers, Inc. offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

Iowa requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

Michigan requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.

New York requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If First Choice Business Brokers, Inc. does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, DC 20580 and the state agency listed on Exhibit C.

The franchisor is First Choice Business Brokers, Inc., located at 851 South Rampart Blvd., Ste. 200, Las Vegas, NV 89145. Its telephone number is (702) 368-2500.

Issuance Date: March 17, 2023

The Franchise Seller for this offering is:

- X Jeffrey D. Nyman, 851 South Rampart Blvd., Ste. 200, Las Vegas, NV 89145; (702) 368-2500
- X Linda Hentges-Nyman, 851 South Rampart Blvd., Ste. 200, Las Vegas, NV 89145; (702) 368-2500
- X Melissa Salyer, 851 South Rampart Blvd., Suite 200 Las Vegas, NV 89145 (702) 368-2500

We authorize the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit C to receive service of process for us in the particular state.

I have received a disclosure document dated March 17, 2023 that included the following Exhibits:

Exhibit A. Franchise Agreement

Schedule 1 - Area of Operations and Approved Location

Schedule 2 – Guaranty, Indemnification, and Acknowledgement

Schedule 3 – Computer System User License Agreement

Schedule 4 – Assignment of Telephone Numbers, Internet Addresses, and Social

Media Identities

Schedule 5 – Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement

Schedule 6 – Statement of Ownership

Schedule 7 - ACH Authorization

Schedule 8 - Franchisee Compliance Certification

Schedule 9 - State Addenda to the Franchise Agreement

Exhibit B. Non-Disclosure Agreement

Date	Signature	Printed Name
Exhibit K. Receipts		
Exhibit J. State Effects	ive Dates	
Exhibit I. Area Repres		
Exhibit H. Tables of C		
Exhibit G-2. Former F		
Exhibit G-1. List of Co	urrent Franchisees	
Exhibit F. State Adder	nda to The Disclosure Document	
Exhibit E. Financial St	tatements	
Exhibit D. General Re	elease	
Exhibit C. State Admi	inistrators/Agents for Service of Process	3

Please sign, date, and retain this copy for your records.

RECEIPT

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If First Choice Business Brokers, Inc. offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

Iowa requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

Michigan requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.

New York requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If First Choice Business Brokers, Inc. does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, DC 20580 and the state agency listed on Exhibit C.

The franchisor is First Choice Business Brokers, Inc., located at 851 South Rampart Blvd., Ste. 200, Las Vegas, NV 89145. Its telephone number is (702) 368-2500.

Issuance Date: March 17, 2023

The Franchise Seller for this offering is:

- X Jeffrey D. Nyman, 851 South Rampart Blvd., Ste. 200, Las Vegas, NV 89145; (702) 368-2500
- X Linda Hentges-Nyman, 851 South Rampart Blvd., Ste. 200, Las Vegas, NV 89145; (702) 368-2500
- X Melissa Salyer, 851 South Rampart Blvd., Suite 200 Las Vegas, NV 89145 (702) 368-2500

We authorize the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit C to receive service of process for us in the particular state.

I have received a disclosure document dated March 17, 2023 that included the following Exhibits:

Exhibit A. Franchise Agreement

Schedule 1 –Area of Operations and Approved Location

Schedule 2 – Guaranty, Indemnification, and Acknowledgement

Schedule 3 – Computer System User License Agreement

Schedule 4 – Assignment of Telephone Numbers, Internet Addresses, and Social Media Identities

Schedule 5 – Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement

Schedule 6 – Statement of Ownership

Schedule 7 - ACH Authorization

Schedule 8 - Franchisee Compliance Certification

Schedule 9 - State Addenda to the Franchise Agreement

Exhibit B. Non-Disclosure Agreement

Exhibit C. State Administrators/Agents for Service of Process

Exhibit D. General Re	lease	
Exhibit E. Financial St	tatements	
Exhibit F. State Adder	nda to The Disclosure Document	
Exhibit G-1. List of Co	urrent Franchisees	
Exhibit G-2. Former F	ranchisees	
Exhibit H. Tables of C	Contents of Manuals	
Exhibit I. Area Representative Disclosures		
Exhibit J. State Effective Dates		
Exhibit K. Receipts		
Date	Signature	Printed Name

Please sign, date, and return this copy to First Choice Business Brokers, Inc., 851 South Rampart Blvd., Ste. 200, Las Vegas, NV 89145.

4887-3122-3338, v. 5